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Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX IV

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR COMPANY FOR THE FYE 31
DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont’d)}

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD aziew

(Incotporated in Malaysia)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

50 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Market Risk

Market risk is defined as the risk of losses to the Group’s portfolic positions arising from movements in
market factors such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and changes in volatility. The Group is
exposed to market risks from its trading and investment activities. The Group’s market risk management
objective is to ensure that market risk is appropriately identified, measured, controlied, managed and
reported,

The Group's exposure to market risk stems primarily from interest rate risk and foreign exchange rate
risk. Interest rate risk arises mainly from differences in timing betwsen the maturities or re-pricing of
assets, liabilities and derivatives. The Group is also exposed to basis risk when there is a mismatch
between the change in price of a hedge and the change in price of the assets it hedges. Foreign
exchange rate risk arises from unhedged positions of customers' requirements and proprietary positions.

The Group's market risk maragement control strategy is established based on its risk appetite, market
liquidity and business strategies as well as macrececonomic conditions. These limits are reviewed at least
on an annual basis.

Market risk arising from the Group's trading book is primarily controlled through the imposition of Cut-
loss and Value-at-Risk ('VaR') limits.

The Group guantifies interest rate risk by analysing the repricing mismatch between the rate sensitive
assets and rate sensitive liabilities. It also conducts Net Interest income simulations to assess the
variation in earnings under various rates scenarios. The potential long term effects of the Bank's overall
exposure is also tracked by assessing the impact on Economic Value of Equity (EVE").

The Group's interest rate risk is managed through Earnings-at-Risk ('EaR') and Economic Value-at-Risk
('EVaR') limits.

in addition, the Group conducts periodic stress test of its respective business portfolios to ascertain
market risk under abnormal market conditions.

The Group's Management, ALCO and BRMC are regularly kept informed of its risk profile and positions.
a}) Value-at-Risk ('VaR')

Value-at-Risk ('VaR') is used to compute the maximum potential loss amocunt over a specified
holding pericd of a Trading Poertfolic. It measures the risk of losses arising from potentiai adverse
movements in interest rates and foreign exchange rates that could affect values of financial
instruments.

The Variance-Covariance Parametric methodology is adopted to compute the potential loss amount.
This is a statistically defined, probability-based appreoach that uses volatilities and correlations to
quantify price risks. Under this methodology, a matrix of historical volatilittes and correlations is
computed from the past 100 business days’ market data. VaR is then computed by applying these
volatilities and correlations to the outstanding Trading Portfolio valued at current price levels
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Company No.: 23218-W APPENDIX IV

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR COMPANY FOR THE FYE 31
DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS' REPORT THEREON (Cont'd)

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD (zazta.w)

{Incorporated in Malaysia)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2012

50 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Market Risk (continued}
a) Value-at-Risk ('VaR") (confinued)

The table below sets out a summary of the Group's VaR profile by financial instrument types and
fixed income for the Trading Portfolio:-

Average for

Balance the year Minimum Maximum
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000
2013
Instruments:-
FX swap 713 607 252 1,375
FX sport (Metro Desk) 88 1680 6 678
Government securities 2 - - 2
Private debt securities - - - 60
Fixed income:-
Pass-through trade - 1,798 - 29,307
2012
Instruments:-
FX swap 634 906 604 1,468
FX sport (Metro Desk) 34 144 9 672
Government securities - - - 4
Private debt securities 60 48 - 329
Fixed income:-
Proprietary trading - 12,559 - 1,162,178
Primary subscription - 18,697 - 988,251

Other Risk Measures

i) Mark-to-Market
Mark-to-Market valtuation tracks the current market vaiue of the outstanding financial instruments.
i) Stress testing

Stress tests are conducted to attempt to quantify market risk arising from low probability,
abnormal market movements. The sitress tests measure the change in value arising from range of
extreme movements in the interest rates and foreign exchange rates based on past experience
and simulated stress scenarios.

iii} Sensitivity/Dollar Duration

Sensitivity/Dollar Duration is an additional measure of interest rate risk that is computed on a
daily basis. It measures the change in value of a portfolio resulting from a 0.01% increase in
interest rates. This measure identifies the Group’s interest rate exposures that are most
vulnerable to interest rate changes and it facilitates the implementation of hedging strategies.
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Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX IV

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR COMPANY FOR THE FYE 31
DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont’d)

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD (zsz18-w)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

50 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Market Risk {continued)

Net interest income sensitivity

The table below shows the pre-tax net interest income sensitivity for the non-trading financial assets
and financial liabilities held as at reporting date. The sensitivity has been measured using the
Repricing Gap Simulation methodology based on 100 basis points parallel shifts in the interest rate.

2013 2012
+100 -100 +100 -100
basis points  basis points  basis points  basis points
RM million RM million RM million RM million

Group
Impact on net interest income (22.8) 22.8 (13.7) 13.7
As percentage of net interest income -2.0% 2.0% -1.2% 1.2%

Foreign exchange risk sensitivity analysis

Open position

Ringgit Malaysia
US Dollar Ringgit Malaysia  equivalent amount tmpact of 1% fall

equivalent equivalent for 1% fall in US Dollar
amount amount in US Dollar exchange rate
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Group-
2013
US Dollar {408) (1,332 (1,319) 13
Others (4.1086) (13,515) (13,380} 135
2012
US Dollar (4,986) {15,252) {15,099) 153
Others (4,334) {13,255) (13,123) 132

a) The impact on the outstanding foreign exchange position as at 31 December 2013 for a one
percent change in USD exchange rate from 3.2775 to 3.2447 was an increase of about
RM148,474.

b} The impact on the outstanding foreign exchange position as at 31 December 2012 for a one
percent change in USD exchange rate from 3.0590 to 3.0284 was an increase of about
RM285,500.
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Company No.: 23218-W APPENDIX IV

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR COMPANY FCR THE FYE 31
DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont'd)}

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD (23218-w

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

50 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Operational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from inadequate or failed internal processes, action on ar by people,
infrastructure or technology or events which are beyond the bank's immediate control which have an
operational impact, including natural disaster, fraudulent activities and money laundering/ffinancing of
terrorism.
The Group manages operational risk through a control based environment in which policies and procedures
are formulated after taking into account individual unit's business activities, the market in which it is operating
and regulatory requirement in force.

The Group adopts the Basic Indicator Approach for the purpose of calculating the capital requirement for
operational risk. The capital requirement is calculated by taking 15% of the Bank's average annual gross
income over the previous three years.

Risk is identified through the use of assessment tools and measured using threshold/limits mapped against
risk matrix. Monitoring and control procedures include the use of key control standards, independent tracking
of risk, back-up procedures and contingency plans, including disaster recovery and business continuity plans.
This is supported by periodic reviews undertaken by Group Internal Audit to ensure adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group Operational Risk Management process.

The Group gathers, analyses and reports operational risk loss and 'near miss' events to Group Operational
Risk Management Committee and Board Risk Management Committee. Appropriate preventive and remedial
actions are reviewed for effectiveness and implemented to minimize the recurrence of such events,

As a matter of requirement, all Operational Risk Coordinators must satisfy an Internal Operational Risk
(including anti-money laundering/counter financing of terrorism and business continuity management)
Certification Program. These coordinators will first go through an ondine self-learning exercise befare
attempting on-line assessments to measure their skills and knowledge level. This will enable Group Risk
Management to prescribe appropriate training and development activities for the coordinators.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk of lass due to failure to access funds at reasonable cost to fund the Group's operations

and meet its liabilities when they fall due. Liquidity risk arises from the Group's funding activities and the
management of its assets.

To measure and manage net funding requirements, the Group adopts BNM's New Liquidity Framework
(NLF'). The NLF ascertains the liquidity condition based on the contractual and behavioural cash-flow of
assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet commitments, taking into consideration the realisable cash value of the
eligible liquefiable assets.

The Group employs liquidity risk indicators as an early alert of any structural change for liquidity risk
management. The risk is measured monthly using internal and external qualitative and gquantitative liquidity
risk indicators. The Group also conducts liguidity stress tests to gauge the Group’s resilience in the event of a
funding crisis. In addition, the Group has in place the Contingency Funding Plan to deal with liquidity crisis and
emergencies.

The liguidity positions in the major currencies are being closely monitored by tracking the availability of
medium to long-term foreign currency funding and adhering to the guiding principles for foreign currency
assets creations.

Basel lll Liquidity Standards

The Basel Committee developed the Liquidity Coverage Ratio ('LCR') and Net Stable Funding Ratio ('NSFR')
with the goal of strengthening the resilience of the banking systems. The LCR and NSFR are tracked monthly
to assess the short term and long term liquidity risk profile of the Group.

The BRMC is responsible for the Group's ligquidity policy although the strategic management of liguidity has
been delegated to the ALCO. The BRMC is however, informed regularly liquidity situation in the Group.
118
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Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX IV

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CUR COMPANY FOR THE FYE 31
DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont’d)

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD 2328w

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013
51 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments comprise financial assets, financial liabilities and also off-balance shest financial
instruments. The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged or settled between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’s length fransaction. The
information presented herein represents estimates of fair values as at reporting date.

Fair value information for non-financial assets and liabilities are excluded as they do not fall within the
scope of FRS 132 which requires the fair values to be disclosed. These include property and equipment,
statutory deposits with Bank Negara Malaysia, investment in subsidiaries, other assets, tax recoverable,
deferred tax and intangible assets.

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group and the Company approximated to
their respective carrying value as at reporting date, except for the following:-

Group Company
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
2013 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Financial assets
Deposits and placement with bank and
other financial institutions 468,585 495,632 - -
Financial investments held-to-maturity 624,033 614,826 “ -
Loans, advances and financing 36,909,384 36,613,829 - -
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 47,353,514 47,253,987 - -
Deposits and placements of banks and
other financial institutions 3,983,912 3,984,309 - -
Recourse obligation on loans sold to
Cagamas Berhad 397,790 406,113 - -
Borrowings 972,432 973,177 972,432 973,177
2012
Financial assets
Deposits and placement with bank and
other financial institutions 492,356 522,818 - -
Financial investments held-to-maturity 548,324 538,370 - -
Loans, advances and financing 34,163,168 33,863,596 - -
Financial liahilities
Deposits from customers 42,944 986 42 870,501 - -
Deposits and placements of hanks and
other financial institutions 4,588,209 4,595 246 - -
Recourse obligation on loans sold to
Cagamas Berhad 413,549 426,331 - -
Borrowings 972,343 972,227 972,343 972,227
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Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX IV

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR COMPANY FOR THE FYE 31
DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont'd)

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD (23218-w)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

51 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are based on the following methodologies and
assumptions:-

Short-term funds and placements with banks and other financial institutions

For shor-term funds and placements with banks and other financial institutions with maturities of less than
six months, the carrying ameount is a reasenable estimate of the fair value.

For amounts with maturities of six months or more, fair values have been estimated by reference to current
rates at which similar deposits and placements would be made with similar credit ratings and maturities.

Financial assets held-for-trading, financial investments available~for-sale and financial investments held-
te-maturity

The fair values of financial assets held-for-trading, financial invesiments available-for-sale and financial
investments held-to-maturity are reasonable estimates based on quoted market prices. in the absence of
such quoted prices, the fair values are based on the expected cash flows of the instruments discounted
by indicative market yields for the similar instruments as at reporting date or the audited net tangible
asset of the invested company.

Loans, advances and financing

Loans and advances of the Group comprise of floating rate loans and fixed rate loans. Far performing
floating rate loans, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of their fair values.

The fair values of performing fixed rate loans are arrived at using the discounted cash flows based on the
prevailing market rates of loans and advances with similar credit ratings and maturities.

The fair values of impaired loans and advances, whether fixed or floating are represented by their
carrying values, net of individua!l and callective allowances, being the reasonable estimate of recoverable
amount.

Other assets and liabilities

The carrying value less any estimated allowance for financial assets and liabilities included in other
assets and other liabilities are assumed o approximate their fair values as these items are not materially
sensitive to the shift in market interest rates.

Deposits from customers, banks and other financial institutions
Bills and acceptances pavable

The carrying values of deposits and liabilities with maturities of six months or less are assumed to be
reasonable estimates of their fair vaiues. Where the remaining maturities of deposits and liabilities are
above six manths, their estimated fair values are arrived at using the discounted cash fiows based on
prevailing market rates currently offered for similar remaining maturities.

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, which include non-interest bearing deposits,
approximates carrying amount which represents the amount repayable on demand.

Recourse obligation on loans sold to Cagamas Berhad

For floating rate loans sold to Cagamas Berhad, the carrying value is generally a reasonable estimate of
their fair values.

The fair values of fixed rate loans sold to Cagamas Berhad are arrived at using the discounted cash flow
methodology at prevailing market rates of similarty profiled loans.
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Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX IV

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF QUR COMPANY FOR THE FYE 31
DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont'd)

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD (23z218.w)

(Incorporated in Mataysta)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

51 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are based on the following methodologies and

assumptions {continued):-

Borrowings

For fixed rate borrowings, the estimate of fair value is based on discounted cash flow mode! using prevailing

lending rates for borrowings with similar risks and remaining term to maturity.
For floating rate borrowings, the carrying value is generally a reasonable estimate of their fair values.

Derivative financial instruments

The fair value of exchange rate and interest rate contracts is the estimated amount the Group would receive

or pay o terminate the contracts at the reporting date.

Fair value measurements

The following table analyse within the fair value hierarchy the assets and liabilities not measured at fair value

at 31 December 2013 but for which fair value is disclosed:-

a) Level 1- quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;

b) Level 2 - inputs other than quoted price included within level 1 that are observable for the assets or
liahility, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

c} Level 3 -inputs for the asset and liahility that are not based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs).
Level 1 level 2 Level 3 Total
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
2013
Financial Assets
Deposits and placement with bank and
other financial institutions 495632 - 495 632

Financial investments held-to-maturity 614,826 - 614,826
{oans, advances and financing 36,613,829 - 36,613,829
Financial Liabilities
Deposits from customers 47,253,987 - 47,253,987
Deposits and placements of banks and

other financial institutions 3,984,399 - 3,984,399
Recourse obligation on loans sold to

Cagamas Berhad 406,113 - 406,113
Borrowings 973,177 - 973,177
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Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX IV

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR COMPANY FOR THE FYE 31
DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS' REPORT THEREON (Cont'd)

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD aziaw)

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

51 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurements (continued)

Group

2012

Financial Assets

Deposits and placement with bank and

other financial institutions

Financial investments heid-to-maturity

Loans, advances and financing

Financial Liabilities

Deposits from customers

Deposits and ptacements of banks and

other financial institutions

Recourse obligation on loans sold to

Cagamas Berhad
Borrowings

Company
2013

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings

2012

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings

Level 2 Level 3 Total
RM000 RM'000 RM'000
522,818 - 522,818
538,370 - 538,370
33,863,596 - 33,863,596
42,870,501 - 42 870,501
4,595,246 - 4,505,246
426,331 - 426,331
972,227 - Q72,227
973,177 - 973,177
972,227 - 972227
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Company No.; 23218-W

APPENDIX IV

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR COMPANY FOR THE FYE 31
DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont’d)

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD 3218w

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

51 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurements (continued)

The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value and classified by leve! of the
following fair value measurement hierarchy:-

Leve!l 1 Level 2 Level 3 # Total
Group RM'000 RM'00G RM'000 RM000
2013
Assets
Financial assets held-for-trading - 149,544 - 149,544
Financial investments available-for-sale *
- Private debt securities - 4,623,344 - 4,623,344
- Equity securities 14,177 - 134,312 148,482
- BNM and government securities - 3,006,158 - 3,996,158
Derivative financial assets - 55,776 - 55,776
Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities - 93,868 - 93,868
2012
Assets
Financial assets held-for-trading - 165,592 - 165,592
Financial investments available-for-sale *
- Private debt securities - 5,035,878 - 5,035,878
- Equity securities 16,721 - 120,604 137,325
- BNM and government securities - 4,231,034 - 4,231,034
Derivative financial assets - 66,015 - 66,015
Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities - 59,560 - 59,560

* Net of allowance for impairment
*The Group have determined that the net asset value of unquoted equity securities represents fair

value at the financial year ended 31 December 2013, therefore there is no unobservable input used
for these financial investments classified.
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Company No.: 23218-W APPENDIX IV

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF QUR COMPANY FOR THE FYE 31
DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREQON (Cont'd)

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD (23215 w)

{Incorporated in Malaysia)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

51 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued})

Fair value measurements {continued}

Financial instruments that are valued using quoted prices in active market are classified as Level 1 of the
valuation hierarchy. These would include listed equities which are actively traded.

Where fair value is determined using quoted prices in less active markets or quoted prices for similar
assets and liabilities, such instruments are generally classified as Level 2. In cases where quoted prices
are generally not available, the Group then determine fair value based upon valuation techniques that
use as inputs, market parameters Including but not limited to yield curves, volatilities and foreign
exchange rates. The majority of valuation techniques employ only observable market data and so
reliability of the fair value measurement is high. These would include corporate private debt securities,
corporate notes and most of the Group's Over-the-Counter ("OTC’) derivatives,

The Group classify financial instruments as Level 3 when there is reliance on uncbservable inputs to the
valuation model attributing to a significant contribution to the instrument value. Valuation reserves or
pricing adjustments where applicable will be used to converge to fair value.

The Group may also use valuation models or discounted cash flow technique to determine the fair value.

Most of the OTC derivatives are priced using valuation models. Where derivative products have been
established in the markets for some time, the Group uses meodels that are widely accepted by the
industry.

The valuation techniques and inputs used generally depend on the contractual terms and the risks
inherent in the instrument as well as the availability of pricing information in the market. Principal
techniques used include discounted cash flows, and other appropriate valuation models. OTC derivatives
which are valued using unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity which are
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities are classified as Level 3.

The following table present the changes in Level 3 instruments for the financial year ended:-

2013 2012
Group : RM'000 RM'000
Opening 120,604 120,916
Purchases - 527
Total gains/(losses) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 13,708 {839)
Closing 134,312 120,604

Effect of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to reasonably possible alternative

As at reporting date, financial instruments measured with valuation techniques using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) mainly include unquoted shares held for socio economic purposes.

In estimating its significance, the Group used an approach that is currently based on methodologies used for
fair value adjustments. These adjustments reflect the values that the Group estimates are appropriate to
adjust from the valuations produced to reflect for uncertainties in the inputs used. The methodologies used
can be statistical or other relevant approved techniques.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

52 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

{a) Financial assets

The following financial assets are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar

agreements.
Gross amounts of  Net amounts of
Gross amounts  recognised financial  financial assets
of recognised liabilities set offin  presented in the
financial assets the balance sheet balance sheet
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
2013
Trade receivables
- Amount due from Bursa Securities Clearing
Sdn Bhd 1,185,902 {1,185,902) -
2012
Trade receivables
- Amount due from Bursa Securities Clearing
Sdn Bhd 203,387 {116,531) 86,856

(b} Financial liabilities

The following financial liabilities are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements.

Gross amounts of Net amounts of
Gross amounts  recognised financial  financial liabilities
of recognised assets set off in presented in the
financial liabilities the balance sheet balance sheet
Group RM'000 RM000 RM'000
2013
Trade payables
- Amount due to Bursa Securities Clearing _
Sdn Bhd 1,206,707 (1,185,902) 20,805
2012
Trade payables
- Amount due to Bursa Securities Clearing
Sdn Bhd 116,531 (116,531} -
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53 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO BURSA MALAYSIA SECURTIES
BERHAD LISTING REQUIREMENTS
Realised and unrealised unappropriated profits

On 25 March 2010, Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“"Bursa Malaysia") issued a directive to all listed
issuers pursuant to Paragraphs 2.06 and 2.23 of Bursa Malaysia Main Market Listing Requirements. The

directive requires all listed issuers to disclose the breakdown of the unappropriated profits or
accumulated losses into realised and unrealised profits or losses as at the end of the reporting period.
On 20 December 2010, Bursa Malaysia had also issued a guide to all listed issuers on the disclosure

requirement for the realised and unrealised unappropriated profits and losses,

Pursuant to the above directives, the breakdown of retained profits of the Group and Company into

realised and unrealised profits as at reporting date is disclosed as follows:-
Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012
RM'000 RM’000 RM'Q00 RM'000

Total retained profits of AFFIN Holdings Berhad
and its’s subsidiaries:-

~ Realised 1,675,523 1,450,553 635,670 580,340
- Unrealised
- deferred tax recognised in the income statement 14,676 14,579 (108} (143)
- ather items of income and expenses 40,596 45,250 - -

1,730,795 1,510,382 635,562 580,197
Total share of retained profits in associate:-
- Realised 187,712 167,302 -
- Unrealised . 3,527 2,452 -

Total share of retained profits/{losses) in jointly

controlled enfities:-
- Realised {19,690) {20,511) -
- Unrealised 4,610 -

1,906,954 1,659,625 635,562 580,197

Add: Consolidation adjustments 90,588 87,465 -

Total Group retained profits as per consclidated
financial statements 1,897,542 1,747,090 635,562 580,197

The breakdown of realised and unrealised retained profits is determined based on the Guidance of
Special Matter No. 1 "Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of
Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements” issued by the Malaysian

Institute of Accountants on 20 December 2010.

The unrealised retained profits of the Group as disclosed above does not include translation gains and
losses on monetary items denominated in a currency other than the functional currency and foreign
exchange contracts. These translation gains and losses are incurred in the ordinary course of business

of the Group and hence deemed as realised.

The above disclosure of realised and unrealised unappropriated profits and losses is sfrictly for the
compliance of the disclosure requiremnents stipulated in the directive issued by Bursa Malaysia and

should not be used for any other purposes.
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 169(15) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

We, Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Lodin bin Wok Kamaruddin and Raja Dato' Seri Aman bin Raja Haji Ahmad, two of
the directors of AFFIN Holdings Berhad, state that, in the opinion of the directors, the accompanying financial
statements set out on pages 7 to 135 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2013 and of the results and cash flows of the Group and the
Company for the financial year ended on that date in accordance with the Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in
Malaysia.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with their resolution dated 26 February 2014.

TAN SRI DATO' SERI LODIN BIN WOK RAJA DATO' SERI AMAN BIN RAJA
KAMARUDDIN HAJI AHMAD
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Kuala Lumpur
26 February 2014

DECLARATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 169(16) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

|, Lee Yoke Kiow, the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of AFFIN Holdings Berhad,
do solemnly and sincerely declare that in my opinion, the financial statements set out on pages 7 to 135 are
cerrect and | make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the
provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

LEE YOKE KIOW™

Subscribed and solemnly dg Y Lee Yoke Kiow at Kuala Lumpur in Malaysia on 26

February 2014, before me.

Mehd Zainal
Abiddin Bin

COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS

Lot 1.68, 1% Floer,
Wisma Cesway, Jalag Raja Chulam.
50200 Kuala Lumpur,
Tel: 03-91725900
H/P: 012-3766796 196
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Company No. 23218-W)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAT, STATEMENTS

We have audited the financial statements of AFFIN Holdings Berhad, which comprise the statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2013 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of
income, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and of the Company for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as
set out on Note 1 to Note 52 on pages 7 to 136.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, and for
such internal controls as the Directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibilitv

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial stateinents are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers (AF 1146), Chartered Accountants,
Level 10, 1 Sentral, Jalan Travers, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, P.O. Box 10192, 50706 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
T: +60 (3) 2173 1188, F: +60 (3) 2173 1288, www.pwc.com/my

137
222



Company No.: 23218-W APPENDIX IV

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR COMPANY FOR THE FYE 31
DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont’d)

pwec

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD (CONTINUED)
(Company No. 23218-W)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements
of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as {o give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Group and of the Company as of 31 December 2013 and of their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the
following:

a} In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept
by the Company and its subsidiaries have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions
of the Act.

b} We are satisfied that the financial statemenis of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated
with the Company's financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the
purposes of the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and we have received
satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes.

¢) Our audit reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries did not contain any
qualification or any adverse comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act.

OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES

The supplementary information set out in Note 53 on page 137 is disclosed to meet the requirement
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The directors are
responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on
Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of
Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants ("MIA Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary information is prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD (CONTINUED)
{Company No. 23218-W)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

QTHER MATTERS
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section

174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

Qe fednGoon A

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS 500 HOO KHOON YEAN
{(No. AF: 1146) (No. 2682/10/15 (J))
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur
26 February 2014
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR COMPANY FOR THE 3-MONTH

FPE 31 MARCH 2014

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD

(Company no. 23218 - W)

Condensed Interim Financial Statements

Unaudited Statements of Kinancial Position As At 31 March 2014

ASSETS

Cash and short-term funds

Deposits and placements with banks and other
financial institutions

Trade receivables

Financial assets held-for-trading

Financial investments available-for-sale

Financial investments held-to-maturity

Derivative financial assets

Loans, advances and finaneing

Other assets

Statutory deposits with Bank Negara Malaysia

Amount due from subsidiaries

Amount due from asscciate

Investment in subsidiarics

Investment in jointly controlled entities

Investment in associate

Tax recoverable

Deferred tax assets

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Deposits from customers

Deposits and placements of banks and other
financial institutions

Bills and acceptances payable

Trade payables

Derivative financial liabilities

Recourse obligation on loans soid to Cagamas Berhad

Other liabilitics

Provision for taxation

Deferred tax liabilities

Amount duc to subsidjaries

Borrowings

TOTAL LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Share capital

Reserves:-
Share premium
Statutory reserves
AFS revaluation reserves
Retained profits

TOTAL EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

NET ASSETS PER SHARE (RM}

CERTAFIED TRUE COPY

NIMMA SAF(RA KHALID
Company Secretury
AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD

g — GROUP > < COMPANY -~eommmun >
31/3/2014 31/12/2013 31/3/2014 31/12/2013
Note  RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
6,592,076 9,331,374 243,189 131,710
347,068 468,585 4,496 4,460

A9 297,129 176,706 - -
ALD 5,019 149,544 . .
AlD 9,558,223 8,767,991 - -
AlO 622,263 624,033 - -
59,157 55,776 - .

All 37,766,169 36,909,384 - -
Al2 302,134 309,011 68,502 68,494
1,633,712 1,545,144 - -

- - 603,929 904,972

67,226 67,257 67,226 67,257

. - 3,882,882 3,582,882

137,504 135,539 146,880 146,880
211,122 208,396 10,681 10,681

16,804 11,316 5,585 5,173

5193 14,475 . -

161,539 167,038 422 470

1,008,387 1,009,988 - 1
58,790,725 50,951,557 5,033,792 4,922,980

BS 46,304,101 47,353,514 - -
BS 3,502,636 3,983,912 - .
98,032 0,208 - -

311,427 179,078 . .

70,062 93,868 - -

394,007 397,790 . -

Al3 576,101 467,454 17,156 19,634
32,465 36,405 - -

1,612 172 108 108

. - 400,258 400,258

BS 972,238 972,432 972,218 972,432
52,263,581 53,574,833 1,389,760 1,392,432
1,494,576 1,494,576 1,494,576 1,494,576
1,400,410 1,400,410 1,400,410 1,400,410

1,469,048 1,469,048 - -
22,840 15,148 - .
2,140,270 1,997,542 749,046 635,562
6,527,144 6,376,724 3,644,032 3,530,548
58,790,725 59,951,557 5,033,792 4,922,980
23,489,905 22,222 815 - -

4.37 427

The Condensed Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements of the Group for the

financial year ended 31 December 201 3.
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AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD

{Company no. 23218 - W)

Condensed Interimm Financial Statements
Unaundited Income Statenients For The Financial Period Ended 31 March 2014

GROUP Note

Revenue

Intercst income Al
Interest expense AlS

Net interest income
Net Islamic banking income
Other operating income Al6

Net income
Other operating expenses AlT

Operating profit before alowance for

impairment on loans, advances and financing
Allowance for impairment on loans, advances

and financing Alg

Allowance for impairment on other assets Al9

Operating profit

Finance eost

Share of results of jointly controlled entities

Share of results of associate

Profit before taxation and zakat

Zakat

Profit before taxation

Taxation B6

Net profit for the financial period attributable
to equity holders of the Company

Eamings per share attributable to the equity
holders of the Company (sen)

- Basic and fully diluted B2

<~--Individual Quarter Ended ---> <---Cumulative Quarter Ended -->

31/3/2014 31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/3/2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
764,893 732,762 764,893 732,762
558,983 530,549 558,983 530,549
(340,0013 (309,071) (340,001) (309,071}
218,982 221,478 218,982 221,478
56,733 54,967 56,733 54,967
95,381 95,718 95,381 93,718
371,096 372,163 371,096 372,163
(180,399) (172,435) (180,399) (172,435)
190,697 199,728 190,697 199,728
6,271 13,118 6,271 13,118
207 155 207 155
197,175 213,001 197,175 213,001
(10,579) (10,5013 (10,579) (10,501)
(3,190) 491 (3,190) 491
2,412 534 2,412 534
185,818 203,525 185,818 203,525
(164) 17 (164) 217)
185,654 203,308 185,654 203,308
(42,926) (52,474) (42,926) (52,474)
142,728 150,834 142,728 150,834
9.55 10.09 9,55 10.09

The Conderised Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements of the Group for the

Jinancial year ended 31 Deceniber 2011 3.
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AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Company no. 23218 - W)
Condensed Interitn Financial Statements
Unaudited Statement of Comprehensive Income
For The Financial Period Ended 31 March 2014

<---Individual Quarter Ended —> <-—Cumulative Quarter Ended -->

31/3/2014 31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/3/2013

GROUP RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Profit after taxation 142,728 150,834 142,728 150,834
Other comprehensive income:
- Net fair value change in financial investments

available-for-sale 8,939 (11,302} 8,939 (11,202}
- Deferred tax on revaluation of financial investments

available-for-sale (1,247) 3,404 (1,247) 3,404
Other comprehensive income for the period,

net of tax 7,692 (7,898) 7,692 (7,898)
Total comprehensive income for the finaneial period

attributable to the equity holders of the Company 150,420 142,936 150,420 142,936

The Condensed Financial Statements should be read in confunction with the audited financial statemenis of the Group for the
Jinancial year ended 31 Decemnber 2013,
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AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Company no. 23218 - W)

Condensed Interim Financial Statements
Unzaudited Income Statements For The Financial Period Ended 31 March 2014

COMPANY

Revenue

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Net [slamic banking ineome
Other operating income

MNet ineome

Otber operating expenses

Operating profit before allowance for
impairment on loans, advances and financing

Allowance for impairment on loans, advances and
financing

Allowance for impairment on other assets
Operating profit

Finance cost

Profit before taxation and zakat

Zakat

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Net profit for the financial period attributable
to equity holders of the Company

<---Individual Quarter Ended ---> <—Cumulative Quarter Ended >

31/3/2014 31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/3/2013
RM'000 RM'(00 RM'000 RM'000
128,415 46,591 128,415 46,591

11,757 12,586 11,757 12,586
11,757 12,586 11,757 12,586
116,658 34,005 116,658 34,005
128,415 46,591 128,415 46,591
(4,006) (1,949 {4,006) (1,949)
124,409 44,642 124,400 44,642
124,409 44,642 124,409 44,642
(10,579) {10,501) (10,579) {10,501}
113,830 34,141 113,830 34,141
113,830 34,141 113,830 34,141
(346) (8.471) (346) {(8,471)
113,484 25,670 113,484 25,670

The Condensed Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements of the Group for the

financial vear ended 3 December 2013,
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AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Company no. 23218 - W)
Condensed Interim Financial Statements
Unaudited Statement of Comprehensive Income
Unaudited Income Statements For The Financial Period Ended 31 March 2014

COMPANY <----Individual Quarter Ended ----> <---Cumulative Quarter Ended -->
31/3/2014 31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/3/2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'G00 RM'000
Profit after taxation 113,484 23,670 113,484 25,670

Other comprehensive income - - .

Total comprehensive income for the finaneial period
attributable to equity holders of the Company 113,484 25,670 113,484 25,670

The Condensed Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements of the Group for the
financial vear ended 31 December 2001 3.
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Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX V

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR COMPANY FOR THE 3-MONTH
FPE 31 MARCH 2014 (Cont’d)

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Company no. 23218 - W)
Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
Feor The Financial Period Ended 31 March 2014

< mmmnn 3 months Ended ------ >
31/3/2014 31/3/2013
RM'000 RM'000

CASH FLOWS FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 185,654 203,308
Adjustment for non-operating and non-cash items (90,158) (70,002)
Operating profit before changes in working capital 95,496 133,306
Net changes in operating assets (784,214) 433,766
Net changes-in operating liabilities (1,308,8¢0) 134,227
Payment of tax and zakat (47,499 (52,912)
Tax refund 354 30
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (2,044,663) 648,417
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received from securities 68,564 69,526
Net (purchase)/disposal of:

- securities (774,366) (134,082)

- property and equipiment 5,648 (5,372}

- intangible assets (150} (864)
Dividend received from:

- financial investments available-for-sale 838 9
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment - 4147
Proceeds from disposal of foreclosed properties 4,916 6,572
Amount due from associate 3 29
Net cash used in investing activities (694,519) (60,035)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in borrowings ) (194) (228)
Net cash used in financing activities (194) {228)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,739,376) 588,154
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 9,321,506 7,359,658
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the pertod 6,582,130 7,947,812
Analysis of cash & cash equivalent
Cash and short-term funds 6,592,076 7,957,161
Adjustment for money held in trust on behalf of remisiers (9,946) (9,349)

6,582,130 7,947 812

The Condensed Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements of
the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2013.
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Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIXV

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR COMPANY FOR THE 3-MONTH
FPE 31 MARCH 2014 (Cont’d)

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD (Company No. 23218-W)
Condensed Interim Financial Statements
Explanatory Notes - Finaneial Period Ended 31 March 2014

Part A - Explanatory Notes pursuant to Malaysian Financial Reporting Standard ("MFRS 134") and Revised

Al

A,

A3.

Ad,

Financiat Reporting for Banking institutions ("BNM/GP8") issued by Bank Negara Malaysia

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The unaudited condensed interim financial statements for the period under review have been prepared under the historical
cost convention except for the following assets and liabilities which are stated at fair valucs:-

(i)  fnancial assets held-for-trading,
(i) financial investments available-for-sale, and
(iti) derivative financial instruments.

The unaudited condensed financial statements has been prepared in accordance with MFRS134 Interim Financial Reporting
issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board ("MASB") and Chapter 9, part K of the Listing Requirements of the
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

The unaudited condensed interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements of
the Group and the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013. The explanatory notes to the interim financial statements
provide an cxplanation of events and transactions that are significant to an understanding of the changes in the Group since
the vear ended 31 Decemnber 2013.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND METHODS OF COMPUTATIONS

The significant accounting policies and methods of computation applicd in the condensed interiin financial statements are
cousistent with those applied in the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 except for the adoption
of the following new and revised Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards ("MFRS"), Amendments to MFRSs that are
applicahle and effective to the Group for the financial year begining 1 January 2014 :-

s Amendment to MFRS 10 "Consotidated Financial Statemenls"

o Amendment to MFRS 12 "Disclosures of Interest in Other Entities”

e Amendment to MFRS 127 "Separate Financial Statements™

¢ Amendment to MFRS 132 " Finaneial Instruments; Presentation"”

+ Amcndment to MFRS 136 "Impairment of Assets"

» Amendment to MFRS 139 "Finaneial Instrument: Recognition and Measurement”

The adoption of the above new and revised standards and amendments does not have any impact to the results of the Group
and the Company for the quarter under review.

Classification and Impairmment Provisions for Loans/Financing - Maintenanee of Regulatory Reserve

Pursuant to Pagaraph 13 of the Policy Document on Classification and Impairment Povisions for Loans/Financing, Bank
Negara Malaysia ("BNM") had issued a letter on 4 February 2014, which requires banking institutions to naintain, in
aggregate collective impairinent provisions and regulatory reserves of no less than 1.2% of total outstanding loans/financing
(excluding loans/finaneing with an explieit guarantee from the Federal Govermnment of Malaysia}, net of individual
impaimment provisions. The regulatory reserves is to be maintained in addition to the impairment provisions as required under
the MFRS and it will be set aside from the retained profits to a separate reserve within the equity to further strengthen buffers
against potential losses.

Banking institutions are required to comply with the requirement by 31 December 2015. The adoption of the above 1.2%
collective impairment provisions is not expeeted to have any impact to the profit or loss of the Banking subsidiaries. As the
regulatory reserves does not qualified as common equity Tier | (CET 1) Capital and Tier [ Capital under the BNM's Capital
Adequacy Framework (Capital Components), the adoption of this requireinent will however result in a drop in CET I and Tier
I capital ratios of the banking subsidiaries accordingly.

AUDITOR'S REPORT ON PRECEDING ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTES

The auditors’ report on the audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 was not subjected to
any qualification.

SEASONAL OR CYCLICAL FACTORS

The operations of the Group are generally not affected by any seasonal or cyclical factors buf are in tandem with the country’s
econonlic situation.
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Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX V

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR COMPANY FOR THE 3-MONTH
FPE 31 MARCH 2014 (Cont'd)

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD (Company No. 23218-W)
Condensed Interim Financial Statemenls
Explanatory Notes - Financial Period Ended 31 March 2014

AS,

A6,

AT.

AS.

A9,

ITEMS OF UNUSUAL NATURE, SIZE AND INCIDENCE AFFECTING MET ASSETS, EQUITY, NET INCOME

OR CASH FLOWS

There were no unusual items affecting the assets, liabilities, equity, net income or cash flows of the Group and the Company

during the quarter under review.

CHANGES 1IN ESTIMATES

There were no material changes tn estimates of amounts reported in prior financial years that have a material effect duriug

the quarter under review.

DEBT AND EQUITY SECURITIES

There were no issuance, cancellations, shares, share buy-backs, resale of shares bought back and repayment of debts and

equity securities by the Company.

DIVEDENDS PAID

No dividend has been paid during the quarter under review.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Amount due from stock-broking clients
Amount due from Bursa Securities Clearing Sdn Bhd
Management fces receivable on fund manageiment

Less: Allowance for impaimment
- Collective impairment
- Individual impainment

Movement in alflowance (or impairment on trade receivables:-

Collective impairment

Balance at the beginning of financial period/year
Allowance made during the financia) period/year
Amount recovered during the financial period/ycar

Balance at the end of financial period/year

Individual impairment

Batance at the beginning of financial period/year
Allowance made during the financial period/year
Amount recovered during the financial period/year

Balance at the end of financial period/year

234

Group
31/3/2014 31/1272013
RM’000 RM'000
254,938 178,701
44,352 -
1,459 1,657
300,799 180,358
(63) {1%
(3,607) {(3,633)
297,129 176,706
19 21
45 134
(1) (136)
63 19
3,633 3,575
8 232
(34) (174)
3,607 3,633




Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX V

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR COMPANY FOR THE 3-MONTH
FPE 31 MARCH 2014 (Cont'd)

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD (Company No. 23218-W)
Condensed Interim Financial Stalements
Explanatory Notcs - Firancial Period Ended 31 March 2014

A10. FINANCIAL ASSETS

Group
31/3/2014 31/12/2013

{a) Financial assets held-for-trading RAN7000 RM00C

At lair value

Bank Negara Malaysia Notes - 149,544

Unquated Securities

- Private Debt Securities in Malaysia 5,019 -

Total financial assets held-for-trading 5,019 149,544
(b) Financial investments available-for-sale

At fair value

Malaysian Government Treasury Bills 29,549 -

Malaysian Govermnment Invesiment Issuance 2,474,781 2,361,979

Cagamas Bonds 85,309 85,228

Sukuk Perumahan Kerajaan 388,003 385,742

Khazanah Bonds 291,138 237,441

Bankers' Acceptance and Islamic Acceptance Bills 208,805 196,522

Bank Negara Malaysia Notes 697,992 629,674

MNegotiable Instruments of Deposit and [slamic Debt Certificate 297,722 99,572

4,473,299 3,006,158
Quoted Securities

- Shares in Malaysia 31,237 27,631
- Private Debt Securities in Malaysia 8,868 2,167
Unquoted Securilies

- Shares in Malaysia 174,723 165,656
- Private Debt Securities in Malaysia 4,296,118 4,039,105
- Private Debt Securitics outside Malaysia 666,349 623,725

9,650,594 8,854,442
Allowance for impairment of securities (92,371 (86,451}

Total financiat investments available-for-sale 9,558,223 8,767,991

(¢) Financial investments held-to-maturity
At amortised cost

Quoted Securities

- Private Debt Securities in Malaysia 31,781 31,781
Unquoted Securities
- Private Debt Securities in Malaysia 643,942 648,616
- Redeermable Convertible Unsecured Loan Stock in Malaysia 1,554 1,554
677,277 681,951
Allowance for impairment of securities (55,014) (57,918)
Total financial investments held-to-maturity 622,263 624,033
Total securities held 10,185,505 9,541,568

11
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Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX V

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR COMPANY FOR THE 3-MONTH
FPE 31 MARCH 2014 (Cont’'d)

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD (Company Mo, 23218-W)
Condensed Interim Financial Statements
Gxplanatory Notes - Financial Period Ended 31 March 2014

All,

(a)

(b)

(®)

(@)

LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING

BY TYPE

Overdrafts

Term loans/financing

- Housing loans/financing

- Syndicated term loans/financing

- Hire purchase receivables

- Business term loans/financing

Bills receivables

Trust receipts

Claims on customers under acceptance credits
Staff loans/financing (of which RM NIL to Directors)
Credit/charge cards

Revolving credit

Margin financing

Factoring

Gross loans, advances and financing
Less: Allowance for impairment

- Collective impairment

- Individual impasrment

Total net loans, advances and financing

BY MATURITY STRUCTURE

Maturing within cne year
One year to threc years
Three years to five years
Over five years

BY TYPE OF CUSTOMER

Domestic non-banking institutions
- Stock-broking companies

- Others

Domestic business enterprises

- Small medium enterpriscs

- Others

Government and statutory bodies
Individuals

Other domestic entities

Foreign entities

BY INTEREST / PROFIT RATE SENSITIVITY

Fixed rate

- Housing leans/financing

- Hire purchase receivabies

- Other fixed rate loans/financing
- Margin financing

Variable rate
- BLR plus
- Cost plus

236

Group
31/3/2014 31/12/2013
RN 000 RM000
1,839,566 1,752,882
5,598,264 5,510,534
1,942,952 1,826,170
10,642,533 10,524,044
12,503,570 12,825,662
896,620 318,677
367,234 435,594
1,113,717 986,660
£44,707 146,065
77,523 82,137
3,133,420 2,988,889
63,235 56,705
2,750 7,073
38,325,491 37,460,495
(316,720) (307,142)
{242,602) (243,969)
37,766,169 36,909,384
8243416 7,427,643
5,464,910 5,109,102
5,851,474 6,709,415
18,765,691 18,214,335
38,325,491 37,460,495
239 241
1,590,646 1,622,525
6,391,914 5,932,508
13,545,774 13,847,266
124,517 162,591
15,207,325 15,003,354
237,122 251,166
1,227,954 640,844
38,325,491 37,460,495
324,133 314,506
10,642,532 10,524,043
4,080,120 4,181,013
63,235 56,705
15,131,079 14,098,831
8,084,392 8,285,397
38,325,491 37,460,495
12



Company No.; 23218-W

APPENDIX V

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR COMPANY FOR THE 3-MONTH

FPE 31 MARCH 2014 (Cont'd)

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD (Company No. 2321 8-W)
Condensed Interin Financial Statements
Explanatory Motes - Financial Period Ended 31 March 2014

All. LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING (cont.)
(e) BY ECONOMIC PURPOSE

Construction

Purchase of landed property of which :-
- Residential

- Non-residential

Purchase of securities

Purchase of transport vehicles

Fixed assets other than land and building
Personal use

Credit card

Consumer durable

Merger and acquisilion

Working capital

Others

() BYSECTOR

Primary agriculture

Mining and quarrying

Manufacturing

Electricity, gas and water supply
Construction

Real estate

Wholesale and retail trade and restaurants and hotels
Transport, storage and communication
Finance, insurance and business services
Education, health and others

Household

Others

(2) BY GEOGRAPHICAL DISTRIBUTION

Perlis

Kedah

Pulau Pinang
Perak

Selangor
Wilayah Persekutuan
Negeri Sembilan
Melaka

Johor

Pahang
Terengganu
Kelantan
Sarawak

Sabah

L.abuan

QOutside Malaysia

237

Group
31/3/2014 31/12/2013
RM'000 RNM000

2,190,888 2,082,699
6,014,909 5,985,509
5,345,887 5,009,005
432,757 433,206
11,320,848 11,232,452
240,254 238,059
953,757 941,023
77,523 82,137
869 868
330,171 370,192
13,312,223 10,230,340
1,105,405 854,515
38,325,491 37,460,495
508,582 478,281
624,951 649,621
2,396,520 2,538,773
342,011 359,796
3,708,638 3,467,735
4,866,762 4,702,439
2,055,785 2,166,051
2,022,964 2,069,268
5,114,877 4,465,887
1,104,051 1,408,839
15,348,758 15,146,265
231,592 7,540
38,325,491 37,460,495
98,457 85,125
1,169,816 1,088,305
1,902,616 1,825,875
1,127,997 1,163,213
11,965,362 11,557,789
10,757,074 10,924,938
823,020 813,316
888,038 869,233
3,232,840 3,224,541
753,926 755,143
974,606 989,295
242,290 244,022
1,177,646 1,137,113
1,661,353 1,692,677
534,534 553,770
1,015,856 536,140
38,325491 37,460,495

13



Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX V

UNAUDITED CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR COMPANY FOR THE 3-MONTH
FPE 31 MARCH 2014 (Cont'd)

ABFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD (Company No. 23218-W)
Condensed Interim Financial Statements
Explanalory Notes - Financial Period Ended 31 Mareh 2014

All. LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING (cont.)
(h)y IMPAIRED LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING

(i) Movements of impaired loans, advances and financing

Group
31/3/2014 31/12/2013
RM'060 RM'000
Balance at the beginning of financial period/yvear 740,958 790,438
Classified as impaired during the financial period/year 116,799 432,629
Reclassified as non-impaired during the financial period/year (70,903) (298,268)
Amount recovered during the financial period/year (49,720} (132,998)
Amount written-off during the financial period/year {974) (50,843)
Balance at the end of financial period/year 736,158 740,958
(ii) Impaired loans, advances and financing by economic purpose
Construction 141 65,797
Purchase of landed property of which -
- Residential 270,213 272,103
- Non-residential 21,261 23,7467
Purchase of securities 46,291 46,292
Purchase of transport vehicles 78,883 75,350
Fixed assets other than land and building 282 282
Personal use 8,054 7,937
Credit card 449 476
Consumer durable 65,422 14
Working capital 230,658 234,888
Others 14,504 14,112
736,158 740,958
(iii) Impaired loans, advances and finaneing by sector
Primary agriculture 13,209 6,335
Manufacturing 62,814 62,914
Electricity, gas and water supply 190 118
Construction 198,056 193,447
Real estate 190 190
Wholesale and retail trade and restaurants and hotels 43,406 43,373
Transport, storage and communication 9,006 9,542
Finance, insurance and business services 43810 60,065
Education, health and others 1,834 1,868
Household 363,643 363,106
736,158 740,958

238



Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX V

UNAUDITED CCNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR COMPANY FCR THE 3-MONTH
FPE 31 MARCH 2014 (Cont'd)

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD (Company No. 232 [8-W)
Condensed Inlerim Financial Stalemenls
Explanatory Notes - Financial Period Ended 31 March 2014

All,
{h) PMPAIRED LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING {cont.)
(iv) Impaired loans, advances and financing by geographical distribution

(v} Movements in allowance for isnpairment on loans, advances and financing

Al2.

Al3.

LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING (cone,)

Perlis

Kedah

Putau Pinang
Perak

Selangor
Wilayah Persekutuan
Negeri Sembilan
Melaka

Johor

Pahang
Terengganu
Kelantan
Sarawak

Sabah

Outside Malaysia

Collective isnpairment
Balance at the beginning of financial period/year

Allowance (net of write-back) made during the financial period/yvear

Amount written-off during the financial period/year

Balance at the end of financial period/year

Individual impairment

Batance at the beginning of financial pericd/year
Transfer to debt conversicn

Allowance made during the financial period/year
Amount recovered dnring the financial period/year
Amount written-oft during the financial period/year
Unwinding discount of allowance

Exchange difference

Balance at the end of financial period/year

OTHER ASSETS

Cheque clearing accounts

Foreclosed properties

Other debtors, deposits and prepayments
Amount due from jointly controlled entities

OTHER LIABILITIES

Bank Negara Malaysia and Credit Guarantee Corporation Funding Programmes

Margin and collateral deposits
Trust accounts for remisiers
Defined contribution plan
Accrued employee benefits
Ofther creditors and accruals
Provision for zakal

239

Group
31/3/2014 31/12/2013
RE000 R 000

336 472
22,609 23,005
17,846 18,781
15,505 14,081
350,572 352,921
126,348 117,927
28,535 28,827
8,733 8,368
45,873 44,552
11,360 12,038
5,970 5,465
4,288 4,124
13,554 6,290
11,759 11,298
72,867 90,809
736,158 740,958
307,142 330,797
11,779 13,913

(2,201) {(37,568)
316,720 307,142
243,969 230,640
(6,279) .
7,531 49,053

{2,087 (5,181)

. (12,974)

(563) (17,825)

31 256
242,602 243,969
167,644 169,141
12,445 15,825
110,222 119,858
11,823 4,187
302,134 309,011
28,991 27,897
123,997 108,258
9,946 9,868
9,772 13,912
1,012 1,060
392,390 295,057
6,993 11,402
576,101 467.454

15



Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX V

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR COMPANY FOR THE 3-MONTH
FPE 31 MARCH 2014 (Cont'd)

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD (Company No. 23218-W)
Condensed Interim Financial Statements
Explanatory Motes - Financial Period Ended 31 March 2014

Al4d.

AlS.

INTEREST INCOME

Loans, advances and financing
Money at call and deposit with financial institutions
Reverse repurchase agreements with
financial institutions
Financial assets held-tor-trading
Financial investinents available-for-sale
Financial investments held-to-maturity
Derivatives
Subordinated term loan
Others

Amortisation of premium less accretion of discount

The above interest income includes interest/income
earned on impaired loans, advances and firancing
- Unwinding discount of allowance (Net)

INTEREST EXPENSE

Deposits and placements of banks
and other financtal institutions

Deposits from customers

Loans sold to Cagamas Berhad

Derivatives

Others

< Group >
Individual Quarter Ended  Cumulative Quarter Ended
31/3/2014 31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/3/2013
RM'000 RM' (00 RM*000 RM™ 000
412,952 399,822 412,952 399,822
34,227 36,327 34,227 36,327
- 151 - 151
50 129 50 129
63,329 64,458 63,329 64,458
5,235 5,068 5,235 5,068
34,894 19,873 34,896 19,873
1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308
23 21 23 21
552,020 527,157 552,020 527,157
6,963 3,392 6,963 3,392
558,983 530,549 558,983 530,549
(1,310) {405) (1,310 (405)
20,264 24,236 20,204 24,236
279,453 257,864 279,453 257,864
4,653 4,849 4,653 4,849
34,732 21,468 34,732 21,468
8§99 654 899 654
340,001 309,071 340,001 309,071
16
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Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX V

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR COMPANY FCR THE 3-MONTH

FPE 31 MARCH 2014 {Cont'd)

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD (Company No. 23218-W)
Condensed Interim Financial Stalements
Explanatory Notes - Finaneia! Period Ended 31 March 2014

Als. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
<<

>

Group

EIndividual Quarter Ended

Cumulative Quarter Ended

31/3/2014 31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/3/2013
RM™000 RM000 RM'000 RM'000
Fee income :
Net brokerage 17,773 14,137 17,773 14,137
Underwriting fees - 199 - 199
Portfolio managemnent fees 3,921 3,496 3,921 3,496
Corporate advisory fees 2,041 1,518 2,041 1,518
Commission 3,756 3,405 3,756 3,405
Service charges and fees 15,313 18,331 15,313 18,331
Guarantee fees 5,520 4,850 5,520 4,850
Arrangement fees 90 2,165 90 2,165
Agency fees 523 952 523 952
Other fee income 9,274 126 9,274 126
58,211 49,179 58,211 49.179
Income trom financiai_instruments :
Gains on financial assets held-for-trading
- net gains on disposal 1,459 1,917 1,459 1,917
- unrealised gains 7 6l 7 61
Gains on denvatives
- realised 616 545 616 545
- unrealised 4,057 4,756 4,087 4,756
Gains arising on {inancial investinents available-for-sale
- net gains on disposal 1,118 11,745 1,118 11,745
- gross dividend income 838 94 838 94
Gains arising on financial investments held-to-maturity
- net gains on redemption 2,903 3,213 2,903 3,213
10,998 22,331 10,998 22,331
Other income :
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains :-
- realised (7,565) 30,228 (7.565) 30,228
- unrealised 22,479 {11,579) 22,479 (11,579
Rentat income 379 395 379 395
Gains on disposal of property and equipment 4,681 3,080 4,681 3,080
Gains/(losses) on disposal of foreclosed properties 1,536 (54) 1,536 (54}
Other non-operating income 4,662 2,138 4,662 2,138
26,172 24,208 26,172 24,208
Total other operating income 95,381 95,718 95,381 95,718
17
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Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX V

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR COMPANY FOR THE 3-MONTH
FPE 31 MARCH 2014 (Cont'd)

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD (Company No. 23218-W}
Condensed Inlenm Financial Statements
Cxplanatory Notes - Financial Penod Ended 31 March 2014

Al7, OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

< Group >
Individual Quarter Ended  Cumulative Quarter Ended
31/3/2014 31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/3/2013
RM'000 RM'300 RM'G00 Rv'00
Personnel costs
Wages, salaries and bonus 85,614 83,232 85,614 83,232
Defined contribution plan 13,983 13,505 13,983 13,505
Other personnel costs 10,491 10,679 10,491 10,679
110,088 107,416 110,088 107,416
Promotion and marketing-related expenses
Business promotion and advertisement 1,508 1,883 1,508 1,883
Entertainment 600 1,086 600 1,086
Travelling and accommodation 941 968 941 968
Dealers' handling fees 453 389 453 389
Others 660 739 660 739
4,162 5,065 4,162 5,065
Establishment-related expenses
Rental of premises 7,432 7,161 7,432 7,161
Equipment rental 314 280 314 280
Repair and maintenance 8,236 8,036 8,236 8,039
Depreciation of property and equipment 4,460 4,854 4,460 4,854
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,801 2,203 1,801 2,203
[T consultancy fee 13,745 16,731 13,745 16,731
Dalaline renta} 1,232 760 1,232 760
Security services 4,032 3,606 4,032 3,006
Electricity, water and sewerage 2,651 2,408 2,651 2,408
[nsurance and indemnitics 807 1,239 807 1,239
Others 999 1,192 999 1,192
45,709 47,873 45,709 47,873
General and administrative expenses
Telecoinmunication expenses 2,289 2,004 2,289 2,004
Directors' remuneration 642 555 642 555
Auditors' remuneration:-
(1) Stattory audit 461 446 461 446
(i1} Under provision in prior year - 1 - I
(111} Audit related fees 7 2 7 pA
(iv) Non audit fees 60 25 60 25
Professional fees 2,032 1,935 2,032 1,935
Property and equipment written-off 23 - 23 -
Postage and courier charges 959 878 959 878
Stationery and consumables 1,907 2,402 1,907 2,402
Commission and brokerage expenses 815 865 815 865
Donations 2,879 553 2,879 553
Settlement, clearing and bank charges 1,995 1,908 1,995 1,998
Stamp duties 1,408 57 1,408 57
Write-back of litigation losses - 4,321) - (4,321)
Commisioned dealers representative
performance incentive 1,013 787 1,013 787
Subscription fees 587 535 587 535
Transaction levy 533 414 533 414
Subsidies and allowances 239 307 239 307
Olhers 2,591 2,638 2,591 2,638
20,440 12,081 20,440 12,081
Total other operating expenses 180,399 172,435 180,399 172,438
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Al8.

Al9.

ALLOWANCE FOR IMPAIRMENT ON LOANS,

ADVANCES AND FINANCING

Collective impairment
- made during the financial year

Individual impairment
- made during the financial year
- written-back during the tinancial year

Bad debts
- recovered
- written-off

Additional allowance for impaired debts
- other debtors

ALLOWANCE FOR IMPAIRMENT ON
OTHER ASSETS

Write-back of allowance for impairment loss on
- Financial investments available-for-sale

<.

>

Group

Individual (uarter Ended

Cumulative Quarter Ended

31/3/2014  31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/3/2013
RM 000 RM’000 RM'000 RM*000
11,397 7,330 11,397 7330
7,539 3,416 7,539 3,416
(2,121 {1,541) (2,121 (1,541)
(24,529) (23,434) (24,529) (23,434)
1,416 1,089 1416 1,089
27 2 27 22
(6,271) (13,118) 6,271) (13,118)
(207) (155) (207) (155)
(207) (155) (207) (155)
19
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A2). SEGMENTAL INFORMATION ON REVENUE AND PROFIT

The segment analysis by activity for the individual and cumulative quarters ended 31 Mareh 2014 and 31 March 2013 are as

follows:-
O Individual and cumulative guarter ended 31 March Z2014-—----——>
Commercial  Investinent
RM 000 Banking Banking [nsurance Others  Eliminations Group
Segment revenue 698,834 62,002 - 2,730 - 763,566
Intersegment revenue 10,071 5,486 - 387 {15,944)
Unallocated revenue - - 1,327 - 1,327
Revenue 708,905 67,438 - 4,444 (15,944) 764,893
Segment resulls 174,912 13,883 - 629 10,080 199,504
Unallocated expenses - - - (12,908}
Share of results oft
- jointly controlled entities (net of tax) (3,190 - - (3,190)
- associate (net of tax) - 2412 - - 2,412
Profit before taxation and zakat 185,818
Taxation and zakat (43,090)
Net profit for the individual and cuinuiative quarter 142,728
Commommemem- |ndividual and cumulative quarter ended 31 March 2013 ----onuens >
Commercial Investment
RM '000 Banking Banking Insurance Others  Eliminations Group
Segment revenue 670,317 58,387 - 2,722 - 731,426
Inlersegment revenue 10,218 6,364 - 353 {16,93%) -
Unallocated revenue - - 1,336 - 1,336
Revenue 680,535 64,751 - 4,411 (16,935) 732,762
Segiment results 185,101 16,608 655 11,250 213,614
Unallocated expenses - - - (11,114 - (11,114)
Share of results of}
- jointly controlled entities {net of tax) - - 507 (16} - 491
- associale (net of 1ax) - 534 - - 534
Profit before taxaticn and zakat 203,525
Taxation and zakat {52,691}
Net profit for the individual and cumulative quarter 150,834
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A2%. SUBSEQUENT MATERIAL EVENT

There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date that require disclosure or adjustments to
the unaudited condensed interim financial statements other than those disclosed in Note B (7).

A22. CHANGES IN THE COMPOSITION OF THE GROUP

There were no significant changes in the composition of the Group during the cuirent financial quarter
under review.
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A24, DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont.)
Foreign exchange and interest rate related contracts are subject to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the potential change in value caused by movement in market rates or prices. The contractual amounts
stated above provide only a measure of involvement in these types of fransactions and do not represent the amount
subject to market risk. Exposure to market risk may be reduced through offsetting on and off-balance sheet positions. As
at the reporting date, the notional amount of foreign exchange exposure which was not hedged and hence, exposed to
market risk was RM27.0 million (FYE 31/12/2013: RM 1.0 million), while the notional amount of interest rate contract
was RM1,927.3 million (FYE 31/12/20%3; RM1,813.0 million).

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that a counter-party may be unable to meet the terms of a contract in which the
commercial bank has a gain position. As at the reporting date, the minounts of foreign exchange and interest rate credit
risk, measured in terms of the cost to replace the profitable contracts, was RM167.7 million (FYE 31/12/2013: RM146.8
million) and RM135.0 miliion (FYE 21/12/2013: RM 118.5 million) respectively. This amount will increase or decrease
over the life of the contracts, mainly as a function of maturity dates and market rates or prices.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk on derivatives is the risk that the derivative position cannot be closed out promptly. The exposure to

liquidity risk is mitigated by entering into transactions where the underlying financial instruments are widely traded and
also easily closed out through aliernative markets.

Cash Requirement of the Derivatives

Cash requirements of the derivatives may arise from margin requirements to post cash collateral with eounterparties as
the fair value moves beyond the agreed upon threshold limits in the counterparties’s favour, or upon downgrade in the
Bank’s credit ratings. As at the reporting date, there is no requirement for the Group to post any additional cash collaleral
on its derivative contracts.

Related Accounting Policies

The related aceounting policies for off-balance sheet financial instruments applied in the condensed interim financial
statements are consistent with those applied in the annual financial statements for the yvear ended 31 December 2013,
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A25. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value and classified by level of the following fair
value measurement hierarchy:-

(a) Level 1 - quoted price (unadjustcd) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities
(b) Lewvel 2 - inputs other than quoted price included within level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability,
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and
{c) Level 3 - inputs for the asset and liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).
Group
Level [ Level 2 Level 3% Total
RM™000 RM* 000 RM*000 RM'000
31/3/2014
Assets
Financial assets held-for-trading - 5,019 - 5,018
Financial investments available-for-sale *
- Private debt securities - 4,923,189 - 4,923,189
- Equity securities 24,482 - 137,253 161,735
- BNM and govermment securities - 4,473,299 “ 4,473,299
Derivative financial assets - 59,157 - 59,157
Liabilities
Derivaiive financial liabilities - 70,062 - 70,062
31/12/2013
Assets
Financia! assets held-for-trading - 149,544 - 149,544
Financial investments available-for-sale *
- Private debt securities - 4,623,344 - 4,623,344
- Equity securities 14,177 - 134,312 148,489
- BNM and government securities - 3,996,158 - 3,996,158
Perivative financial assets - 55,776 - 55,776
Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities - 93,868 - 93,868

* Net of allowance for impairment

# The Group have determined that the net asset value of unquoted equity seecurities represents fair value at the
financial year ended 31 December 2013, therefore there is no unobservable input used for these financial
investments classified.

Financial instruments that are valued using quoted prices in active market are classified as Level | of the valuation
hierarchy. These would include listed equitics which are actively traded.

Where fair value is determined using quoted prices in less active marketls or quoted priees for similar assels and
liabilities, such instruments are generaily classified as Level 2. In cases where quoted prices are generally not available,
the Group then determine fair value based upon vajuation techniques that use as inputs, market parameters including but
not limited to yield curves, volatilities and foreign exchange rates. The majority of valuation techniques employ only
observable market data and so reliability of the fair value measurement is high. These would include corporate private
debt securities, corporate notes and most of the Group's Group's Over-the-Counter ("OTC’) derivatives.

The Group classify financial instruments as Level 3 when there is reliance on unobservable inputs to the valuation
model attributing to a significant contribution to the instrument value. Valuation reserves or pricing adjustments where
applicable will be used to converge to fair value.
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AZS. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (comt.}
The Group may also use valuation models or discounted cash flow technique to determine the fair value.

Most of the OTC derivatives are priced using valuation models. Where derivative products have been
established in the markets for some time, the Group uses models that are widely accepted by the industry,

The valuation techniques and inputs used generally depend on the eontractual terms and the risks inherent in
the instrument as well as the availability of pricing information in the market. Principal techniques used
include discounted cash flows, and other appropriate valuation models. OTC derivatives which are valued
using unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity which are significant to the fair
value of the assets or liabilities are classified as Level 3.

The following table present the changes in Level 3 instruments for the financial year ended:-

Group
31/3/2014 31/12/2013
RIM'000 RM’000
Opening 134,312 120,604
Total gains recognised in Other Comprehensive 2,941 13,708
Closing 137,253 134,312

Effect of changes in significant unebservable assumptions to reasonably possible alternative

As at reporting datc, financial instruments mecasured with valuation techniques using signifieant uncbservable
inputs (Level 3) mainly include unquoted shares held for socio economic purposes.

In estimating its significance, the Group used an approach that is currently based on methodologies used for
fair value adjustments. These adjustments reflcct the valucs that the Group estimates are appropriate to adjust
from the valuations produced to reflect for uncertainties in the inputs used, The methodologies used can be
statistical or other relevant approved techniques.
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A26. CAPITAL ADEQUACY

With effect from 1 January 2013, the total eapital and capital adequacy ratlios of the Group are computed in accordance with Bank Nepara
Malaysia's Capilal Adequacy Framework (Capital Components) dated 28 Novembet 2012, In linc with the transitional atrangements
undey the Bank Negara Malaysia's Capital Adequaey Framework (Capital Components), the minimum capital adequacy requirement tor
Common Equity Tier 1 ("CET I") Capital Ratic and Tier I Capital Ratio arc 3.5% and 4.5% respeetively for year 2013, The minimum
regulatory capital adequacy requircment remains at 8.0% (2013: 8.0%) for total capital ratio.

All banking subsidiaries namely, AFFIN Bank, AFFIN Islamic Bank and AFFIN Investinent Bank have complied with the above
minimum regulatory capital adequacy requirement as at 31 March 2014, The components of CET 1, Tier | and Tier II capitai, breakdown
of risk-weighted assets and capital adequacy ratios of the banking subsidiaries as at the reporting date ave surmimarised below :-

AFFIN Bank AFFIN Islamic Bank AFFIN Investiment
31732014 31/12/2013  31/3/2004  31/12/2013  31/3/2014  31/12/2013
RM 000 RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM' 00 RM'000
a) The components of CET [, Tier | and Tier 11 capital :-
CET I/Tier | eapital

Share capital 1,621,430 1,518,337 360,000 360,000 222.246 222,246
Share premium 726,244 529,337 . - 142,270 142,270
Statutory reserves 1,144,350 1,144,350 173,026 173,026 202,821 202,821
Retained profit 707,018 F9B,L18 178,966 [78,966 45,121 70,679
Unrealised gains/(tosses) on AFS 9,725 6,533 {7,794) (9,112) 1,558 2,762

4,208,767 3,996,675 704,198 702,880 614,016 640,778
Less: Regulatory adjustments:-

- Goadwill (137,323) (137,323) - - (54,572 (54,648)
- Deferred tax asscts (8,553) (8,553) (773} (773) (2,783) (1,879
- 55% of cunmulative gains ol AFS {5,34%) (3,593) - - {856) (1,518)
- Investments in subsidiaries (77.818) - (130) - {7.279) 6,504)
Total CET 1 Capital 3,979,724 3,847,206 703,295 702,107 548,526 573,829
Total Tier | Capital (a) 3,979,724 3,847,206 703,295 F02,107 548,526 573,829
Tier ! capita)
Subordinated loans 480,000 810,000 - - - -
Collective impairment # 127,522 123,103 20,729 20,470 6,472 6,847
Less: - Investment in subsidiaries (311,272) (389,088) {520 (650) (6,472) (6,847)
Total Tier 1l Capital (b) 296,250 544,015 20,209 19,820 . -
Total Tier [ & 11 Capital {a) + (b) 4,275,974 4,391,221 723,504 721,927 548,526 573,829
Capital base before proposed dividends 4,275,974 4,391,221 723,504 721,927 548,520 573,829
Proposed dividends ; (91,100) . - . (25,558)
Capital base after proposed dividends 4,275,974 4,300,121 723,504 721,927 548,526 548,271

b) The breakdown of risk-weighted assets :-

Credit risk 31,405,341 31,911,266 4943530 4,712,068 1,595,835 1,480,154
Market risk 411,931 296,107 13,005 3,570 37,665 296,735
Operational risk 1,911,707 1,902,412 344,048 339,365 247,463 249,689
Total risk-wcighted assets 33,728,979 34,109,785 5300,583 5,055,003 1,880,963 2,026,578

c) Capital adequacy ratios :-

Before deducting proposed dividends:-

CET I Capitai Ratio 11.799% 11.279%  13.268%  [3.889%  29.162%  28.315%
Tier 1 Capital Ratio 11.799% 11.279%  13.268%  13.889%  29.162%  28.315%
Tetal Capital Ratio 12.677% 12.874%  13.650%  14.281%  29.162%  28.315%
After deducting proposed dividgnds:-

CET 1 Capital Ratio 11.799% 11.012%  13.268%  13.889%  29.162%  27.054%
Tier 1 Capital Ratio L1.799% 11012%  13.268%  13.889%  29.162%  27.054%
Total Capital Ratio 12.677% 12.607%  13.650%  14.281%  29.162%  27.054%

# Qualifying collective impairment is restricted to allowances on (he unimpaired loans, advances and financing.

The Group is currently adopting the Standardised Approach for Credit Risk and Market Risk, and the Basic Indicator Approach for
Operational Risk.
21
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AZ7. OPERATIONS OF ISLAMIC BANKING

{i} Unaudited Eslamic Statcments of Financial Position

ABSETS

Cash and short-term funds

Deposits and placements with banks
and other financial institutions

Derivative financial assets

Financia) investments available-for-sale

Financial investiments held-to-maturity

Loans, advances and finaneing

Other assets

Statutory deposit with Bank Negara Malaysia

Deferred tax assets

Property and equipment

[ntangible assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, ISLAMIC BANKING FUNDS

Deposits from customers
Depaosits and placements of banks
and other financial institutions

Other Liabilities
Provision for tax
Deferred tax liabilities

Total Liabilities

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital
Reserves

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

252

Group
31/3/2014 31/12/2013
RM'000 RM'000

2955417 4,506,301
- 120,046

171 -
1,301,825 1,283,123
86,504 85,064
6,414,425 6,048,876
113,295 46,702
254,700 233,000
1,982 2,960
2,907 3,046
1,473 1,666
11,132,699 12,330,754
8776312 9290,544
1,597,504 2,242,480
33,846 91,282
1,524 2,031

296 -
10,409,482 11,626,337
360,000 360,000
363,217 344,417
723,217 704,417
11,132,609 12,330,754
1,974,878 1,667,189
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A27. OPERATIONS OF ISLAMIC BANKING (cont.)

(ii} Unaudited Islamic Income Statements

Caimemn Gronp >
Endividual Quarter Ended  Cumnulative Quarter Ended
31/3/2014 31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/3/2013
RWV'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
[ncome derived from investment of
depositors' funds and others 113,869 104,593 113,869 104,595
Income derived from investment of
Shareholders' funds 7,695 7,271 7,695 7,271
Allowance for losses on financing (162) (186) (162) (186)
121,402 111,680 121,402 111,680
Income attributable to depositors (72,008} (64,028) (72,008) (64,028)
Income attributable to shareholders 49,394 47,652 49,394 47.652
Other operating expenses (28,379) (25,110) (28,379} (25,116)
21,015 22,536 21,015 22,536
Share of results of a jointly controiled entity - (16) - (L6)
Profit before taxation and zakat 21,015 22,520 21,015 22,520
Zakat - - - .
Profit before taxation 21,015 22,520 21,015 22,520
Taxation (3,217 (5,416) (3,217) (5,416)
Net profit for the financial period attributable
to the equity holders of the Company 17,798 17,104 17,798 17,104
(iii) Unaudited Statements of Comprehensive
Islamic Income
< Group >
Individual Quarter Ended  Cumulative Quarter Ended
31/3/2014 31/3/2013 31/3.2014 31/3/2013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Profit after taxation 17,798 17,104 17,798 17,104
Other comprehensive income:
- Net fair value ehange in financial
investments available-for-sale 1,318 (1,135) 1,318 (1,135)
-~ Deferred tax on revaluation of financial
investments available-for-sale (316) 284 (316) 284
Other comprehensive income for the financial
petiod, net of tax 1,002 (851) 1,002 (851)
Total comprehensive income for the financial
peried attributable to the equity holders of
the Company L 8,800 16,253 18,800 16,253
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A27. OPERATIONS OF ISLAMIC BANKING (cont.)

(iv) Financing

By type

Cash line

Term financing

- Housing financing

- Syndicated termn financing
- Hire purchase receivables
- Business term financing
Bills receivables

Trust receipts

Claims on customers under accaptance credits
Staff financing

Revolving credit

Less : Allowance for iinpairment
- Collective impairment
- Individual impairment

Total net {inancing

(v) Impaired financing

{a) Movements of impaired financing

Balance at the beginning of financial peried/year

Classified as impaired during the financial period/year
Reclassified as non-impaired during the financial period/year
Amount recovered during the financial period/year

Amount writtcn-off during the financial period/year

Balance at the end of financial period/year

(b) Movements in the allowance for impairment on financing

Collective impairment

Balance at the beginning of financial period/year
Additional allowance for impairment during the financial period/year
Amount written-off during the financial period/year

Balance at the end of finaneial period/year

Individual impairment

Balance at the beginning of financial period/year
Aliowance for impairment during the financial period/ycar
Amount recovered during the financial period/year
Unwinding of discount of allowance

Exhange difference

Balance at the end of financial period/year

254

Group
31/3/2014 31/12/2013
RM’000 RM’000
193,429 182,947
1,737,974 1,712,692
265,213 268,072
1,846,089 1,795,689
1,793,978 1,610,756
1,375 32,260
21,439 25,702
117,677 67,474
10,424 10,880
495,236 410,707
6,482,834 6,117,179
(35,259} (33,719)
(33,150) {34,584)
6,414,425 6,048,876
131,630 129,792
24,443 69,047
9,177 (45,9604)
(7,467) (19,782)
- (1,463)
136,429 131,630
33,719 34,936
1,540 242
- (1,459)
35,259 33,719
34,584 35,095
649 690
(1,965) {434)
20 (1,045)
(97) 278
33,150 34,584
30
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A27. OPERATIONS OF ISLAMIC BANKING (cont.)

(vi) Deposits from customers

By type of deposits
Non-Mudharabah Funds

Demand deposits
Savings deposits
Murabahah term deposits

Mudharabah Funds
Demand deposits

Savings deposits

General investment deposits
Special investment deposits

Total deposits from customers

255

Group

31/3/2014 31/12/2013

RM’ 000 RM’000
2,311,414 2,717,722
243,759 227,884
2,237,396 1,021,789
4,792,569 3,967,305
41,477 37,631
143,109 136,702
3,027,447 4,574,624
771,710 574,192
3,083.743 5,323,149
8,776,312 9,290,544
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Part B - Explanatory MNotes pursuant to Appendix 9B of the Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad

Bl. REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY AND ITS PRINCIPAL SUBSIDEARIES

The Group reported a tower profit before tax and zakat ("PBT") of RM185.8 million for the current financial quarter
ended 31 March 2014 as compared to RM203.5 million for the preceding year's corresponding quarter, mainly due to
higher allowance for loan impairment of RM6.8 million and higher overhead expenses of RM8.0 million. The increase
in Islamic banking income and share of profit in associate of RM1.8 million and RM1.9 million respectively were
however offset by the share of losses in jointly conirolled entities of RM3.2 million as compared to share of profits of
RMO.5 million for the preceding year's comesponding quarter.

Commetrcial Banking

The results of the commercial banking segment is mainly attributable to the AFFIN Bank Berhad ("ABB") Group
which registered a lower PBT of RM175.3 million for the current financial quarter as compared to RM185.1 million
for the preceding year's corresponding quarter. This was mainiy due fo reduction in other operating income of RM6.0
million and the increase in allowance for loan impairment of RMS5.8 million, net of higher [slamic banking income of
RM .8 million for the quarter under review.

The wholly-owned subsidiary, namely AFFIN Islamic Bank Berhad also registered a lower PBT of RM21.0 million for
the quarter under review as compared to RM22.5 million {or the same period last year, mainly due to higher overhead
expenses of RM3.3 million net of higher net financing income of RM1.7 miilion.

[nvestment Banking

The results of the investment banking is attributed to the AFFIN Investinenl Bank Berhad ("AIBB") Group which
reported a lower PBT of RM13.9 million for thc current financial quarter as compared to RM16.6 million for the
preceding year's corresponding quarter. For the quarter under review, the othcr operating income increased by 22.1%
or RM6.0 million mainly due to higher fee income of RM11.4 millon net of lower gains on investment of RM3.6
million. On the other hand, the overhead expenses also increased by 33.2% or RMB.1 million mainly attributable to
the write-back of provision for litigation losses of RM4.3 million in 2013 and higher personnel cost of RM2.5 million.

As for AFFIN Fund Management Berhad (a wholly-owned subsidiary of AIBB), the Company reported a higher PBT
of RM7.4 million as compared to RM1.2 million achieved in the previous year. The improved performance was
mainly due to higher upfront fees on sales of unit trust of RME.0 million, net of higher overhead expenses of RM2.1
million for the current financial quarter.

Insurance

The results of the insurance segment was made up of the results of AXA AFFIN Life Insurancc Berhad ("AALI") and
AXA AFFIN General Insurance Berhad {"AAGI") as follows:-

AXA AFFIN Life Insurance Berhad ("AALI") reported a pre-tax loss of RML.6 million for the cunent financial
quarter as compared to the pre-tax profit of RMO0.7 million for the preccding year's corresponding quarter, mainly due
to the deficit of RM V.8 million of the Lifc Fund Revenue Account ("NPF") as compared to a surplus of RM0.7 million
achieved in the previous year. The deficit of the NPF for current financial quarter was mainly attributable to higher
reserves for future policyholders' fiabilities of RM 1.6 million arising from lower MGS yield as well as lower realised
and unrealised gains on investments of RM0.5 million. Included in the share of results in AALI of RM3.2 million for
the quarter under review was an adjustment of RM2.2 million on over-recognition of Group's share of profit for the
previous financial year, mainly due to additional tax charge of RM35.2 million provided by the Company.

AXA AFFIN General Insurance Berhad ("AAGI") reported a higher pre-tax profit of RM14.7 million for the current
financiai quarter as compared to RM2.5 million for the preceding year's corresponding quarter. The improved
performance was mainly due to higher eamed premium of RM47.8 million attributable to health and motor businesses
as well as higher investment income of RM2.7 million for the quarter under review, These were partially offset by the
increase in net claims, overhead expenses and net commission incurred of RM22.6 million, RM11.1 million and
RMS5.1 mitlion respectively. Included in the share of rcsults in AAGI of RM2.4 million for the quarter under review
was an adjustment of RM0.7 million on over-recognition of Group's share of profit for the previous financial year,
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Bi

B2.

B3.

. REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY AND ITS PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES {Cont")

Other business segment

The results of the other business segment is mainly attributable to AFFIN Moneybrokers Sdn Bhd ("AMB") which
reported a slightly lower pre-tax profit of RM471,000 for the current financial quarter as compared to RM503,000 for
the preceding year's corresponding quarter.

COMMENTS ON CURRENT PERFORMANCE AGAINST THE PRECEDING QUARTER'S RESULTS

The Group reported a fower profit before tax and zakat of RM185.8 million for the current financial quarter as
compared to RM219.8 million for the preceding quarter ended 31 Deeember 2013, The loan recoveries {(net of
allowanee for loan impaimment), the net interest income and the share of results in associate were lower by RM24.5
million, RM9.6 million and RMB&.6 million respectively, net of lower overhead expenses of RM14.7 million for the
quarter under review.

PROSPECT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2014

Commercial Banking

For the financial year 2614, the Bank continues to focus on controlied loans and advances growth of which the Bank
will be selective in cxtending credit facilities to customers. The Bank will also be looking at specitic economic sectors
where customers are operating. Consumer demand is expected to soften in light of the property restrietions that camc
into effect early this year as well as higher inflationary pressures. Household loan growth is expected to be moderate in
2014. The Bank is expected to eontinue its momentum in middle and higher end aute segments. Nonetheless, the
combine effect of Bank Negara Malaysia ("BNM"} macro prudential measures and the on-going net interest margin
{"NIM") compression is expected to moderate the growth for Hire Purchase in general.

On a positive note, the Economic Transformation Programme ("ETP") will continue to ofter support to aetivity on the
eorporate front. Projccts committed under ETP worth more than RM200 billion and reportedly only RM40 billion has
been realised as at end September 2013, Hence, much more prospects and projects in the pipeline to be tapped under
SME segment and contract finaneing to pace up the business growth this year.

The Bank expects compgtition for consumer/retail deposits to continue to intensify as all the banks will be looking at
improving their iquidity ratios as per BNM's requirements.

With continuous improvement in productivity and product packaging, our business loans growth is expected to gather
leap to buffer the slowdown of consumer business segment. To realize this expectation, the bank will continue to
actively leverage on Group synergy by exploring potential business opportunities with its major shareholders, the
Lembaga Tabung Angkatan Tentera and the Boustead Group of Companies,

Investment Banking

The Group is optimistic on the potential opportunities in the capital markets from the ongoing impiementation of
projects under the Economic Transformation Programme (ETP) and various domestic economic cortidors. The Group
also looks forward to its equity broking collaboration with Daiwa Securities Group Inc. of Japan and realising the
henefits/synergies from the merger with Hwang-DBS (M) Bhd's investment banking, stockbroking, asset management
and futures businesses.

Insurance

AXA AFFIN Life Insurance ("AALIL)

AALL had been expanding new business rapidly in the past years with a mnulti distribution strategy and expects to
register moderate growth for 2014, amidst an increasingly challenging and competitive environment.

AXA AFFIN General Insurance [FAAGE)

Greater challenges are expected in 2014 given the overall economic constraints and climate in Malaysia, mergers and
acquisitions, rapid development in the legal and regulatory environinent and impact of digital technelogy. Hence,
AAGI strategies and plans for 2014 have been outlined to tackle the challenges with special focus on customer
centricity, better cost management and embrace changes required to reap the benefits of the digital world. AAGI's
investment in human capital and technology will continue as in the past. With these strategies in place, AAGI is
confident that dedicated staff, positive mind set and hard work will deliver the desired results for 2014.
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B4,

BS.

Bé.

HEADLINE KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR ("KPI") FOR YEAR 2014

Based on the current performance, the Board of Directors is of view that the Group will be on track to achieve the
following announced headliue Key Performance indicators {KPIs) for the financial year 2014 :-

As apnounced Actual Achieved
for the financial 3 months ended

Headline KPIs year 2014 31/3/2014
(i} After Tax Retums on Equity (ROE) 5.2% 2.2%
(i} After Tax Retuins on Assets (ROA) 1.1% 0.2%
(ii1) Gross Impaired Loan Ratio 1.84% 1.92%
(iv) Eamings Per Share (EPS) 36.00 sen 9.55 sen

VYVARIANCE OF ACTUAL PROFIT FROM FORECAST PROFIT

There were no profit forecast and profit guarantee issued by the Company.

TAXATION
< Group >
individual Quarter Ended Cumulative Quarter Ended
31/3/2014 31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/3/2013
RM’000 RM 000 RM* 000 RM’000
Malaysian Taxation:-
- Income tax based on profit for the financial year 34,823 35,777 34,823 35,777
Deferred tax:-
- Relating to originating temporary differences 10,040 11,055 10,040 11,055
(Over)funder provision in prior years:-
- Current taxation (1,937 5,042 (1,937 5,642
42,926 52.474 42,926 52,474

The Group's effective tax rate was lower than the prevailing statutory tax rate mainly due to certain income not subject
to tax or subject to lower tax rate, net of certain expenses not deductible for tax purpose.
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B7. STATUS OF CORPORATE PROPOSALS

1) Proposed Acquisition of HwangDBS investment Bank Berhad ("Hwang [B™) including other Financial Services Businesses
of Hwang-DBS (Malaysia) Berhad ("Hwang-DBS™)

On 15 April 2013, the Board of Directors of AFFIN Holdings Berhad {the "Company" or "AHB") announced that Bank Negara
Malaysia {("BNM"} had vide its leiter dated {2 April 2013 stated that it had no objection for AHB to commence preliminary
negotiations with Hwang-DBS to acquire and merge the businesses of Hwang [B including other financial services businesses of
Hwang-DBS with AFFIN banking group.

On 4 September 2013, the Company had entered into an exclusivity agreement with Hwang-DBS in relation to the proposed
acquisition by AHB of 100% interest in Hwang IB and HDM Futures Sdn Bhd ("HDM Futures™), 70% interest in Hwang Investinent
Management Berhad ("Hwang IM") and 49% interest in Asian Islamic Investtment Managewnent Sdn Bhd ("AlIM") ["Proposed
Acquisition”].

On 10 January 2014, the Company had received a letter from BNM advising the Company that the Minister of Finanee has granted its
approvals under the Financial Services Act 2013 for the Proposed Acquisition and the merger of Hwang IB with AFFIN Investment
Bank Berhad ("AIBB") ["Proposed Merger"]. The Securities Comnission Malaysia {"SC") had also approved the Proposed
Acquisition and Proposed Merger on the same day.

On 22 January 2014, the Company entered into a conditional share sale and purchase agreement {("SPA") with Hwang-DBS in
retation {o the Proposed Acquisition. In conjunction with the Proposed Acquisition, the Board of AHB also proposed to undertake the
Proposed Merger.

a) Details of the Proposed Acquisition

The Proposed Acquisition entails the acquisition of the Hwang IB Shares held by Hwang-DBS and the acquisition of the

Minority Shares held by the Minority Shareholder for a purchase consideration of RM1,363 wiltion ("Base Price"), subject ta

NA adjustment as set out in itein 2(b) below, to be fully satisfied in cash {"Purchase Price").

Prior 10 the implementation of the Proposed Acquisition, Hwang-DBS will undertake a pre-closing reorganisation which is an

internal restnicturing exercise of Hwang-DBS involving the following:-

(1) transfer by Hwang-DBS of its 100% interest in HDM Futures to Hwang IB;

(i1) transfer by Hwang-DBS of its 53% interest in Hwang IM to Hwang IB;

(iii) transfer by Hwang-DBS of its 49% interest in AIIM to Hwang IB; and

(iv} transfer by Hwang IB of its 100% interest in HwangDBS Custodian Services Sdn Bhd and its 51% interest in HwangDBS
Vickers Research Sdn Bhd (hercinafter collectively referred to as the "Excluded Companies"} to Hwang-DBS.

(collectively referred to as the "Proposed Pre-Closing Reorganisation”),

Following the Proposed Pre-Closing Reorganisation, AHB will acquirc the Hwang 1B Shares and the Minority Shares for the
Purchasc Price, to be fully satisfied in cash.

The Base Price of RM 1,363 million comprises :-

(i) RM1,088.00 million for 100% interest in Hwang IB (including [00% interest in HDM Nowminees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd and
100% interest in HDM Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd, aud excluding the Excluded Coinpanies);

(i) RM262.00 million for the aggregate of 70% interest in Hwang IM and 49% interest in AIIM; and
{iti} RML3.00 million for 100% interest in HDM Futures.

Hwang [B [including HDM Nominees {Tempatan} Sdn Bhd and HDM Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd], Hwang [M, AIIM and
HDM Futures are collectively referred to as the "Acqnisition Entities".

b) Purchase Consideration

(i) The consideration for the sale and purchase of the Hwang IB Shares under the SPA shall be an amount in cash equal to the
suin of the Base Price and as adjusted on the NA Adjustment as contemplated in the SPA.

(i) Tu the case where the NA of Hwang [B, Hwang IM and HDM Futures {collectively rcferred to as the “Target Companies™)
together with HDM Nominees (Temmpatan) Sdn Bhd and HDM Nominees {Asing) Sdn Bhd {collectively referred to as the
"Target Comnpanies' Subsidiaries” and the Target Companies and the Target Companies’ Subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as the "Target Group Companies"] aud AIIM as at the business day falling 7 business days after the
Unconditional Date (as defined in the SPA) ("Closing Datc") has fallen by 3% or more below the sum of RM900,279,694
comprising the agreed aggregate NA value as al 31 January 2613 of Hwang [B (multiplied by {he shareholding percentage
held by Hwang-DBS in Hwang IB, HDM Nominees (Tempatan) Sdo Bhd and HDM Nomninees (Asing) Sdn Bhd), and
Hwang IM, HDM Futures and AIIM (multiplied by the shareholding percentage held by Hwang IB in each of Hwang IM,
HDM Futures and AIIM after the compietion of the Proposed Pre-Closing Reorgaoisation) (“Benchmark™) (such fall in the
NA bclow the Benchimark shall bercinatter be referred to as ~“Shortfall™) (as determined in accordance with the SPA), the
Purchase Price shall be the Base Price adjusted by a reduction equal to the differential valuc between the Shortfall and

RM700,600. 3
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B7. STATUS OF CORPORATE PROPOSALS (Cont")

i} Proposed Acquisition of HwangDBS Investment Bank Berhad {"'Hwang IB"} including other Financial Services Businesses
of Hwang-DBS (Malaysia} Berhad (" Hwang-DBS') (Cont")

b) Purchase Consideration (Cont'"})

(iii) In the case where the NA of the Target Group Companies and AIIM as at the ¢losing date has increased by 3% or more
above the Benchmark (such increase in the NA above the Benchimark shall hereimafter be referred 10 as “Snrplng™) (as
determined in accordance with the SPA), the Purchase Price shall be the Base Price adjusted by an increase equal to the
differential value between the Surplus and RM 1 1,3G0,600.

(i1) and (iii} are collectively referred to as ("NA Adjustiment")

(iv} In circumstances other than that stipulated under iteins b(ii) and (iii) above, the Purchase Price shall be the Base Price
adjusted by an increase equal to RM706,000.

On 7 April 2014, the above Acquisition has becn completed in accordance to the terms and conditions set oul in the SPA,
Accordingly, AHB directly owns 100% interest in Hwang IB which in turn owns 100% interest in HDM Nowminees (Tempatan) Sdn
Bhd and 100% interest in HDM Nominees {Asing) Sdn Bld, 70% interest in Hwang IM, 49% wnterest in Asian [slamic Investment
Management Sdn Bhd and 100% interest in HDM Futures Sdn Bhd.

Following the completion of the Acquisition, the Proposed Merger will be implemented. Further announcements will be made to
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad as and when there are material developments pertaining 1o the Proposed Merger.

2) Propesed Renounceable Rights Issue of New Ovdinary Shares of RM 00 Each in AHB to raise Gross Proceeds of Up to
RM 1.,250.0 Million (" Proposed Rights Issue')

On 10 Marcl 2014, the Board of Directors of AFFIN Holdings Berhad {the "Company" or "AHB") announced that in conjunction
with the proposed acquisition of HwangDBS Investient Bank Berhad including other Financial Services Businesses of Hwang-DBS
{Malaysia) Berhad {"Proposed Acquisition") as mentioned in Note B7{1) above, the Company proposed to undertake the Proposed
Rights [ssue to raise gross proceeds of up to RM 1,250 wmillion. The proceeds of the Proposed Rights Issue is to be utihsed for the
purpose of partial repayinent of the bridge loans obtained to fund the Proposed Acquistion and RM200.0 million capital injection
into AFFIN Bank Berhad.

On 27 March 2014, AIBB had on. behalf of the Board of AHB, anuounced that Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad {"Bursa
Securities") had resolved to approve listing of up to 526,000,000 new AHB shares to be issued pursuanl lo the Proposed Rights Issue.
("Rights Share"). The approval granted by Bursa Securities for the Proposed Rights Issue is subject to the following conditions:-

(i) AHB and AIBB must fully compiy with the relevant provisions under the Main Market Listing Requirements pertaining to the
implementation of the Proposed Rights [ssue.

(1) AHB and AIBB to informn Bursa Securities upon the comnpletion of the Proposed Rights Issue,

(iii) AHB to furnish Bursa Securities with a written confinmation of its coinpliance with the terms and conditions of Bursa Securities'
approval once the Proposed Rights Issue is completed; and

On 21 April 2014, AIBB had on behalf of the Board of AHB, announced that at the Extraordinary General Meeting ("EGM") held
on 21 April 2014, the ordinary resolution as set out jn the Notice of EGM on the Proposed Rights Issue dated 2& March 2014 was
duly approved by the shareholders.

3) Approval to Commenee Negotiations in Relation to The Proposed Acquisition of Up to 24.0% Equity Interest in PT Bank

Panin Syariah TBK {("Bank Panin Syariah')

On 28 February 2014, the Board of Directors of AFFIN Holdings Berhad (the "Company” or "AHB"} announced thal Bank Negara
Malaysia ("BNM") had vide its letter dated 27 February 2014 stated that it had no objection for AHB to commence negotiations with
the sharebolders of Bank Panin Syariah for the Proposed Acquisition of up to 24.0% equity interest in Bank Panin Syariah
("Proposed Acquisition"). Tn addition, AHB would be required to seck necessary approvals under the Financial Services Act 2013 in
order to proceed with the Proposed Acquisition upon conclusion of the negotiation.

Further announcements will be made to Bursa Malaysia Secunties Berhad as and when there are material developiments pertaining to
the Proposcd Acquisition.
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B3.
(i)

(i)

(iii)

GROUP BORROWINGS AND DEBT SECURITIES

Dieposits from Customers

By Type of Depaosits:-

Money Market Deposits

Demand Deposits

Savings Deposits

Fixed Deposits

Negotiable Instruments of Deposits (NiDs"
Special Investment Deposits

Maturity structure of fixed deposits and NIDs are as follows:-
Due within six months

Six months to one year

One vyear to three years

Three years to five years

Five years and above

By Type of Customers:-
Government and statutory bodies
Business enterprises

Individuals

Others

Deposits and Placements of Banks and Otheyr Financial Institutions

By Type of Institutions:-
Licensed banks

Licensed investment banks
Bank Negara Malaysia
Other financial institutions

By Maturity Structure:-
Due within six months
Six months to one year

Borrowings

Unsecured :-
One year ar less (short-term)
Maore than one year (medium/long-tenn)
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Group
31/3/2014 31/12/2013

RM’000 RM’000
919,950 1,050,233
7,998,134 8,202,729
2,139,662 2,004,242
27,767,869 29,039,949
6,706,776 6,482,169
771,710 574,192
46,304,101 47,353,514
27,574,066 29,007,708
6,777,160 6,392,507
80,512 80,239
32,764 31344
10,143 10,320
34,474,645 35,522,118
8,575,739 9,127,800
13,960,827 14,715,136
12,633,161 11,663,423
11,134,374 11,850,144
46,304,101 47,353,514
2,520,636 3,285,513
33,603 282,459

326,662 -
621,735 415,940
3,502,636 3,983912
3,201,038 3,779,530
201,598 204,382
3,502,636 3,983,912
301,083 302,029
671,155 670,403
972,238 972,432
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BY9. REALISED AND UNREALISED UNAPPROPRIATED PROFEITS

On 25 March 2010, Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad ("Bursa Malaysia™} issued a directive to all listed issuers
pursuant to Paragraphs 2.06 and 2.23 of Bursa Malaysia Main Market Listing Requirements. The directive requires
all listed issuers lo disclose the breakdown of the unappropriated profits or accumulated losses into realised and
unreatised profits or losses as at the end of the reporting period. On 20 Deccmber 2010, Bursa Malaysia had also
issued a guide to all listed issuers on the disclosure requirement for the realised and unrealised unappropriated
profits and losses.

Pursuant to the above directives, the breakdown of retained profits of the Group into realised and unrealised profits
as at the reporting date is disclosed as follows:-

Group
31/3/2014 31/12/2013
RM'000 RM*000
Total retained profits of AFFIN Holdings Berhad and its's subsidiaries
- Realised 1,824,447 1,675,523
- Unrealised
- deferred tax reeognised in the income statcment 4,570 14,676
- other items of inecine and expensc 45,660 40,590
1,874,683 1,730,795
Total share of retained profits in associate:~
- Realised 190,637 187,712
- Unrealised 3,014 3,527
Total share of retained profits/(losses) in jointly controlled entities:-
- Realised {20,038) (19,690}
- Unrealised 1,768 4,610
2,050,064 1,906,954
Add: Consolidation adjustments 90,206 90,588
Total Group retained profits as per consolidated financial statements 2,140,270 1,997,542

The breakdown of realised and unrealised retained profits is determined based on the Guidance of Special Matter
No. | "Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losscs in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa
Malaysia Secnrities Berhad listing Requirements" issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants on 20 December
2010.

The unrealised retained profits of the Group as disclosed above does not include translation gains and losses on
mounetary items denominated in a currcney other than the functional currency and foreign exchange contracts. These
translation gains and losses arc incurred in the ordinary course of business of the Group and hence deemed as
realised.

The above disclosure of realised and unrealised unappropriated profits and losses is strictly for the compliance of the
disclosure requiretments stipulated in the directive issued by Bursa Malaysia and should not be used for any other
purposes.
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B10. MATERIAL LITIGATION
There are various legal suits against AFFIN Bank Berhad ("ABB") in respect of claims and counter claims of
approximately RM148.5 million (31 December 2013: RM117.6 million}. Based on legal advice, the Directors

of the Bank are of the opinion that no provision for damages need to be made in the financial statements, as the
probability of adverse adjudication against ABB is remote.

B11. DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been proposed for the quarter under review.

B12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

< Group >
Individual (uarter Ended Cumulative Quarter Ended
31/3/2014 31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/3/2013
Net profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company (RM'000) 142,728 150,834 142,728 150,834
Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue 1,494,575.806 1494575806  1,494,575.806  1.494.575.806
Basic and diluted earnings per share (sen) 9.55 10.09 9.55 10.09

The basic and diluted earnings per share of the Group for the current financial quarter ended 31 March 2014 have been
calculated based on the net profit atlributable to the equity holders of the company of RM 142,728,000 (31 March 2013:
RM150,834,000) divided by the weighted average numbcr of ordinary shares in issue during the current financial quarter
of 1,494,575,806 {31 March 2013: 1,494 ,575,806).

B13. ECONOMIC PROFIT/(LOSS)

< Group >
Individual Guarter Ended Cumulative Quarter Ended
31/3/2014 31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/372013
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Net profit for the financial period 142,728 150,834 142,728 150,834
Less: Economic charge (163,237 (150,658} (163,237) (150,658)
Economic profit/{loss) for the financial period (20,509) 176 {20,509) 176

Fonnula for calcufation of ecopomic charge;

(i} Economic charge = Cost of equity x Average lotal equity for the financial year
{(ii) Cost of equity = Beta x Market risk premium + Risk-free rate

Beta = 5-year adjusted Bloomnberg Beta
Market risk premiutn = the market return in excess of the return earned on risk-free assets.
Risk-free rate = the ratc of return of a 10-year Malaysian Govemment Securities at the closing of the reporting period
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1.

The Board of Directors
AFFIN Holdings Berhad
Level 7, Chulan Tower
3, Jalan Conlay

50450 Kuala Lumpur

28 May 2014

PwC/SHKY/TCW /NSZ/pyv/0129C

Dear Sirs,

HWANG-DBS INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD
ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT

INTRODUCTION

‘This Accountants’ Report has been prepared by PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), an approved
company auditor, for the purpose of inclusion in the Abridged Prospectus of AFFIN Holdings Berhad
(“AFFIN™) in connection with the renounceable rights issue of 448,372,741 new ordinary shares of
RM1.00 each in AFFIN on the basis of 3 Rights Shares for every 10 existing ordinary share of RM 1.00
each held as at 5.00 p.m. on 12 June 2014 at an issue price of RM 2.76 per rights share, (“Proposed
Rights Issue”) and should not be relied on for any other purposes.

GENERAL INFORMATION

On 7 April 2014, AFFIN Investment Bank Berhad (“AFFIN Investment”) had announced to Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad on behalf of the Board of AFFIN that AFFIN had completed the acquisition
of 500,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each, constituting 100% of the entire issued and paid-up
share capital in Hwang-DBS Investment Bank Berhad (“Hwang IB”) held by Hwang-DBS (Malaysia)
Berhad (“Hwang-DBS”) and the 1,700,000 ordinary shares of RMi.oo each, constituting
approximately 17% of the entire issued and paid-up share capital of Hwang Investment Management
Berhad (“Minority Shares”) held by the minority shareholder (“Acquisition”).

Prior to the Acquisition of ordinary shares in Hwang IB by AFFIN, Hwang-DBS undertook Pre-Closing
Reorganisation (“Pre-Closing Reorganisation”) involving the following:

(a) transfer from Hwang-DBS of its 100% interest in HDM Futures Sdn Bhd (“HDM Futures”) to

Hwang IB;

(b) transfer from Hwang-DBS of its 53% interest in Hwang Investment Management Berhad
{“HIM™) to Hwang IB;

{c) transfer from Hwang-DBS of its 49% interest in Asia Islamic Investinent Management Berhad

(“AIIM™) to Hwang IB; and
(d) transfer fromn Hwang 1B of its 100% interest in Hwang DBS Custodian Services Sdn Bhd and
its 51% interest in HwangDBS Vickers Research Sdn Bhd to Hwang-DBS,

PricewaterhouseCoopers (AF 1146), Chartered Accountants,
Level 10, 1 Sentral, Jalan Travers, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, P.O. Box 10192, 50706 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
T: +60 (3} 2173 1188, F: +60 (3) 2173 1288, www.pwe.com/my
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The Board of Directors

AFFIN Holdings Berliad
Pw(C/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/o129C
28 May 2014

GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Upon completion of the Pre-Closing Reorganisation on 7 April 2014, the restructured HwangDBS
Investment Bank Berhad Group (“Hwang IB Group” or “the Group”) consists the following entities
(collectively known as “the Group Entities”):

Company name Principal activities
HwangDBS Investment Bank Berhad* Investment banking, stockbroking and related
financial services
HDM Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd** Provision of nominee services to foreign clients
HDM Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd** Provision of nominee services to local clients
HDM Futures Sdn Bhd* Licensed future broker dealing in options and futures
Hwang Investment Management Berhad* Management of unit trust funds and provision of
fund management services
Asia Islamic Investment Management Islamiec fund management
Berhad***
* Subsidiary of HIwang-DBS for the entire 3 years ended 31 July 2013 with no change in
shareholdings.
**  100% owned subsidiaries of HwangDBS Investment Bank Berhad for the entire 3 years ended 31
July 2013.

**%  49% associate of Hwang-DBS for the eutire 3 years ended 31 July 2013.

This set of Combined Financial Statements does not include 17% of the entire issued and paid-up share
capital of Hwang Investment Management Berhad (“Minority Shares”) held by the minority
shareholder.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR

We have acted as auditors of the entities disclosed in Note 2 and have reported on the Group Entities
for the financial year ended 31 July 2013, 31 July 2012 and 31 July 2011 without qualification. In
addition, our auditor’s report did not have any emphasis of matter.

The accompanying Combined Financial Statements of Hwang IB Group which was audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“Combined Financial Statements”) are presented fairly, in all material
respects and have been properly drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards (“MFRS”) and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) for financial year
ended 31 July 2014 and 31 July 2012 and Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”) for financial year
ended 31 July 2011.

No audited financial statements have been prepared for the restructured Hwang IB Group as the
restructuring of Hwang IB Group has not been completed as at 31 July 2013 and had never operated as
a separate group. These Combined Financial Statements are therefore, not necessarily indicative of
results that would have occurred if the Hwang IB Group had heen a separate group during the years
presented or of future results of the group.
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AFFIN Holdings Berhad
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28 May 2014

4 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN THIS
REPORT

The Combined Financial Statements in this report are prepared based on the Combined Financial
Statements approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of HwangDBS Investment Bank Berhad
on 28 May 2014.

(a)

Basis of preparation of the Combined Financial Statements

The Combined Financial Statements has been prepared using information extracted from the
respective audited financial statements of the Group Entities as disclosed in Note 2 for
financial years ended 31 July 2013, 31 July 2012 and 31 July 2011.

Transition to MFRS and MFRS financial statements for financial vears ended 31 Julv 2¢13 and
2012

The Combined Financial Statements have adopted MFRS on 1 August 2012 with a transition
date of 1 August 2011. The financial statements for the financial year ended 31 July 2013 are
the first set of financial statements prepared in accordance with MFRS, In preparing the first
set of MFRS financial statements, provisions in MFRS 1 First-time adoption of MFRS have
been applied. Subject to the mandatory exception and optional exemption as disclosed in Note
8.39(a) to the financial statements, the Group have consistently applied the same accounting
policies in its opening MFRS statements of financial position as at 1 August 2011 (transition
date) and throughout all financial years presented, as if these policies had always been in

effect. The effect of the transition to MFRS is disclosed in Note 8.39.

The financial information for the year ended 31 July 2012 included in the Combined Financial
Statements is extracted from the comparative information in the first set of MFRS financial
statements for the year ended 31 July 2013 of the respective entities included in the Combined
Financial Statements.

Adjustment to the FRS financial statements for financial vear ended 31 Julv 2011
The financial information extracted for financial year ended 31 July 2011 for inclusion in the

Combined Financial Statements was restated with an adjustment arising from the adoptiou of
the MIA FRSIC Consensus 18. The effect of the adjustment is disclosed in Note 8.40.

Accounting policies used

The Combined Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except as disclosed in the summary of significant accounting policies in Note 5, using the
accounting policies that are in accordance with MFRS and IFRS for financial year ended 31 July
2013, 31 July 2012 and FRS for financial year ended 31 July 2011.

Inter-company transaction and balances between the Group Entities are eliminated on
combination.
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4 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN THIS
REPORT (CONTINUED) :

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the Combined Financial Statements (continued)

The preparation of the Combined Financial Statements in conformity with MFRS, IFRS and
FRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of income and expenses during
the financial year. It also requires directors to exercise their judgment in the process of
applying the accounting policies of the Group. Although these estimates and assumptions are
based on the management and directors’ best knowledge of current events and actions, actual
results may differ from those estimates.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions used that are significant to the financial
statements, and areas involving a higher degree of judgment and complexity are disclosed in
Note 6 to the financial statements.

New financial reporting standards, amendments to the published standards and
interpretations (“MFRSs”) and Consensus adopted

The Relevant new/revised MFRSs and the Financial Reporting Standards Implementation
Committee ("FRSIC") Consensus issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants ("MIA") are

as follows:

(i)  Effective for the financial statements of the Group commencing from 1 August 2012 are

as follows:
MFRS Description
s Amendments to MFRS 1 First-time Adoption on Fixed Dates and Hyperinflation
o Amendments to MFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures on Transfers of Financial
Assets

Amendments to MFRS 101 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
+ MFRS 124 Related Party Disclosures
s MFRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
FRSIC Consensus Description
+ FRSIC Consensus 18 Monies Held in Trust by Participating Organisations of Bursa

Malaysia Securities Berhad
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4 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN THIS

REPORT (CONTINUED)

(b)

New financial reporting standards, amendments to the published standards and

interpretations (“MFRSs”) and Consensus adopted (continued)

(i)

as follows:
MFRS
+ Amendments to MFRS 3
s Amendmentsto MFRS 7
e Amendments to MFRS 101
¢ Amendments to MFRS 128
e Amendments to MFRS 132
s Amendments to MFRS 134

Amendments to MFRS 139
IC Interpretation 4
¢ IC Inlerpretation 19

(ii1)
as follows:
FRS
s FRS3
« FRS7
. FRS 101
« FRS123
e FRS 127
« FRS13g
¢ Amendments to FRS 5

¢  Amendments to FRS 7

+ Amendment to FRS 8

e Amendment to FRS 107
»  Amendment to FRS 110
»  Amendment to FRS 116
Amendment to FRS 117
Amendment to FRS 118
Amendments to FRS 121
Amendment to FRS 123
Amendments to FRS 127
Amendments to FRS 128
»  Amendments to FRS 132
e  Amendment to FRS 134

Effective for the financial statements of the Group commencing from 1 August 2011 are

Description

Business Combinations

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
Investments in Associates

Financial Instruments: Presentation

Interim Financial Reporting

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
Determining whether an Agreement contains a Lease
Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

Effective for the financial statements of the Group commencing from 1 August 2010 are

Description

Business Combinations

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Presentation of Financial Statements

Borrowing Costs

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
QOperations

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Operating Segments

Statement of Cash Flows

Events after the Reporting Period

Property, Plant and Equipment

Leases

Revenue

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Borrowing Costs

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates

Financial Instruments: Presentation

Interim Financial Reporting
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4 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN THIS
REPORT (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

New finaneial reporting standards, amendments to the published standards and
interpretations (“MFRSs”) and Consensus adopted {continued)

(iii)

ERS

Effective for the financial statements of the Group commencing from 1 August 2010 are
as follows: (continued)

Description

Amendment to FRS 136 Impairment of Assets

Amendments to FRS 138  Intangible Assets

Amendments to FRS 139  Financial Instruments; Recognition and Measurement
Amendment to FRS 140 Investment Property

IC Interpretation 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
IC Interpretation 17 Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners
Amendments to IC

Interpretation g Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

New financial reporting standards, amendments to the published standards and
interpretations (“MFRSs”) which are relevant to the Group but not yet effective

Effective for accounting period beginning on or after 1 August 2013

Amendments to MFRS 7, Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities Requires more extensive disclosures focusing on quantitative information
about recognised financial instruments that are offset in the statement of financial
position and those that are subject to master netting or sumlar arrangements, irrespective
of whether they are offset.

MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements

Changes the definition of control. An investor controls an investee when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee. It establishes control as the basis
for determining which entities are consolidated in the consolidated financial statements
and sets out the accounting requirements for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements. It replaces all the guidance on control and consolidation in MFRS 127,
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and IC Interpretation 112, Consolidation
- Special Purpose Entities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN THIS

REPORT (CONTINUED)

(c)

New financial reporting standards, amendments to the published standards and
interpretations (“MFRSs”} which are relevant to the Group but not yet effective
(continued)

Effective for accounting period beginning on or after 1 August 2013 (continued)

MPFRS 12, Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities

Sets out the required disclosures for entities reporting under the two new standards,
MFRS 10 and MFRS 11, and replaces the disclosure requirements currently prescribed in
MERS 128, Investments in Associates. It requires entities to disclose information that
helps financial statement readers to evaluate the nature, risks and financial effects
associated with the entity’s interests in subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangements and
unconsolidated structured entities.

MFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

Improves consistency and reduces complexity by providing a precise definition of fair
value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use
across MFRSs. The requirements do not extend the use of fair value accountiug but
provide guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already required or
permitted by other standards. The enhanced disclosure requirements are similar to those
in MFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures and is applicable to assets and liabilities
measured at fair value, including certain non-financial assets and liabilities.

MERS 127 (Revised), Separate Financial Statements

Includes the provisions on separate financial statements that are left after the control
provisions of MFRS 127 have been included in the new MFRS 10.

MFRS 128 (Revised), Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Includes the requirements for joint ventures, as well as associates, to be equity accounted
following the issue of MFRS 11.

Effective for accounting period beginning on or after 1 August 2014

Amendments to MFRS 132, Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

It retains the eurrent offsetting model in MFRS 132. It clarifies the meaning of ‘currently
has a legally enforceable right of set-off that the right of set-off must not be contingent on
a future event and is legally enforceable for all counterparties in the normal course of
business and in the event of default and insolvency. It clarifies that gross settlement
mechanisms with features that are effectively equivalent to net settlement will satisfy the
MFRS 132 offsetting criteria.
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28 May 2014

4 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN TIIIS
REPORT (CONTINUED)

(<)

New financial reporting standards, amendments to the published standards and
interpretations (“MFRSs”) which are relevant to the Group but not yet effective
{continued)

Effective date vet to be determined by Malaysian Accounting Standard Board

MERS g, Financial Instruments - Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Replaces the multiple classification and measurement models in MFRS 139 with a single
mode] that has only two classification categories: amortised cost and fair value. The basis
of classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets,

The accounting and presentation for financial liabilities and for de-recognising financial
instruments have been relocated from MFRS 139, without change, except for financial
liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). Entities with
financial liabilities designated at FVTPL recognise changes in the fair value due to changes
in the liability’s credit risk directly in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). There is no
subsequent recycling of the amounts in OCI to profit or loss, but accumulated gains or
losses may be transferred within equity. The guidance in MFRS 139 on impairment of
financial assets and hedge accounting continues to apply.

MFRS 7 requires disclosures on transition from MFRS 129 to MFRS g,

The adoption of the ahove MFRS is not expected to have any significant impact on the financial
statements of the Group except for MFRS 9. The financial effects of the adoption of MFRS ¢
will be assessed by the Group.
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5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in relation to the combined financial
statements for all the financial year presented, unless otherwise stated.

(@)

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the Group has power to govern the financial and
operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are consolidated using the acquisition method. Subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date the Group obtains control over the subsidiaries to the date control ceases. The
consideration transferred for acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Acquisition- related costs are expensed as incurred.

In business combination achieved in stages, previously held equity interest in acquire are re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain or loss is recognized
in statement of income.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previously held equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. Any gain arising from bargain purchase is recognised in profit or loss.

Inter-company transactious, balances and unrealised gain or loss arising from inter-company
transactions are eliminated and the consolidated financial statements reflect external
transactions only. Losses resulting from intragroup transactions, which indicate an
impairment loss, will be recognised in the consolidated income statements. Consolidated
financial statements are prepared usiug uniform accounting policies for like transactions and
other events in similar circumstances.

When an entity loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities and related equity
components of the former subsidiary will be derecognised. Any investment retained in a
former subsidiary is measured at its fair value at the date when control is lost. Any gain or loss
arising from loss of control of a subsidiary, which comprises the difference between the fair
value of considerations received and the Group’s share of its net assets as of the date when
control is lost (including the cumulative amount of any exchange differences) that relate to the
former subsidiary and gain or loss arising from re-measurement of investment retained in the
former subsidiary to its fair value is recognised in profit or loss. Changes in a parent’s
ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions.
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28 May 2014

(a)

(b)

10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent that portion of the profit or loss and net assets of a
subsidiary attributable to equity interests that are not owned, directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries, by the Group. It is measured at fair value or the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets at the acquisition date, on a case
by case basis and changes in the subsidiary’s equity since that date. All profits or losses of the
subsidiary are attributed to the parent and the non-controlling interests, even if the attribntion
of losses to the non-controlling interests results in a debit balance in the shareholders’ equity.

Intangiblc assets

@

(i1)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair values of considerations transferred for
putchase of subsidiaries or businesses, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previously held equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired at the date of
acquisition.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs”) or
groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business
combination in which the goodwill arose for the purpose of impairment testing,.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are initially recognised when they are separable or arise from
contractual or other legal rights, when it is probable that future economic benefits
attributable to the assets will flow to the Group and the cost can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, or are not yet ready for use, are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses and tested for impairment annually.
Intangible assets are allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit
from synergies of business activities for the purpose of impairment testing,

The accounting policy on the recognition and measurement of impairment losses is disclosed
in Note 5(g) to the financial statements.

273



Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX VI

ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT ON HWANG IB (Cont'd)

pwec

The Board of Directors

AFFIN Holdings Berliad
PwC/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/0o129C
28 May 2014

5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

11

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised when the Group has become a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Financial instruments are classified as assets, liabilities or
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Financial instruments
are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when the Group
has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends to settle either on a net basis or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

For financial instruments measured at fair value, the fair value is determined by reference to
quoted and observable market prices, where available. Where such quoted and observable
market prices are not available, fair values are estimated based on a range of methodologies
and assumptions regarding risk characteristics of various financial instruments, discount rates,
estimates of future cash flows and other factors.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the settlement date.

Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to financial instruments classified as financial
assets and liabilities are reported in profit or loss as income or expense. Distributions to
holders of financial instruments classified as equity are debited directly to equity.

Net gains or losses on financial instruments comprise net gains or losses on disposal and net
unrealised mark-to-market gains or losses.

Non-derivative financial assets
() Classification

The Group classify the non-derivative financial assets into the following categories: at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity and available-
for-sale (“AFS”). Classification of financial assets is determined at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss held by the Group comprises
financial assets held-for-trading which are acquired principally for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near term or are part of a portfolic of identified financial
assets that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking.

The Group did not designate any financial assets at fair value through profit or loss at
initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market.
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(d)
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Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

Q)

(i)

Classification (continued)

Financial assets held-to-matnrity

Financial assets held-to-maturity are non-derivative financial instruments with fixed
or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Group has the positive intent
and ability to hold to maturity.

If more than an insignificant amount of the securities held-to-maturity portfolio are
sold or reclassified before maturity (other than under certain specified conditions)
during the current financial year or the last two preceding financial years, the entire
category would be tainted and reclassified as securities AFS at fair value. The
difference between the carrying value and fair value of the securities at the date of
reclassification is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Financial assets available-for-sale (“AFS™}

Financial assets AFS are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified to any other categories of financial assets.

Recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of the financial assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale are
subsequently carried at fair value, except for investments in equity instruments that do
not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured in which case the investments are stated at cost, Any gain and loss
arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss is included in profit or loss in the period which they arise. Any gain or loss
arising from the changes in fair value of the financial assets AFS is recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains or
losses which are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets held-to-maturity and loans and receivables are subsequently

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowances for
impairment losses.
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Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

(iii)

()

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights of the Group to the cash
flows from the financial assets expire or when the Group transfers the financial assets
to another party without retaining control or transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of the assets.

When financial assets AFS are derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income shall be transferred to profit or loss. Any
gain or loss arising from derecognition of financial assets held-for-trading and held-to-
maturity is recognised in profit or loss.

Reclassification

Non-derivative financial assets may be reclassified out of the fair value through profit
or loss category only in rare circumstances if the assets are no longer held for the
purposes of selling or repurchasing in the near term. In addition, financial assets that
would have met the definition of loans and receivables may be reclassified out of the
held-for-trading or AFS categories to loans and receivables if the Group has the
intention and ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity at the date of reclassification.

Reclassifications are made at the fair values of the financial assets at the date of the
reclassification. The fair values of the financial assets become the new cost or
amortised cost, as applicable, and the fair value gains or losses previously recognised
before the reclassification date will not be reversed.

The accounting policy on the recognition and measurement of impairment losses is
disclosed in Note 5(g) to the financial statements.
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Non-derivative financial liabilities

(i) Classification

The Group classify the non-derivative financial liabilities into the following categories:
at fair value through profit or loss, at amortised cost and financial guarantee contracts.
Classification of financial liabilities is determined at initial recognition.

The Group did not designate any financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
at initial recognition.

(in) Recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
Habilities not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. A financial guarantee contract is initially
recognised at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the liability under such guarantee is measured at the higher of amount
initially recognised less accumulated amortisation and the best estimate of the amount
required to settle any present obligation arising at the end of the reporting period.

(iii) Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligations of the Group as specified in
a contract expire or are discharged or cancelled.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair values on the date on which
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair values, Fair
values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market
transactions, and valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and option
pricing models, as appropriate. Derivative financial instruments are presented separately in
the statements of financial position as assets (positive changes in fair values) and liabilities
(negative changes'in fair values). Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
derivatives are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid financial instrument that also contains a
non-derivative host contract. An embedded derivative is recognised separately from the host
contract and accounted for as a derivative if, and only if, it is not closely related to the
economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and the host contract is not categorised
at fair value through profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets

Classification of loans and receivables as impaired

Loans, advances and financing are classified as impaired in accordance with the BNM

Guidelines on Classification and Impairment Provisions for Loans/Financing. Loans and

receivables are classified as impaired when they fulfill either of the following criteria:

s  principal or interest or both are past due for 3 months or more;

» where a loan is in arrears for less than 3 months, the loan exhibits indications of credit
weaknesses; )

+  individual impairment allowance has been made; or

»  where impaired loans and receivables have been rescheduled or restructured, the assets
will continue to be classified as impaired until repayments based on the revised and/or
restructured terms have been observed continuously for a period of 6 months.

Obijective evidence of impairment

The Group assess at end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset is impaired. A financial asset is impaired and impairment loss is incurred if,
and ouly if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”} and that loss event {or events)
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of impairment
loss include indications that the obligor is experiencing significant financial difficulty, high
probability that the obligor will enter bankruptcy or other distressed financial reorganisation,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, breach of loan covenants, a
significant downgrade in credit ratings by external rating agencies and events that would
adversely affect the repayment capability of the obligor.

In the case of quoted equity instruments classified as financial assets AFS, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in determining

whether objective evidence of impairment exists.

Impairment assessment

The Group first assess whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
which are individually significant, and collectively for financial assets which are not
individually significant, taking into account the historical loss experience of such assets. If the
Group determine that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, the financial asset is included in a group with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assessed for impairment.
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Impairment assessment (continued)

FRS — Applicable to financial vear ended 21 July 2011

In accordance with the transitional arrangements under the Amendments to FRS 139, BNM
has prescribed an alternative basis of collective impairment assessment in respect of loans/
financing for banking institutions during the transitional period (applicable until the financial
year ended 31 July 2012), as set out in the BNM Guidelines on Classification and Impairment
Provisions for Loans/Financing, whereby banking institutions are required to maintain
collective impairment allowance of at least 1.5% of the total outstanding loan/financing, net of
individual impairment allowance, Subject to prior written approval by BNM, banking
institutions are allowed to maintain a lower collective impairment allowance. Collective
impairment allowance for the Group is arrived at based on the transitional provisions as
prescribed by BNM.

Determination of impajrment loss in respect of the relevant categories of financial assets is as
follows:

(1) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the assets’ original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the assets is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the
loss is recognised in profit or loss. If the assets have variable interest rates, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account, The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

(i1} Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at cost
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return of similar assets. The carrying amount
of the assets 15 reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the
loss 1s recognised in profit or loss. No reversal of impairment loss is allowed when the
amount of impairment loss decreases.

279



Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX VI

ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON HWANG IB (Cont'd)

pwec

The Board of Directors
AFFIN Holdings Berhad
PwC/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/0o129C

28 May 2014

5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

)

(h)

17

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iii)

Financial assets carried at fair value

When a decline in fair value of financial assets AFS has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and there is objective evidence that the assets are impaired, the
cumulative loss that had been recognised in other ‘comprehensive income will be
reclassified from equity to profit or loss even though the assets have not been
derecognised. The amount of cumulative loss is the difference between the acquisition
price (net of principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on those assets previously recognised in profit or loss.

If, in subsequent periods, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as financial
assets AFS increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
dfter the impairment was recognised in profit or loss, that portion of impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss. For equity instruments, no reversal of impairment
loss through profit or loss is allowed when there is an increase in fair value of the
equity instrument in subsequent periods.

When a financial asset or portion of a financial asset is uncollectible, the amount will
be written off against the related allowance for impairment loss. Fiuancial assets are
written off after taking into consideration the realisable value of collateral, if any, when
in the judgment of the management, there is no prospect of recovery.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Capital work in progress is not depreciated. Depreciation of assets under capital work in
progress commences when the assets are ready for their intended use and transferred to
respective classes of assets. Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is calculated
to write off the cost of each property, plant and equipment over its expected useful life on the
straight line basis. The principal annual depreciation rates are as follows:

%

Furniture and fittings 10- 20
Office equipment 20
Computer equipment 20-331/3
Air-conditioners 20
Motor vehicles 20
Renovations 10 - 20
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

Gains or losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amounts of assets and are included in profit or loss.

The accounting policy on the recognition and measurement of impairment losses is disclosed
in Note 5(g) to the financial statements.

Investiment properties

Investment properties are properties which the Group hold with the intention to earn rentals
or for capital appreciatiou or both. These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use. Such properties are initially recognised at cost including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequently, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciatiou and impairment losses.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Buildings are depreciated at a principal annual rate of 2% on
the straight line basis to write off the cost of each asset over its expected useful life.

Gain or loss on disposals of investment properties are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amounts of assets and are included in profit or loss.

The accounting policy on the recognition and measurement of impairment losses is disclosed
in Note 5(k) to the financial statements.

Other investments

Cther investments, which comprise transferable corporate club memberships and investments in
commemorative notes, are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

On disposal of an investment, the gain or loss representing the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of investment is credited or charged to profit or loss.

The accounting policy on the recognition and measurement of impairment losses is disclosed
in Note 5(k) to the financial statements.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation/
depreciation and are tested annually for impairment. Other non-financial assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amouut may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there is separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units), Any impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.

Non-financial assets, other than goodwill, of which an impairment loss is recognised in prior
financial years, are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that
the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have beeu
determined, net of depreciation and amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised.
No reversal of impairment loss on goodwill is allowed in a subsequeut period.

Clients’ monies held in trust

Clients' monies held in trust pursuant to the provisions of the Capital Markets and Services Act
2007 and the Rules of Bursa Securities by the HwangDBS Investment Bank Berhad (“Hwang
IB” or “the Bank”), which is a participating organisation of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
(“Bursa Securities”), are not recognised as assets and similarly, no corresponding liabilities are
accounted for in the statements of financial position of the Group. Hwang IB does not have any
control over clients’ trust monies held to obtain the future economic benefits embodied in the
trust monies and does not have any contractual or statutory obligation to its clients on the
money deposited in the trust account that would result in an outflow of resources from Hwang
IB.

Income taxes
Current tax expense is calculated at the current tax rate based on taxable profits.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements unless the temporary differences arise from goodwill or from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of
the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.
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Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences or unused tax losses can
be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities relating to the fair value re-measurement of financial assets
AFS are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax relate to the same
tax authority,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed (for example, under an insurance
contract), the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the
reimhursement is virtually certain. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihcod that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one itein included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Financial guarantee contracts

A financial gunarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as a liability at fair value, net of
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial guarantee contracts are
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the guarantee. If a specified debtor fails to make
payment relating to financial guarantee contract when it is due and the company, as the issuer,
is required to reimburse the holder for the associated loss, the liability is measured at the
higher of the best estimates of the amount required to settle the present obligation as at the
end of the reporting period and the amount initially recognised less accumulated amortisation.

Foreign currencies
(i} Functional and presentation currency

Ttems included in the financial statements of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia,
which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are converied into Ringgit Malaysia at rates of
exchange ruling on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies as at the end of the reporting period are translated into Ringgit
Malaysia at the rates of exchange ruling on that date. All gains and losses on foreign
exchange are included in profit or loss.

Recognition of interest ineome and expense

Interest income and expense is recognised on an accrual basis using effective interest method.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or liability and of allocating the interest over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instruments or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount.
When calculating the effective interest rate, significant fees and transaction costs integral to
the effective interest rate, as well as premiums or discounts, are considered.

For impaired financial assets where the value of the financial asset has been written down as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognised on the recoverable
amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash fiows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss
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Recognition of fees and other income
Brokerage is recognised when coutracts are executed.

Advisory fees are recognised as income on completion of each stage of the engagement and
issuance of invoice.

Initial service charge and fees earned from management of unit trust funds are recognized as
income on accrual basis based on the pre-agreed rates. Fees earned from provision of fund
management services are recognhized on an accrual basis, at the rates provided for in the
investment mandates of funds managed.

Underwriting commission and placement income are recognised when all conditions precedent
are fulfilled.

Rollover fee is recognised upon the rollover of specific contracts under share margin financing.

Loan and debt security arrangement fees and commission are recognised as income when
conditions precedent are fulfilled.

Portfolioc management, commitment and guarantee fees are recognised as income based on
time apportionment. :

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive paymeut is established.

Rental income and all other income are recoguised on an accrual basis,

Initial service charge and fee earned from management of unit trust funds are recognised as
income on an accrual basis based on the pre-agreed rates. Fees earued from provision of fund
management services are recognised on an accrual basis, at the rates provided for in the
investment mandates of funds managed.

Employee benefits

6} Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are accrued in the financial year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Group.

(ii) Post-employment henefits
The contributions by the Group to defined contribution plan, the Employees Provident

Fund, are charged to profit or loss in the financial year to which they relate. Once the
contributions have been paid, the Group has no further payment obligations.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Operating lease

Leases of assets where substantially all the risks and benefits are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on the straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Dividends
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as liabilities when approved for payment.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and short term deposits that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements. A contingent liability is a possible cbligation that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation.
A contingent liability also arises in the extremely rare case where there is a liability that cannot
be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond
the control of the Group. The Group does not recognise contingent assets but disclose its
existence where inflows of economic benefits are probable, but not virtually certain.
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Associates

Associates are entities in which the Group exercises significant influence, but which is does not
control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% to 50% of the voting rights.
Significant influence is the power to part1c1pate in the financial and operating policy demsmns
of the associates but not power to exercise control over those policies.

In the combined financial statements, the Group’s interest in associate is accounted for using
the equity method of accounting. Equity accounting involves recognising the Group’s share of
post-acquisition profit or loss of associates in the income statement and other comprehensive
income. In the separate financial statements of the company, associates are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

On the loss of significant influence over an associate, the difference between the fair value of
any investment retained and any proceeds from disposing of part interest in the associate and
the Group’s share of its net assets as of the date when significant influence is lost (including
the cumulative amount of any exchange differences that relate to former associates) is
recognised as the Group’s gain or loss on derecognition of an associate in profit or loss of the
Group. In the separate financial statements of the company, on the loss of significant influence
over an associate, the difference between the fair value of considerations received and the
carrying amount of the associate is recognised as the gain or loss on derecognition of an
associate in profit or loss of the company. The investment retained in former associate, if any,
shall be recognised at fair value in the financial statements of the Group and of the company.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associates.

The accounting policy on the recognition and measurement of impairment loss 1s disclosed in
Note 5(k) to the financial statements.

287



Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX VI

ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON HWANG IB (Cont’d}

pwec

The Board of Directors

AFFIN Holdings Berhad
PwC/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/0129C
28 May 2014

6 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENT

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, rarely equal the related actual results. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are as follows:

(a)

(b

(e)

25

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables

The Group makes allowance for impairment loss based on assessment of recoverability. Whilst
management’s judgment is guided by the relevant BNM guidelines, judgment is made about
the futnre and other key factors in respect of the amount and timing of cash flows recoverable
from impaired loans and receivables. Among the factors considered are the Group's aggregate
exposure to the borrowers, net realisable value of the underlying collateral and the borrowers’
capacity to generate sufficient cash flows to service debt obligations.

Securities AFS and securities held-to-maturity

Assessment of impairment of securities is made in accordance with the guidance in MFRS 139
in determining when an investment is impaired. Management judgment is required to evaluate
the duration and extent to which the fair value of the investment is below its carryving value and
when there is indication of impairment in the carrying value of the financial instruments.

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group tests intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life for impairment annually to
ensure that the carrving amounts of the CGUs or groups of CGUs to which intangible assets are
allocated do not exceed their recoverable amounts. Recoverable amounts are determined
based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from continuing
operations. In arriving at the recoverable amounts, management exercises judgment in
estimating the future cash flows, growth rate and discount rate.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value of financial instruments is determined by reference to quoted market price of the
instrument or by using a valuation model, which is based on independently sourced observable
or inplied market data, mainly interest rate yield curves, recent market transactions, foreign
exchange rates and market volatility. Changes in the estimates or assumptions in respect of the
parameters used could affect the fair value of the financial instruments reported in the
financial statements,
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7 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
.1 Combined Statements of Financial Position
MFRS FRS
Note 31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'o00 RM'o00 RM'ooo RM'o00
ASSETS
Cash and short term funds 81 1,167,089 650,603 621,020 621,020
Deposits and placements with
banks and other financial institutions 8.2 - - 150,079 150,079
Securities held-for-trading 8.3 55,319 170,089 337,659 337,659
Securities available-for-sale ("AFS") 8.4 1,412,841 1,579,617 1,188,616 1,188,616
Securities held-to-maturity 8.5 370,268 399,921 388,335 388,335
Loans, advances and financing 8.6 464,850 371,406 431,191 429,882
Clients’ and brokers’ balances 8.7 225,613 179,126 168,130 168,102
Derivative assets 8.8 36,579 16,505 26,734 26,734
Other assets 8.9 156,688 67,554 38,283 38,250
Statutory deposits with Bank
Negara Malaysia 8.10 65,750 56,620 51,135 51,135
Tax recoverable 8,336 5,059 1 1
Deferred tax assets 8.11 2,280 2,478 6,753 7,095
Investments in associate 8.12 4,544 3,708 3,624 3,624
Property, plant and equipment 8.13 12,194 13,290 12,750 12,750
Investment properties 8.14 47,840 47,983 48,127 48,127
Intangible assets 8.15 162,502 162,502 162,502 162,502
TOTAL ASSETS 4,192,693 3,726,461 3,634,939 3,633,911
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Deposits from customers 8.16 678,840 737,424 809,381 809,381
Deposits and placemeunts of hanks
and other financial institutions 8.17 1,985,862 1,620,456 1,558,205 1,558,205
Clients’ and brokers’ balances 8.18 223,964 199,724 186,725 186,725
Derivative liabilities 8.8 45,883 22,106 28,233 28,233
Other liabilities 8.19 287,307 206,208 143,893 143,893
Taxation Bog 8q 4,357 4,357
Subordinated term loan from holding
company 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,227,665 2,791,809 2,735,794 2,735,794
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Group 927,292 909,310 880,339 879,311
Non-controlling interest 37,736 25,342 18,806 18,806
EQUITY 8.20 965,028 034,652 899,145 898,117
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
EQUITY 4,192,693 3,726,461 3,634,939 3,633,911
COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENCIES 8.34 3,159,251 4,759,139 6,245,498 6,245,498

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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7 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
7.2 Combined Income Statements
MFRS FRS
Note 2013 2012 2011
RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ocoo
Interest income 8.22 139,153 133,513 133,901
Interest expense 8.23 (85,696) (B0,130) (74,236}
Net interest income 53,457 53,383 59,665
Other operating income 8.24 202,091 242,245 219,841
345,548 295,628 279,506
Other operating expenses 8.25 {266,522) (211,836) (194,786}
79,026 83,792 84,720
(Allowance}/Write back of allowance for
losses on:
- loans, advances and financing 8.27 (065) 726 4,261
- clients" balances and trade receivables 8.28 86 482 868
- other assets {1,055) - -
Share of associate’s results 821 86 340
Profit before taxation 77,013 85,086 90,189
Taxation 8.29 {17,570) (19,851) (21,605}
Profit for the financial year 60,343 65,235 68,494
Attributable to:
Eqnity holders of the Group 45,580 56,527 63.643
Non-controlling interest 14,763 8,708 4,851
60,343 65,235 68,494

No earnings per share disclosure have been made as there is no share capital in the combined financial

statements

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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7 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
7.3 Combined Statements of Comprehensive Income (continued)
MFRS FRS
Note 2013 2012 2011
RM'oo0 RM'oco RM'oo0
Profit for the financial year 60,343 65,235 68,494
Other comprehensive income for the
financial year:
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Securities AFS:
- net change in fair value (1,170) 9,780 4,469
- net gain transferred to profit or loss on
disposal (2,125) (8,256) (334)
Income tax relating to components of
other comprehensive income 813 (381) (1,034)
Share of available-for-sale reserve of
an associate 15 - -
8.30 (2,467) 1,143 3,101
Total comprehensive income for the
financial year 57,876 66,378 71,595
Atiributable to:
Equity holders of the Group 43,132 57,670 66,744
Non-controlling interest 14,744 8,708 4,851
57,876 66,378 71,595

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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rd FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
7.5 Combined Statements of Cash Flows
MFRS FRS
Note 2013 2012 2011
RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the financial year 60,343 65,235 68,404
Adjustments for:
Property, plant and equipment;
- depreciation 4,753 4,970 5,795
- net gain on disposals (183) {05) {=280)
- write offs 20 20 11
Investment properties:
- depreciation 143 144 144
Net (gain)/loss arising from disposal of:
- securities held-for-trading (18,399} {28,418) (15,054)
- derivatives 9,368 9,017 8,021
- securities AFS (2,225) {7,443) (334)
- other investments - (12) (6}
Net unrealised {gain)/loss on;
- securities held-for-trading 2,759 684 {4,403)
- derivatives (6,091) (9,680) (10,680}
Net unrealised gain on foreign exchange {(12,025) {9,649) 7,356
Allowance/(Write back of allowance) for
losses on:
- loans, advances and fiuancing 965 {726) {4,261)
- clients’ balances and trade receivables 133 210 (18)
- other assets 1,055 - -
Share of associates’ result (821) (86) (340)
Interest expense 85,696 80,130 74,236
Interest income on securities AFS and -
securities held-to-maturity (71,628) (71,149) (51,584)
Dividends and income distributions (7,334) (7,636) (6,290)
Rental income (78) (1,187) (1,281)
Contribution to Capital Market Compensation
Fund 250 - -
Taxation 17,570 19,851 21,695
3,926 (21,053) 22,718
64,269 44,182 91,212
{Increase)/Decrease in operating assets:
Deposits and placements with banks and
other financial institutions - 150,079 (18,706)
Securities held-for-trading 130,407 195,305 186,698
Loans, advances and finaneing (94,409) 60,511 (44,241)
Clients’ and brokers’ balances (46,588) {10,924) 37,026
Derivative assets 21,815 80 25
Other assets {(116,519) {37,732) (9,006}
Statutory deposits with Bank Negara Malaysia (9,130) {(5,485) {45,190}
(114,424) 351,834 107,506

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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7 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
7.5 Combined Statements of Cash Flows (continued)
MFRS FRS
2013 2012 2011
Note RM'ooo RM'oo0 RM'ooo
Increase/{Decrease) in operating liabilities:
Deposits from customers (63,183) (71,348) 230,977
Deposits and placements of banks and
other financial institutions 358,701 57,719 37,926
Clients’ and brokers’ balances 48,231 1,995 (31,006)
Derivative liabilities {2,626) 172 (1,469)
Other liabilities 83,027 70,298 41,277
424,150 58,836 277,705
Cash generated from operations 373,995 454,852 476,423
Interest paid (77,814) (74,749) (73,050)
Taxation paid (19,910) (24,462) (13,754)
Net operating cash flow 276,271 355,641 389,619
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Property, plant and equipment:
- proceeds from disposals 1,041 115 397
- purchases (4,534) (5,550) (5,561)
Proceeds from disposal of other investinents 436 123 11
Net disposal/(purchase) of securities AFS 170,358 (376,824) (719,415)
Proceeds from maturity of securities
held-to maturity 38,554 70,358 69,234
Interest received from securities AFS and
securities held-to-maturity 78,392 3,483 49,627
Dividends and income distributions received 8,072 7,413 5,870
Rental received 78 1,187 1,281
Net investing cash flow 292,397 (299,695) (598,556)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid [ (27,500} [ (B0.871) | | (22,500) |
Net financing cash flow (27,500) (30,871) (22,500)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 541,168 25,075 (231,437}
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the financial year 544,254 519,179 750,616
Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the financial year 8.31 1,085,422 544,254 519,179

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

31

294



Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX VI
ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON HWANG IB (Cont'd)
The Board of Directors
AFFIN Holdings Berhad
PwC/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/0129C
28 May 2014
8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8.1 Cash and short term funds
MERS KRS
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'ooo0 RM'o00 RM'o00 RM'ooo
Cash and balances with
banks and other financial institutions 320,379 183,346 97,313 97,313
Money at call and deposit placements
maturing within one month 846,710 467,257 523,707 523,707
1,167,089 650,603 621,020 621,020
8.2 Deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions
MERS FRS
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'oo0 RM'ooo RM'coo RM'o00
Licensed banks - - 100,052 100,052
Licensed investment banks - - 50,027 50,027
- - 150,079 150,079
8.3 Securities held-for-trading
MFRS FRS
31.7.2013 31,7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'o00 RM'ocoo RM'oo0 RM'000
At fair value:
Quoted in Malaysia
Shares, warrants, unit trust and REITs 35,429 37,234 39,164 39,164
Unguoted
Bankers’ acceptances - - 144,445 144,445
Malaysian Government Securities - 20,262 - -
Malaysian Government Islamic Investment
Issues - 50,736 - -
BNM Monetary Notes - - 51,8609 51,869
Private debt securities 19,890 61,857 102,181 102,181
55.319 170,089 337,659 337,659
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8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(CONTINUED)
8.4 Securities available-for-sale (“AFS”)
MFRS FRS
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'ooo RM'o00 RM'000 RM'ooo
At fair value:
Quoted in Malaysia
REITs 33,574 14,807 5,089 5,089
Unit trusts 138,682 167,241 151,806 151,806
Quoted outside Malaysia
REITs 34,574 - - -
206,380 182,048 156,895 156,395
Unquoted
Malaysian Government Securities 80,539 61,652 - -
Malaysian Government Sukuk 6,851 6,632 6,291 6,291
Malaysian Government Islamic Investment Issues 250,894 251,791 212,767 212,767
Malaysian Government Treasury Bills 22,089 - - -
BNM Islamic Negotiable Notes 119,671 298,115 - -
BNM Islamic Monetary Notes - - 48,804 98,804
Private and Islamic debt securities 725,967 779,379 713,769 13,769
1,412,841 1,579,617 1,188,616 1,188,616
8.5 Securities held-to-maturity
MFRS FRS
21.7.2013 31.57.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'oo00 RM'ooo RM'000 RM'ooo
At amortised cost:
Ungquoted
Private and Islamic debt securities 370,268 399,921 388,335 388,335
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8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.6 Loans, advances and financing
MFRS FRS
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'oo0 RM'ooo RM'ocoo RM'ooo
(a) By type
Term loans:
- bridging loans - 3,550 3,550 3,550
- symdicated term loans 190,979 125,131 122 742 122,742
- other term loans 111,311 49,224 60,055 60,055
Share margin financing 168,036 201,502 253,631 253,631
470,326 379,467 439,978 439,973
Allowance for losses:
- collective impairment (5,476) (4,511) (5,237) (6,546}
- individual impairment - (3,550} (3.550) (3,559)
Net loans, advances and financing 464,850 371,406 431,191 429,882
(b) By type of customer
Domestic business enterprises
- others 309,374 192,841 238,463 238,463
Individuals 152,213 177,118 192,870 192,870
Foreign business enterprises 4,942 4,887 5,182 5,182
Foreign individuals 3,797 4,621 3,463 3,463
470,326 379,467 439,978 439,978
(c) By geographieal distribution
Malaysia 461,644 370,412 431,704 431,704
Hong Kong 7,564 7,527 7,841 7,841
Singapore 302 1,017 237 237
Other countries 816 511 196 196
470,326 379,467 _ 439,978 439,978
(d) By interest rate sensitivity
Fixed rate
- other fixed rate loans/financing 201,245 201,562 253,631 253,631
Variable rate
- base lending rate plus - - 30,170 30,170
- cost-plus 269,081 177,905 156,177 156,177
479,326 379,467 439,978 439,978
(e) By purpose
Purchase of landed properties
- nou-resideutial 34,504 37.505 40,015 40,015
Purchase of securities 234,668 229,837 303,679 303,679
Working capital 21,508 18,555 18,635 18,635
Others 179,646 93,570 77,649 77,649
479,326 379,467 439,978 439,978
34

297



Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX VI
ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON HWANG IB (Cont’d)
The Board of Directors
AFFIN Holdings Berliad
PwC/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/o129C
28 May 2014
8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.6 Loans, advances and financing (continued)
() By residual contractual maturity
MFRS FRS
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'ooo0 RM'ocoo0 RM'ooo RM'ooo
Within 1 year 252,325 254,336 277,210 277,210
1year to 3 years 34,504 - 90,225 90,225
3 years to 5 years 54,536 59,345 - -
Over 5 years 128,961 65,786 72,543 72,543
470,326 _ 1379467 439,978 439,978
(2 Impaired loans, advances and financing by purpose
MFRS FRS
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'ooo RM'coo  RM'coo RM'oo0
Working capital - 3,550 3,550 3,550
(h) Impaired loans, advances and financing by geographical distribution
MFRS FRS
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'ooo0 RM'oo0 RM'ooo RM'oco
Malaysia - 3,550 3,550 3,550
G) Movements in impaired loans, advances and financing
MERS FRS
2013 2012 2011
RM'ooo RM'o00 RM'0c00
At beginning of the financial year 3,550 3,550 8,550
Amount written off (3,550) - -
Amount written back - - (5,000}
At end of the financial year - 3,550 3,550
Gross impaired loans, advances and financing
as a % of gross loans, advances and financing 0.0% 0.9% 0.8%
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28 May 2014

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Loans, advances and financing (continued)

@ Movements in allowance for losses
MFRS FRS
2013 2012 2011
RM'oo0 RM'oo0 RM'ooo
Collective impairment
At beginning of the financial year
- as previously reported 4,511 6,546 5,807
- effects of transition to MFRS ) - {1,309) -
- as restated 4,511 5,237 5,807
Net allowance made/(written back) 965 (726) 739
At end of the financial year 5,476 4,511 6,546
Ag a % of gross loans, advances and financing
less individual impairment allowance 1.2% 1.2% 1.5%
Individual impairment
At beginning of the financial year 3,550 3,550 8,550
Amount written off (3,550) - -
Amount written back - - (5,000)
At end of the financial year - 3,550 3,550
Clients’ and brokers’ balances
MFRS FRS
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'ooo RM'oo0 RM'ooo0 RM'oo0
Amounts due from clients 123,253 97,137 140,331 140,331
Allowance for losses:
- individual impairment (539) (553) (712} (712}
- cotlective impairment - - - (28)
122,714 96,584 139,619 139,591
Amounts dne from brokers 102,899 82,542 28,511 28,511
225,613 179,126 168,130 168,102

Clients’ and brokers’ balances represent the amounts receivable in respect of outstanding contracts

and contra losses.

The credit terms in respect of clients” and brokers’ balances are based on the agreements entered into

between the Bank and its clients and are in accordance with the Rules of Bursa Securities.
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8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.7 Clients’ and brokers’ balances {(continued)
MFRS FRS
31.7.2013 31.7,.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'ooo0 RM'oo0 RM'oo0 RM'oo0
(a) Impaired accounts
Amounts due from clients 692 762 1,172 1,172
MFRS FRS
2013 2012 2011
RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'oo0
(b) Movements in allowance for losses
Collective impairment
At beginning of the financial year
- as previously reported - 28 19
- effects of transition to MFRS - (28) -
Net allowance made - - 9
- as restated - - 28
Individual impairment
At beginning of the financial year 553 712 576
Allowance made 67 145 237
Amount written back (81) (286) (101)
Amount written off - (18) -
At end of the financial year 539 553 712
8.8 Derivative finaneial instruments
MFRS FRS
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 81.7.2011
RM'o0o0 RM'onoo RM'ooo RM'ooo
Derjvative assets 536,579 16,505 26,734 26,734
Derivative liabilities (45,883) (22,106) _ (28,233) (28,233)
(9,304) (5,601) {1,499) (1,499)
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8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.8 Derivative finanecial instruments {(continued)
Fair value
Notional Derivative  Derivative
amount assets liabilities
RM’oo00 RM’o00 RM’o00
MERS
31.7.2013
Foreign exchange related contracts
- Currency forwards 752,522 22,932 (1,618)
- Currency swaps 910,161 3,442 (=28,817)
- Currency options 339 1 (1)
- Cross currency interest rate swaps {(“CCIRS”) 702,030 8,117 (14,878)
2,365,052 34,492 (45,314)
Interest rate related contracts
- Interest rate swaps 248,000 2,087 {(569)
2,613,052 36,579 (45.883)
MFRS
31.7.2012
Foreign exchange related contracts
- Currency forwards 379,915 2,186 (2,150}
- Currency swaps 685,089 6,435 (3,458)
- Currency options 1,775 10 (10)
- CCIRS 324,231 4,188 (10,364)
1,391,010 12,819 (15,982)
Interest rate related contracts
- Interest rate swaps 953,000 3,686 {6,124)
2,344,010 16,505 {22,106)
MFRS
1.8.2011
Foreign exchange related contracts
- Currency forwards 366,915 940 (4,598)
- Currency swaps 460,319 4,981 {742)
- Currency options 1,682 1 (1)
- CCIRS 407,686 14,912 (13,817)
1,236,602 20,834 (19,158)
Interest rate related contracts
- Interest rate swaps 1,168,000 5,900 {9,075)
2,404,602 26,734 (28,233)
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8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.8 Derivative financial instruments (continued)
Fair value
Notional Derivative  Derivative
amount assets lLiabilites
RM’oo00 RM’oo00 RM’oo00
FRS
31.7.2011
Foreign exchange related contracts
- Currency forwards 366,915 940 {4,598)
- Cuirency swaps 460,319 4,981 (742)
- Currency options 1,682 1 (1
- CCIRS 407,686 14,912 {(13,817)
1,236,602 20,834 (19,158)
Interest rate related contracts
- Interest rate swaps 1,168,000 5,900 {9,075)
2,404,602 26,734 (28,233)

Included in the foreign exchange related contracts as at the end of reporting period are contracts
entered into with other related party by the Group in its ordinary course of business, analysed by

remaining maturity as follows:

MFRS
31.7.2013
Within 1 year
1year to 5 years

MFRS
31.7.2012
Withiu 1 year

1 year to 5 years

MFRS
1.8.2011
1yearto 5 years

FRS
31.7.2011
1year to 5 years
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Fair value

Notional Derivative Derivative

amount assets liabilities

RM’000 RM’oo00 RM’o000
67,268 1,699 (a91)
393,113 1,975 (10,618)
460,381 3,674 (11,109)
121,678 479 (63)
170,361 448 (7,139)
292,039 927 (7.202)
149,256 - {9,228)
149,256 - (9,228)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Derivative financial instruments (continuned)

The fair values of the following outstanding futures contracts

deposits (note 8.9):

Interest rate related contracts - Futures
MFRS
31.7.2013

MFRS
31.7.2012

MFRS
1.8.2011

FRS
31.7.2011

Other assets

Financial assets
Trade receivables
Other receivables and deposits

Non-financial assets

Preference shares of Bursa Malaysia
Derivatives Berhad

Clearing Guarantee Fund

Prepayments

Clearing Fund

Other investments

Total Other Asset

(a) Trade receivables are stated net

are included in other receivables and

Fair value

Notional Derivative Derivative

amount assets liabilities

RM’oo00 RM'coo0 RM’oo0

105,000 298 -
11,760,000 640 {10,322)
3,380,000 219 (15,487)
3,380,000 219 {15,487)

MFRS FRS

31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
Note RM'oco RM'000 RM'000 RM'o00
(a) 126,490 44,113 8,667 8,634
14,038 14,948 21,161 21,161
140,528 59,061 29,828 29,795
() 1,045 2,100 2,100 2,100
(c) 2,114 2,058 2,002 2,002
(d} 11,756 2,504 2,413 2,413
(e) 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
245 831 940 940
16,160 8,493 8,455 8,455
156,688 67,554 38,283 38,250

of impairment allowances of RM510,000

RM363,000; 1.8.2011 and 31.7.2011: RM310,000).
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8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.9 Other assets (continued)

(b)

MERS FRS
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'oc00 RM'o00 RM'oo0 RM'oo0

Ungquoted 10% irredeemable non-cumulative

RM 1.00 preference shares in BMDBR, at cost

Class A (Equity Financial Participant) 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500

Class B (Non-equity Financial Participant) 500 500 500 500

Class C (Commodity Participant) 100 100 100 100

2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100

Accumulated impairment loss (1,055) - - -

1,045 2,100 2,100 2,100
The preference shares class A, B and C of Bursa Malaysia Derivatives Berhad (“BMDB”) are pre
requisites for the HDM Futures Sdn. Bhd. to be a Trading Participant of BMDB. Impairment
loss recognised during the financial year amounting to RM1,055,000 in respect of the
unquoted preference shares in BMDB is based on the fair value less cost to sell of the assets at
the estimated amount receivable arising from the proposed revamp of participantship
structure of BMDB.

(c) The contributions to Clearing Guarantee Fund represent interest-bearing contributions made
by HwangDBS Investment Bank Berhad as a trading clearing participant in accordance with
the Rules of Bursa Malaysia Securities Clearing Sdn. Bhd. (“Bursa Clearing”) to a fund
maintained by Bursa Clearing.

(d) Included in the prepayments of the Group as at the end of the reporting period are payments
to dealer's representatives amounting to RMg,275,000 (31.7.2012: RM Nil; 1.8.2011 and
31.7.2011: RM Nil) which are amortised to income statement on the straight line basis over the
pericd in which economic benefits are derived by the Group.

(e) The contributions to Clearing Fund represent interest bearing contributions made by a
subsidiary in accordance with the Business Rules of Bursa Malaysia Derivatives Clearing
Berhad.

8.10 Statutory deposits with Bank Negara Malaysia

The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are maintained with Bank Negara Malaysia (“BNM”} in
compliance with Section 26(2)(c) of the Central Bank of Malaysia Act, 20049, the amounts of which are
determined as set percentages of total eligible liabilities.
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8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.11 Deferred tax assets
MFRS FRS
31.7.2013 3L.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'oo0 RM'oo0 RM'ooo RM'o00
Subject to income tax:
Deferred tax assets 2,280 2,478 6,753 7,095
Deferred tax assets (before offsetting)
Loans, advances and financing - - 1,310 1,652
Accruals 8,786 6,174 4,159 4,159
Foreign exchange translation loss - - 4,266 4,266
Others 214 - 11 1
9,000 6,174 9,746 10,088
Offsetting (6,720) (3.696) (2,993) (2,993)
Deferred tax assets (after offsetting) 2,280 2,478 6,753 7,095
Deferred tax liabilities (before offsetting)
Property, plant and equipment (1,532} (1,296) (1,372) (1,372)
Securities AFS (1,189) {2,002) {1,621) {1,621)
Foreign exchange translation gain (3,999) (328) - -
Others - {70) - -
(6,720) {3,696) (2,993) (2,993}
Offsetting 6,720 3,606 2,093 2,093
Dcferred tax liabilities (afier offsetting) - - - -
Deferred tax assets
- to be recovered within 12 months 2,280 2,478 6,753 7,095
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Deferred tax assets (continued)
Movements in deferred tax are as follows:

Loans, Foreign
Property, advances exchange
plant and and Securities translation
equipment financing Accruals AFS loss/(gain} Others Total
RM'ooo RM’000 RM'oo0 RM'oo0 RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo
MFRS
2013
At beginning of the
financial year (1,296) - 6,174 (2,003) (328) (69) =z,478
Recognised in:
- profit or loss (236) - 2,612 - (3,671) 283 (1,012}
- other comprehensive
income - - - 814 - - 814
At end of the
financial year (1,532) - 8,786 (1,189) {3,999) 214 2,280

MFRS
2012
At beginning of the
financial year
- as previously reported (1,372) 1,652 4,159 (1,621) 4,266 11 7,005
- effects of transition to
MFRS - (342) - - - - {342)
- as restated (1,372) 1,310 4,159 (1,621) 4,266 11 6,753
Recognised in:
- profit or loss 76 (1,310) 2,015 - (4,594) (80) (3,893)
- other comprehensive
income - - - (382) - - (382)
At end of the
financial year (1,296) - 6,174 (2,003) (328) (69) 2,478

FRS
2011
At beginning of the

financial year
- as previously reported (1,695) 1,461 2,804 (587) 1,401 (14) 3,370
Recognised in:
- profit or loss 323 191 1,355 - 2,865 25 4,759
- other comiprehensive

income - - - (1,034) - - (1,034)

At end of the

financial year (1,372) 1,652 4,159 (1,621} 4,266 11 7,095
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8.12 Investments in assoeiates
MFEFRS FRS
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 3L7.2011
RM'oo0 RM'o00 RM'oo0 RM'ooo
Group
Share of net assets in associate 4,489 3,653 3,569 3,569
Goodwill on acquisition 55 55 55 55
4,544 3,708 3,624 3,624
Detail of the associate, which is incorporated in Malaysia, is as follows:
Equity Interest Principal Activity
Name of associate 2013 2012 2011
% % %
Asian Islamic Investment Management Sdn.
Bhd. 49 49 49 Islamic fund management
The group’s share of the assets and liabilities of the associate is as follows:
MFRS FRS
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'ooo0 RM'o00 RM'oco RM'ooo
Non-current assets 141 194 178 178
Current assets 4,910 3,665 3,499 3499
Current liabilities (562) (204) {108) (108)
4,489 3,655 3,569 3,569
The group’s share of income and expenses of the associate is as folows:
MFRS FRS
2013 2012 2011
RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'oco
Revenue 3:411 1,897 1,879
Other income 66 245 120
Expenses (2,646) (2,035) {1,649)
Profit before taxation 831 107 350
Taxation {(10) (21) (10)
Profit for the financial year 821 36 340
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8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment
Details of property, plant and equipment are as follows:
Furniture Air-
and Office Computer condi- Motor Reno-
fittings equipment equipment tioners vehicles vations Fotal

MFRS

2013

Cost

At 1 August 2012
Additions
Disposals/Write offs
At 31 July 2013

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 August 2012
Charge for the

financial year
Disposals/Write offs
At 31 July 2013

Net book value
31 July 2013

MFRS

2012

Cost

At 1 August 2011
Additions
Disposals/Write offs
At31July 2012

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 August 2011
Charge for the
financial year
Disposals/Write offs
Ata1July zo12

Netbook value
31 July 2012

45

RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'eoo RM'ooo RM'ecoo RM'ooo
10,432 9,281 39,290 1,640 9,509 11,716 81,868
283 324 3,393 20 450 64 4,534
(321) (356) (1,315) (40)  (2,969) (303) (5.304)
10,394 9,249 41,368 1,620 6,990 11,477 81,098
7,889 8,544 34,480 1,538 6,828 9,291 68,579
565 316 2,318 39 880 635 4,753
(315) {354) (1,186) (40)  (2,238) (295) (4,428)
8,139 8,506 35,621 1,537 5470 9,631 68,904
2,255 743 5.747 83 1,520 1,846 12,194
9,611 9,397 38,659 1,716 9,170 10,463 79,016
993 271 2,208 522 1,521 5,550
(172) (387) {1,577) (111) (183) (268) (2,698)
10,432 9,281 39,200 1,640 9,509 11,716 81,868
7,554 8,528 33,700 1,596 5,894 8,994 66,266
504 390 2,342 53 1,117 564 4,970
(169) (374) {1,554) (111) (183) (=267) (2,658)
7,889 8,544 34,488 1,538 6,828 9,291 68,578
2,543 737 4,802 102 2,681 2,425 13,290
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Details of property, plant and equipment are as follows (continued):

Furniture

and Office Computer
fittings equipment equipment tioners

RM'ooo RM'ooo

Air-
condi-

RM'ocoo RM'ooo

Motor Reno-
vehicles vations Total
RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo

FRS
2011
Cost
At 1 August 2010 9,221 9,205 38,321 1,694 7,871 10,389 76,701
Additions 615 430 1,405 52 2,478 581 5,561
Disposals/Write offs (225) (241) (1,064) (30) (1L179)  (507)  (3.246)
Reclassification - 3 (3) - - - R
At 31 July 2011/ 1 August 2011 9,611 9,397 38,659 1,716 9,170 10,463 79,016
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 August 2010 7,211 8,255 31,962 1,541 5,981 8,647 63,597
Charge for the
financial year 534 508 2,787 81 1,038 847 5,795
Disposals/Write offs (191) {235) (1,048) (27) (1,125) {500) (3,126)
At 31 July 2011/ 1 August 2011 7,554 8,528 33,701 1,595 5,894 8,994 66,266
Netbook value
31 July 2011/1 August 2011 2,057 869 4,958 121 3,276 1,469 12,750
Investment properties
Freehold
land Buildings Total
RM'ooo RM'oco RM'ooo
MFRS
2013
Cost
At 1 August 2012/31 July 2013 41,113 7,182 48,295
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 August 2012 - 312 312
Charge for the financial year - 143 143
At 31 July 2013 - 455 455
Net book value
At 31 July 2013 41,113 6,727 47,840
46
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Investment properties (continued)

Freehold
land Buildings Total
RM'ooo RM'oo0o RM'oo0
MFRS
2012
Cost
At 1 August 2011/31 July 2012 41,113 7,182 48,295

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 August 2011 - 168 168
Charge for the financial year - 144 144
At 31July 2012 - 312 312
Net book value

At 1 August 2011/31 July 2012 41,113 6,870 47,983
FRS

2011

Cost

At 1 August 2010/31.July 2011 41,113 7,182 48,295

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 August 2010 - 24 24
Charge for the financial year - 144 144
At 31 July 2011 - 168 168
Net book value

At 31 July 2011 41,113 7,014 48,127
(a) As at the end of the reporting period, the fair value of the investment properties is

determined at RMB81,000,000 based on valuation by an independent professionally
qualified valuer determined using the fair open market value basis. The fair value of the
investment properties as at the previous financial year end of RMé64,212,000
(1.8.2011/31.7.2011: RM70,156,000} was estimated on the basis of directors’ valuations,
based on current prices in an active market for similar properties in the same location and
condition.

{b) The direct operating expenses incuired on the investment properties held by the Group
which are rented to third parties during the financial year amounted to RM119,000 for the
financial year (2012: RM141,000, 2011 RM71,000). The expenses incurred by the Group on
other investment properties amounted to RM2,000 for the financial year (2012/2011;
RM2,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets

MFRS

2013

Cost

At 1 August 2012/31 July 2013

Accumulated impairment loss
At1 August 2012/31 July 2013

Net carrying amount
31 July 2013

MFRS

2012

Cost

At 1 August 2011/31 July 2012

Aceumulated impairment loss
At1 August 2011/31 July 2012

Net earrying amount
31 July 2012

FRS
2011
Cost
At 1 August 2010/31 July 2011

Accumulated impairment loss
At 1 August 2010/31 July 2011

Net carrying amount
31 July 2011

Goodwill
RM'oo0

130,202

Merchant

licence
RM'oo0

52,500

Total
RM'oo0

182,702

(20,200)

{(20,200)

110,002

52.500

162,502

130,202

52,500

182,702

(20,200}

(20,200}

110,002

52,500

162,502

130,202

72,500

182,702

(20,200)

(20,200)

110,002

52,500

162,502

The merchant bank licence represents contribution by the Group to the Government of Malaysia for
a licence to carry on merchant banking business and is considered to have an indefinite useful life,
which is not amortised and is assessed for impairment annually.
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28 May 2014

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Intangible assets (continued)

For impairment test purposes, the carrying amount of the goodwill of RM110 million is allocated to the
Group’s stockbroking operating unit, being regarded as a separate cash-generating unit (“CGU”) and
the cartying amount of merchant bank licence of RM52.5 million is allocated to the operating unit of
the investment banking division respectively. The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based
on the value in use calculations, These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on the
financial budgets and forecasts approved by the management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are projected using the estimated growth rate to perpetuity. The cash flow
projections are derived based on a number of key factors, including past performance as well as
management’s expectations of market developments and assessment of future trends, taking into
consideration the prevailing stock market conditions as at the date of assessment.

The key assumptions for the computation of value in use include growth rate and pre-tax discount rate,
which are applied to the cash flow projections and reflect the risks relating to the CGUs. The discount
rates applied are 7.33% (2012: 7.33%, 2011: 8.03%) and 7.33% (2012: 7.33%, 2011: 8.77%) for the
stockbroking and investment banking operating units respectively. The growth rate of 5.75% (2012:
5.50%, 2011: 5.7%) does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the industry in which the
Group operates.

No impairment charge is required for the financial year in respect of the intangible assets accruing to
the CGUs. Managemnent believes that any reasonable possible change to the key assumptions applied is
not likely to cause the recoverable amounts to be lower than their carnying amounts.

Deposits from customers

MFRS FRS
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'o0o RM'ooo RM'o00 RM'oo0
(a) By type of deposit
Fixed depostits 671,202 729,284 803,892 803,892
Negotiable instruments of deposit 3,481 2,943 3,873 3,873
Other deposits 4,157 5,197 1,616 1,616
678,840 737424 804,381 809,381
(b) By type of customer
Government and statutory bodies 310,555 37,103 140,389 140,389
Business enterprises 282,733 640,672 627,704 627,704
Individuals 70,185 46,009 37,365 37,365
Others 15,367 13,640 3,923 3,923
678,840 737,424 _ 809,381 804,381
(c) By maturity structure of term dcposits
Within 6 months 542,125 718,167 803,532 803,532
6 months to 1 year 136,715 19,257 5,849 5,849
678,840 737424 _ 809,381 809,381
49
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8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.17 Deposits and placements of banks and other financial institutions
MFRS FRS
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'coo0 RM'ocoo RM'ooo RM'o00
Licensed banks 404,985 229,899 88,463 88,463
Licensed investment banks 67,283 45,844 16,276 16,276
Bank Negara Malaysia 280,448 - - -
Other financial institutions 1,233,146 1,344,713 1,453,466 1,453,466

1,985,862 1,620,456 1,558,205 1,558,205

8.18 (Clients’ and brokers’ balanees

MFRS FRS
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'oo0 RM'o00 RM'ooo RM'ooo

Amounts dne to:
- Clients 180,632 185,313 81,875 81,875
- Brokers 43,332 14,411 104,850 104,850

223,564 199,724 186,725 186,725

Clients’ and brokers’ balances represent amounts pavable to clients of the Group and outstanding
contracts entered into on hehalf of these clients where settlements have yet to be made.

8.19 Other liabilities

MFRS FRS
Note 31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'o00 RM'ooo RM'oo0 RM'o00
Trade payables 182,613 108,931 45,174 45,174
Dealer’s representatives’ trust accounts (a) 37,749 38,493 43,645 43,645
Amounts payable to dealer's representatives (b} 7,042 7,858 9,663 9,663
Contributions payable to a defined contribution
plan © 1,351 1,492 1,417 1,417
Other payables and accruals 97,652 49,434 43,994 43,994
327,307 206,208 143,893 143,893
{a) The dealer’s representatives’ trust accounts represent trust monies held on behalf of dealer’s
representatives.
[§3))] Amounts payable to dealer’s representatives mainly comprise net commission payable.
(c) Other payables and accruals of the Group represent amounts payable arising from the daily

operations of the Group. Included in other payables and accruals of the Group as at the end of
the reporting period are dividends received on behalf of customers by certain subsidiaries
amounting to RM714,000 (31.7.2012; RM1,865,000; 1.8.2011 and 31.7.2011: RM4,699,000),
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Equity
Included in equity is Statutory reserve, AFS reserve, retained profit and non-controlling interest which

represents unrealised gains or losses arising from changes in fair values of securities classified as
avajlable-for-sale, net of tax.

Statutory AFS Retained  Non-controlling
Reserve Reserve Profits interest
RM'oo0 RM’'oo00 RM'ooo RM’o00
At 1 August 2012
- as previously reported 133,839 6,005 266,471 25,342
Profit for the financial year - - 45,580 14,763
Other comprehensive income for
the financial year, net of tax - (2,448) - (19)
Total comprehensive income for the
financial year - (2,448} 45,580 14,744
Transfer to statutory reserve 15,022 - (15,022} -
Dividend in respect of the financial
vear ended 31 July 2012
- - (25,150) (2,350}
At 31 July 2013 148,861 3,557 271,879 37,736
Statutory AFS Retained  Non-controlling
Reserve Reserve Profits interest
RM'ooo RM'ooo RM’oco0 RM'o00
At 1 August 2011 ;
- as previously reported 108,377 4,862 266,471 18,806
- effects of transition to MFRS - - - 1,028 -
- as restated 108,377 4,862 264,105 18,806
Profit for the financial year - - 56,527 8,708
Other comprehensive income for .
the financial year, net of tax - 1,143 - -
Total comprehensive income for the
financial year - 1,143 56,527 8,708
Transfer to statutory reserve 25,462 - (25,462} -
Dividend in respect of the financial
vear ended 31 July 2011
- - (28,699) (2,172)
At 31 July 2012 133,830 6,005 266,471 25,342
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8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.20 Equity {continued)

Included in equity is Statutory reserve, AFS reserve, retained profit and non-controlling interest which
represents unrealised gains or losses arising from changes in fair values of securities classified as
available-for-sale, net of tax {(continued)

Statutory ATFS Retained Profits  Non-controlling
Reserve Reserve interest
RM’ooo RM'000 RM’'ocoo RM’ooo
At 1 August 2010 80,132 1,761 248,417 15,710
Profit for the financial year - - 63,643 4,851
Other comprehensive income for
the financial year, net of tax - 3,101 - .
Total comprehensive income for the
financial year - 3,101 63,643 4,851
Transfer to statutory reserve 28.245 - (28,245) -
Dividend in respect of the financial
year ended 31 July 2011
- - (20,738) (1,764)
At 31 July 2011 108,377 4,862 263,077 18,806

8.21 Clients’ monies held in trust

The clients’ monies held in trust by the Group, which are not recognised in the financial statements in
accordance with FRSIC 18 are as follows:

MFRS FRS
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'o00 RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ocoo

Balances with banks 15,592 14,777 10,295 10,295
Mouey at call and deposit placements maturing
within one month 305,144 223,810 192,069 192,069
320,736 238,587 202,364 202,364
Deposits and placements with banks 2,370 2,303 2,241 2,241
323,106 240,890 204,605 204,605
52

315



Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX VI
ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON HWANG IB (Cont’d)
pwc
The Board of Directors
AFFIN Holdings Berhad
PwC/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/0129C
28 May 2014
8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.22 Interestincome
MERS FRS
2013 2012 2011
RM'ooo RM'ocoo RM'ocoo
Loans, advances and financing 30,830 28,586 30,056
Money at call and deposit placements
with financial institutions 23,659 16,657 23,073
Securities:
- AFS 46,754 44,975 24,415
- held-to-maturity 24,874 26,174 27,169
Others 954 468 570
127,071 116,860 105,283
Securities held-for-trading 5,298 7,843 17,344
Derivative financial instruments 6,784 8,810 11,274
139,153 133,513 133,901

During the financial year, there is no interest income earned on impaired loans and receivables of the
Group of which impairment allowance has been made (2012: RM Nil; 2011: RM Nil).

8.23 Interestexpense

MFRS FRS

2013 2012 2011
RM'ooo RM'oco RM'ooc

Deposits and placements of banks and other financial
institutions (56,105) (48,665) (46,630)
Deposits from customers (22,691) (24,475) (18,363)
Others (436) (466) (592)
(79,232) (73,606) (65,585)
Derivative financial instruments (6,464) (6,524) (8,651}
(85,696) (80,130) (74,236)
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8.24 Other operating income
MFRS FRS
2013 2012 2011
RM'ooo RM'oco RM'oo0
Fee and commission income:
Brokerage 58,440 63,794 97,845
Advisory and arranger fees 3,368 3,248 6,255
Underwriting commission and
placement income 1,621 2,554 3,606
Initial service charge 76,343 51,825 20,323
Management fee 94,169 56,445 44,624
Incentive fee 11,464 1,946 4,666
Other fees and commission 3,830 3,063 4,019
249,535 182,875 181,428
Net gain/(Joss) on securities
held-for-trading:
- net gain on disposal 18,399 28,418 15,054
- net unrealised loss (2,759) (684) 4,403
15,640 27,734 19,457
Net gain/(loss) on derivatives:
- net loss on disposal {9,368) (9,017) (8,021)
- net unrealised gain 6,091 9,680 10,680
(3,277) 663 2,659
Net gain on securities AFS:
- net gain on disposal 2,225 7,443 334
Gross dividends/income
distributions:
- securities held-for-trading 1,249 2,364 2,891
- securities AFS (guoted in Malaysia) 5,701 5,272 3,399
- securities AFS (quoted outside
Malaysia) 384 - -
7,334 7,636 6,290
Other income:
Net foreign exchange gain 16,093 8,652 5.183
Rental income
- investment properties -8 1,187 1,281
Insurance claim - 2,305 -
Others 4,463 3,660 3,200
20,634 15,894 9,673
292,091 242,245 219,841
54
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8.25 Other operating expenses
MFRS FRS
2013 2012 2011
RM'oo00 RM'o00 RM'ooo
Personnel costs:
Salaries, allowances and bonus (85,037) {80,993) {69,570)
Contributions to a defined contribution plan {(11,753) {10,954) (9,317}
Others (12,954) (12,144) {17,144)
(109,744} {104,091) {96,031)
Establishment related costs:
Depreciation:
- property, plant and equipment (4,753) (4.971) (5,795)
- investment properties {143) {144) (144)
Rental of:
- premises (9,133) (9,045) (8,772)
- equipment {2,487) (2,631) (2,695)
Repairs and maintenance of
premises and equipment (1,351) (1,412) (1.234)
Information technology expenses (2,096} (2,124) (2,282)
Others (6,382) (6,148) (5,505)
(26,345) (26,475) (26,427)
Promotion and marketing related
expenses:
Promotion and business development {11,268) (4,157) {15,991)
Others (3,552) (2,388) (2,498)
(14,820) (6,545) (18,489)
Administrative and general expenses:
Auditors’ remuneration:
- statutory audit (294) (274) (235)
- audit related (13) - -
- others (121) {2) (82)
Other professional and consultancy fees (3,080) (2,416) {2,585)
Communication expenses (7.874) (6,069) (4.629)
Regulatory charges (6,471) {5,658) (7,448)
Net gain on disposals of:
- property, plant and equipment 185 95 289
- other mvestments - 12 6
Property, plant and equipment written off (20) {20) (11)
Commission expense (88,942) (52,030) (27,170)
Others (8,983) (8,363) (11,974)
(115,613) (74,725) (53,839)
(266,522) {211,836) (194,786)
25
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8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.26 Directors’ remuneration
Contributions
to adefined
contribution Benefits
Salary Allowances Bonus Fees plan -in-kind  Total
RMM'o00 RM'ooo RM'aco0 RM'oo0 RM'ooe RM'ooo RM'ooo
MFERS
2013 144 75 - 373 23 - 615
MFRS
2012 144 77 190 384 53 13 861
FRS
2011 598 163 1,259 366 311 10 2,707
@ deferred bonus in respect of the financial year ended 31 July 2011
8.27 (Allowance)/Write back of allowance for losses on loans, advances and financing
MFRS FRS
2013 2012 2011
RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'oo0
Individual impairment
- written back - - 5,000
Collective impairment
- (made) fwritten back (965) 726 (739)
(965) 726 4.261
8.28 Write back of allowance for losses on clients’ balances and trade receivables
MFRS FRS
2013 2012 2011
RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo
Individual impainment
- made (214) (508) {269)
- written back 81 298 31
(133) (210) 42
Collective impairment - - (24)
Bad debts:
- recovered 219 692 850
86 482 868
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8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.29 Taxation
MFRS ¥RS
2013 2012 2011
RM'oo0 RM'o00 RM'oco
In respect of the current financial year:
Malaysian income tax (15,697 (17,434) (26,564)
Deferred tax (2,361) (2,390) 4,727
(18,058) (19,824) (21,837)
In respect of prior financial years:
Malaysian income tax {861) 1,476 110,
Deferred tax 1,349 (1,503) 32
488 (27) 142
(17,570) (19,851) (21,695)

The numerical reconciliatiou between the applicable statutory income tax rate and the effective

tax rate is as follows:

MFRS FRS
2013 2012 2011
% % %
Applicable statutory income tax rate 25.0 25.0 25.0
Tax effects iu respect of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 2.6 1.4 1.4
Income not subject to tax {4.5) (3.3) (2.1)
Unrecognised temporary differences - 0.3 -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses - (0.1) -
(Over)/Under accrual for taxation iu respect of prior
financial years {0.6) - (0.2)
Effective tax rate 22.5 23.3 24.1

Tax savings of the Group arisiug from utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses amounted

to RM Nil for the financial year (2012: RMg7,000).
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8.30 Other comprehensive income
Gross Tax Net
RM'ooo0 RM'ooo RM'ooo0
MFRS
2013
Securities AFS:
- net change in fair value (1,170) 282 (888)
- net gain transferred to profit or loss on disposal (2,125) 531 (1,594)
- share of AFS reserve of an associate 15 - 15
(3,280) 813 (2,467)
MFRS
2012
Securities AFS:
- net change in fair value 9,780 {2,445) 7,335
- net gain transferred to profit or loss on disposal {8,256) 2,064 (6,192)
1,524 (381) 1,143
FRS
2011
Securities AFS:
- net change in fair value 4,469 (1,117} 3,352
- net gain transferred to profit or loss on disposal (334) 83 (251)
4,135 (1,034) 3,101
8.31 Cash and cash equivalents
MFRS FRS
31.7.2013 31,7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'ooo0 RM'oo0 RM'oo0 RM'ooo
Cash and short term funds 1,167,089 650,603 621,020 621,020
Less: Monies held in trust and dividends received
on belalf of customers (81,667) (106,349) (101,841) (101,841)
1,085,422 544,254 519,179 519,179
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8.32 Significant related party transactions and balances

In addition to the related party disclosures mentioned elsewhere in the financial statements, the other
significant related party transactions and balances are as disclosed below.

(a) Related parties and relationship

The related parties of, and their relationship with the Group is as follows:

Relationship Related parties

Immediate and ultimate holding Hwang-DBS (Malaysia} Berhad (“HDBSM™)
company

Related companies Subsidiaries of HDBSM:

(a) HDM Properties Sdn Bhd

() HDM Capital Sdn Bhd

(c) HDM Private Equity Sdn Bhd

(d) HDM Capital Management Sdn Bhd

{¢) DM Management Services Sdn Bhd (In

liquidation}
(ff HDM Research & Publication Sdn Bhd (In
liquidation)
Associate Asian Islamic Investment Management Sdn Bhd
Other related parties
Key management personnet All directors of the Group and certain senior managenent
personnel who make critical decisions in relation to the
strategic direction of the Group (including their close family
members)
Substantial shareholder of HDBSM DBS Bank Ltd.
Subsidiaries of a substantial D3BS Vickers Securities (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

shareholder of HDBSM

(h) Significant related party transactions

Related eompanies
2013 2012 oom
RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo
Iucome
Interest income on term loan 1,644 1,789 1,793
Shared service fee 309 309 309
1,953 2,008 2,102
Expenses
Rental of premises (4,667) (4,838) (4,506)
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8.32 Significant related party transactions and balances {continued)
(k) Significant related party transactions (continued)
Other related parties
2013 2012 2011
RM'oo0 RM'oo0 RM'oco
Income
Brokerage income =39 601 1,019
Interest income on derivatives 1,969 919 344
Management fee 213 433 902
Referral fee 396 - -
Reimhursement of research expenses 2,158 2,005 2,228
Other fee income 471 389 489
5,946 4,437 4,982
Expenses
Management fee (3,059) (1,843) (2,679)
Incentive fee (399) {149) (223)
Advisory fee (331) (150} (375)
Comimission expense - (20) (182)
(3,789) (2,162) (3.459)

{c) Significant related party balances

Related companies

2013 2012 2011
RM'oo0 RM'oo0 RM'o00
Amount due from
Loans, advances and financing 34.504 37,505 40,015
Other related parties
2013 2012 2011
RM'oo0 RM'oco RM'ooo
Amount due from
Other assets 8.515 5,454 13,511
Cash and short term funds 2,388 1,187 1,619
10,903 6,641 15,130
Amount due to
Other liabilities (310) (:25) (210)
Deposit from customers (2,993) (981) (937)
(3,303) (1,206) (1,147)

The loan to a related company which is unsecured and carries an effective interest rate of
4.60% (31.7.2012: 4.60%; 1.8.2011: 4.65%) per annum is due for repayment on 31 December
2015.

The deposits and placements from a related company carry an effective interest rate of 2.87%
(31.7.2012: 2.93%; 1.8.2011: 3.19%) per annum.
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8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8.33 Capital management
The objectives of the Group when managing capital are:
. To comply with regulatory capital adequacy requirements imposed by the relevant authorities;

To safeguard the ability of the Group to continue in operations as a going concern; and

. To ensure availability of funds for future business operations.
The Group monitors capital based on regulatory capital requirements as prescribed by BNM. With
effect from January 2013, the Group is required to comply with the revised Capital Adequacy
Framework, as set out in the Capital Adequacy Framework (Basel II - Risk-Weighted Assets) and
Capital Adequacy Framework (Capital Comnponents) issued by BNM. Previously, capital adequacy
ratios of the Group were computed in accordance with the Risk-Weighted Capital Adequacy
Framework (Basel II - Risk-Weighted Assets Computation) issned by BNM. The Group adopts the
Standardised Approach for credit and market risks, and the Basic Indicator Approach for operational
risk.

{a) HwangDBS Investment Bank Berhad

HwangDBS Investment Bank Berhad is required to maintain, at all times, minimum capital adequacy
ratios as follows:

31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011

% % %

Common Equity Tier I (CET 1) Capital 3.5 - -

Tier 1 Capital ratic 4.5 - -
Total Capital ratio 8.0 -

Risk-weighted capital ratio - 8.0 8.0

HwangDBS Investment Bank Berhad is required to maintain, at all times, minimum capital funds of
RM500 million.

The Group carries out stress testing, from time to time, to estimate the potential impacts of planned
allacation of capital resources on its capital and capital adequacy ratios.
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8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.33 Capital management (continued)
(a) HwangDBS Investment Bank Berhad (continued)

The capital components and capital adequacy ratios of HwangDBS Investinent Bank, which are
computed in accordance with the revised Capital Adequacy Framework, are as follows:

31.7.2013
RM'ooo
Common Equity Tier I (CET 1) Capital
Issued and fully paid share capital 500,000
Retained profits 214,038
AFS reserve 3,564
Statutory reserve 148,861
866,463
Less: Regulatory adjustments
Intangible assets (162,502)
Deferred tax assets (463)
55% of AFS reserve (1,960)
(164,925)
CET 1 Capital/Tier 1 Capital 701,538
Tier 2 Capital
Collective impairment allowances 5,476
Less: Regulatory adjustment
Tuvestments in subsidiaries (financial eutities) (399)
Tier 2 Capital 5,077
Total Capital 766,615
CET1 Capital ratic 30.020%
Tier 1 Capital vatio 30.020%
Total Capital ratio 30.237%
62
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8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.33 Capital management (continued)
{a) HwangDBS Investment Bank Berhad (continued)

The capital components and capital adequacy ratios of HwangDBS Investment Bank Berhad as at
the previous financial year end and transition date to MFRS respectively, which were computed in
accordance with Risk-Weighted Capital Adequacy Framework (Basel II - Risk-Weighted Assets
Computation) issued by BNM, are as follows:

31.7.2012 1.8.2011
RM'ooo RM'ooo
Tier I capital:
Issued and fully paid share capital 500,000 500,000
Retained profits 218,670 215,275
Statutory reserve 133,839 108,377
Total Tier I capital 852,500 823,650
Less: Goodwill (110,002) (110,002)
Eligible Tier I capital 742,507 713,648
Tier II capital:
Collective impairment allowances 4,511 5,237
Total Tier I capital 4,511 5,237
Total capital 747,018 718,885
Less: Itivestments in subsidiaries (3,081) {3,081}
Other deductions (248) (418)
Capital base 743,689 715,386
Before deducting proposed dividend:
Core capital ratio 35.786% 36.470%
Risk-weighted capital ratio 35.843% 36.559%
After deducting proposed dividend:
Core capital ratio 34.702% 35.128%
Risk-weighted capital ratio 34.759% 35.217%

There is no comparative figures in respect of the capital adequacy ratios of HwangDBS Investment
Bank Berhad as at the previous financial year end and the transition date to MFRS.

HwangDBS Investment Bank Berhad complied with the regulatory capital requirements to which it
is subject to,

(b) HDM Futures Sdn. Bhd.

HDM Futures Sdn. Bhd. is required to maintain at all times, a minimum Adjusted Net Capital {“"ANC™)
as imposed by Bursa Malaysia Derivatives Berhad. The ANC is determined based on permitted assets
less adjusted liabilities of HDM Futures Sdn. Bhd. The minimuin ANC required is either RM500,000
or 10% of the aggregate margin required, whichever is higher
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8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.33 Capital management (continued)
(c) Hwang Investment Management Berhad

Hwang Investment Management Berhad is required to maintain minimum shareholders’ funds of
RM10 millionat all times as imposed by the Securities Commission.

8.34 Commitments and contingencies

Disclosure of commitments and contingencies and the related risk-weighted exposures in respect of
the Group is as follows:

Credit Risk-
Prineipal equivalent weighted
amount amount * amount
RM'ooo RM'ocoo RM'ooo
31.7.2013
Commitments
Commitments to extend credits with maturity of:
- up to 1 year 344,222 5,385 5,385
- OVer 1year 96,977 48,488 48,488
441,199 53,873 53,873
Derivative financial mistruments
Foreign exchange related contracts:
- up to 1year 1,573,044 49,452 34,946
- over 1 year to 5 years 792,008 94,027 31,881
Interest rate related contracts:
-up to 1 year 253,000 180 180
- over 1yearto 5 years 100,000 5,892 2,046
2,718,052 149,551 69,953
Total 3,159,251 203,424 123,826
31.7.2012
Contingencies
Direct credit substitutes 5,000 5,000 1,000
Commitments
Forward asset purchases 10,328 10,328 5,164
Obligatiou under underwriting agreement 10,000 5,000 5,000
Commitmeuts to extend credits with maturity of:
-up to1 year 444,134 14,000 14,000
- QVer 1 year 5,667 2,833 2,833
470,129 32,101 26,997
Derivative financial instruments
Foreign exchange related contracts:
- upto 1 year 1,220,649 32,444 13,734
- over 1year tg 5 years 170,361 16,149 3,230
Iuterest rate related contracts:
- up to 1 year 2,460,000 4,249 970
- over 1 year to 5 years 253,000 2,000 1,909
4,104,010 54,911 19,843
Total 4,579,139 92,072 47,840
04

327



C . 18-W
ompany No.: 232 APPENDIX VI

ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON HWANG IB (Cont’d)

pwec

The Board of Directors

AFFIN Holdings Berhad
PwC/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/o129C
28 May 2014

* The credit equivalent amount is arrived at using the credit conversion factors as specified by BNM.
8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.34 Commilments and contingencies (continued)

Disclosure of commitments and contingencies and the related risk-weighted exposures in respect of
the Group is as follows (continued):

Credit Risk-
Principal equivalent weighted
amount amount * amount

RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'oo00
1.8.2011/ 31.7.2011

Contingenceies

Direct credit substitutes 12,500 12,500 2,500

Commitments

Forward asset purchases 5,246 5,246 1,049

Commitments to extend credits with maturity of:

- up to 1year 422,235 5,000 5,000

- over 1year 20,915 10,457 2,457

448,390 20,703 8,506

Derivative financial instrinnents

Foreign exchange related contracts:

- upto 1 year 956,356 28,375 15,533

- over 1 year 1o 5 years 280,246 30,232 7,180

Interest rate related coutracts:

- up to 1 year 1,835,000 985 212

- over 1 year to 5 years 2,713,000 15,661 5,992
5,784,602 75,253 28,917

Total 6,245,498 108,456 39,923

* The credit equivalent amount is arrived at using the credit conversion factors as specified by BNM.

8.35 Capital expenditure commitiments

31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011
RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooco

In respect of property, plant and equipment:
Contracted but not provided for 221 2,040 769
Approved but not contracted for 12,530 17,132 19,167
12,751 19,172 19,936
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8.36 Non-cancellable operating lease commitments
31.7.2013 3L7.2012 1.8.2011
RM'ooo RM'oco RM'coc
Future minimum lease payable: .
- not later than 1 year 4,153 4,722 4,446
-later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 1,540 2,128 2,581
5.693 6,850 7,027
Futnre minimum lease receivable:
- not later than 1 year - 72 1,103
-later than 1 year but not
later than 5 years - 63 -
- 135 1,103
The lease commitments are in respect of rentals of equipment and premises.
8.37 Financial risk management

Risk management is an integral part of the Hwang DBS Investment Bank (“Investment Bank”)’s
business and the main risks faced by the Investiment Bank are credit, market and liquidity risks. The
Investment Bank has put in place a risk governance framework which articulates the objectives,
guiding principles, governance structure and processes inherent in the way risk management is
managed. The risk governance framework governs the formulation of risk policies covering credit,
market and liquidity risks.

The risk governance structure is cascaded throughout all levels of the Investment Bank, which
comprises the Board of Directors (“the Board”), executive management, business units and support
units. The Board, which is assisted by the Board Risk Management Committee (“BRMC”) and the
executive management Risk Oversight Committee ("ROC”), is ultimately responsible for assuming the
risks inherent in the Investment Bank’s business activities and defining the policies for governing
those activities.

Risk management reports are produced and subimitted to the ROC and BRMC on a regular basis to
facilitate their effective oversight of risk management activities undertaken by the Investment Bank
and for decision-making on prompt actions to be taken, if any.

(a) Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the potential risk of financial loss arising from defaults by counterparties
in meeting their obligations. The Investment Bank’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily
from share trading, share margin financing, corporate/inter-bank lending activities, bonds
and foreign exchange trading as well as equity and debt underwriting activities. The primary
objective of credit risk management is to ensure that exposure to credit risk is kept within the
Group’s capacity to withstand potential financial losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

67

Credit risk (continued)

Risk management framework and governance

There is a clear segregation of duties between originating business units and credit
management. The Credit Management Department reviews and approves all credit
applications within the defined delegation of authority (“DoA”) framework approved by the
Board. The lending activities are governed by the Group’s Core Credit Risk Policy which
ensures that the overall lending objectives achieved are in compliance with the internal and
regulatory requirements. -

The Investment Bank’s Core Credit Risk Policy is formulated and periodically reviewed by the
Credit Risk Management Department which is independent of the Credit Management
Department. The Credit Risk Management Department being a part of the Investment Bank's
Risk Management Department, manages the regular risk reporting of the Investment Bank’s
credit exposures to the ROC and BRMC as well as conducts periodic stress tests on these
exposures.

The Credit Approval Committee (“CAC”) is empowered to approve, reject or modify any credit
applications/credit renewals for corporate borrowers, share margin financing and
underwriting of equities, equity-linked instruments and debt securities, as outlined in the DoA
framework, Any application beyond the CAC's authority shall be submitted to the Executive
Commiittee (“EXCO”) or the Board for approval.

Risk monitoring

Credit risk exposures are mitigated via preventive risk tnanagement measures in limiting the
exposures in accordance with the Investment Bank's risk appetite as well as regular
monitoring of credit exposures. All corporate credit and share margin financing applications
are evaluated by credit management and forwarded to the relevant approving authorities
based on the DoA framework.

Credit granting to corporate customers is individually risk-rated using the Investmeut Bank’s
internal counterparty risk rating system based on assessment of relevant factors, including
each corporate borrower’s financial conditions, market position, access to capital and
manageinent strength, The internal credit ratings are reviewed at least annually and more
frequently when conditions warrant.

Credit risk exposures associated with share margin trading are reviewed and monitored closely
on a daily basis by designated risk management/operations officers, who will review amongst
others, credit limnit utilisation, exposure to single security or client/group of counterparty and
equity positions against collateral.
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8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8.37 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

(b)

68

Credit risk (continued)

Credit reviews on corporate borrowers, individual customers and counterparties are
performed on a regular basis to enable identification of indications of impairment, early
warnings detection as well as in ensuring creditability and financial performance of the
corporate borrowers, where applicable to protect the Investment Bank's position in debt
recovery.

Daily management and monitoring of credit risk associated with clients’ trading is undertaken
by the credit control unit to ensure compliance with the approved policies and procedures of
the Investment Bank and regulatory requirements,

Credit concentration risks are managed via sector concentration limits which are regularly
monitored to ensure sufficient diversification of credit exposures. Sector concentration limits
are approved by the Board based on the Investiment Bank’s risk appetite and these limits are
reviewed at least annually. The Investment Bank’s definition of sector concentration conforms
to the sector codes as prescribed in the BNM Guideline for submission of Financial
Institutions Statistical System (FISS) Reports.

Credit risk arising from fund management activities is mitigated to a certain extent as
settlement is regulated by the Securities Commission.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses arising from changes in market prices or rates, such as interest
rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

Risk management framework and governance

The market risk framework of the Investment Bank comprises Market Risk Policy ("MRP”)
that establishes the base standards on management of market and liquidity risks as well as sets
out policies at a more detailed level for specific subject matters. The MRP comprises the
following elements:

» Market risk management principles;

. Market risk measurement techniques;

. Valuation methodology;

. Market risk limit structure and management;

. Guidelines on validation of valuation models and market risk models; and

. New product/service process whereby risk issues are identified and managed with

robust control measures before new products are launched.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management (continued)

b)

69

Market risk (continued)

Management of interest rate risk in the banking book (“IRRBB”) is governed by the Asset and
Liability Management (“ALM”) Policy.

The ROC reviews, assesses and monitors risk controls, risk limits, stress testing results,
adequacy of resetrves, valuation methodology and internal models for both trading and
banking books. The Risk Management Department (“RMD") is responsible for the
measurement and monitoring of all market risk limits as set out in the Investment Bank's
Board-approved Risk Limit Policy. Any limit excesses are reported in accordance with the
exception escalation procedures, which may be followed by remedial processes of liquidating,
hedging and cutiing losses, if necessary. The Investment Bank also sets trigger limits in
alerting the management on potential limit breaches and unusual movements of certain
indicators to prompt early investigative actions and escalation process. The market risk limits
are reviewed annually taking into consideration the Investment Bank’s bnsiness strategies,
profitability target as well as the economic environment.

Risk monitoring

(1) Trading book porifolio

The principal measurement technique used by the Investiment Bank to measure and
control market risk exposures arising from the tradiug book portfolio is Value-at-Risk
(“VaR”). The VaR model measures material risks arising from trading book, which
covers interest rate and foreign exchange risks. The VaR model is back-tested regularly
to validate its robustness. In addition, the Investment bank also uses other market risk
controls, such as stop loss, which sets a threshold on the net cumulative loss of the
trading book over a defined period of time; and present value basis point (“PVBP*), an
interest rate sensitivity tool. Stress testing complements the VaR framework in
managing market risks.

(in) Interest rate risk in the banking book

The Investment Bank is exposed to interest rate risk in the banking book (“IRRBB™)
when there are re-pricing mismatches due to differing tenors and pricing of the
interest-seusitive assets and liabilities in the bauking book. The objective of the
management of IRRBB is to maintain an acceptable mismatch in interest-sensitive
assets and liabilities in the banking book, while achieving a desired level of earnings.

In managing IRRBB, both the earnings and economic value approaches are adopted.
Interest-sensitive assets and liabilities are grouped into time buckets based on the
earlier of remaining period to maturity or next re-pricing; before a parallel interest
rate shock is applied to determine the impact of sensitivity shocks on earnings and
economic vale.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

70

Market risk (continued)

Risk monitoring (continued)

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest rate risk in the banking book (continued)

The earnings approach focuses on the impact of interest rate movements on the
Investment Bank’s near term earnings. The economic value approach provides a more
comprehensive view of the impact of interest rate movements on the economic value
of the Investment Bank’s overall position, which is subject to approved limits and
monitored on a monthly basis.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate
due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, Significant foreign exchange
exposures arising from the holding of monetary assets and liabilities of which cash
flows are denominated in a currency other than the Group’s functional currency are
generally covered using derivative finaneial instruments, such as foreign exchange
forward contracts.

Equity risk

Equity risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in equity prices. The Investment Bank's equity risk mainly arises from
investment in equity-based instruments and Collective Investment Schemes held for
trading and/or yield purpose, as well as from equity underwriting business. Equity risk
is managed and monitored through stop loss limits as well as limits set based on the
issued share capital/fund size of issuers and the Investment Bank’s capital base.

The investinent mmanagement subsidiary minimises its exposure to market risk arising from
holding of inanager’s stocks by imposing exposure, investment and concentration limits on the
funds managed by the subsidiary as well as having in place cut-loss policies to reduce the
potential loss in the eveut of systemic market risk.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Finanecial risk management (continued)

(c)

71

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of loss due to inability to access sufficient funds at a reasonable cost,
to tneet payment obligations when they fall due.

Risk management framework and governance

The Investment Bank’s liquidity risk management is governed by the guidelines as stipulated
in the ALM Policy.

The ROC is delegated with the formulation, revision and implementation of liquidity risk
policy in relation to mneasurement and management of liquidity. Essentially, the ROC is
responsible for reviewing, assessing and monitoring of measurement tools, risk limits, stress
test results as well as developing funding strategies. The ROC also provides oversight of
structural interest rate risk in managing the Investment Bank’s trading and banking books.

Liquidity risk is monitored against the approved limits/ratios as set out in the Investment
Bank’s Risk Limit Policy. Any limit excesses are reported in accordance with the exception
escalation procedures. Review of the liquidity risk limits/ratios is conducted annually.

Risk monitoring

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient liquid assets and the
availability of fuuding through various sources of funding and adequate comimitted credit
facilities to ensure that the Group is able to meet its daily cash flows requirements. The Group
manages the funding needs and allocates funds in such a manner that all business units
maintain optimum levels of liquidity sufficient for their operations. As part of its liquidity risk
management, the Group also focuses on optimising its funding costs and diversifying its
funding sources.

The Group practices prudent liquidity risk management to ensure that there is adequate cash
flow to meet all its obligations. Sufficient credit facilities are maintained with other financial
institutions for contingent working capital and funding requirements,

The Group has in place a contingency funding plan which outlines the composition of the crisis
management team, the responsibilities of key personnel and committee, as well as detailed
action plans during a liquidity crisis. The coutingency funding plan also spells out early
warning signs and triggers of impending liquidity crisis.

The primary tool adopted by the Investment Bank in monitoring liquidity risk is via liquidity
gap profile, which measures the projected maturity mismatch of the Investment Bank’s assets,
liabilities and other financial commitments by matching the expected cash inflows and
outflows into the relevant time bands based on the behavioural patterns of certain financia
instruments. In additien, the Investment Bank employs various liquidity and coucentration
ratios to manage funding liquidity risk.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management (continued)

(c)

(d)

72

Liquidity risk (continued)

Besides having internal liquidity risk management tools in place, the Investment Bank
complies with the BNM Liquidity Framework in assessing its soundness of liquidity standing.

The Investment Bank conducts regular stress testing on its liquidity risk profile whereby the
behavioural assumptions, such as deposit withdrawal and facility drawdown are stressed to
assess the potential impact on funding liquidity.

Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)

The Investment Bank has implemented the ICAAP in accordance to BNM’s Risk-Weighted
Capital Adequacy Framework (Basel II), which aims to ensure that banking institutions
maintain adequate capital levels to support their business activities beyond the minimum
regulatory capital requirements as dictated under Pillar 1.

Based on Pillar 1 risks and other material risks identified under Pillar 2, the overall capital
adequacy of the Imvestment Bank shall be assessed in a forward-looking manner that is
consistent with its risk profile and business plan, including stressed conditions.

The Investment Bank performs the TCAAP on a half-yearly basis and the results are tabled at
the ROC and BRMC for deliberations and remedial actions to be taken, if any. Broadly, the
ICAAP methodology involves risk assessment, risk measurement, stress testing and integrated
risk & capital planning and reporting.

The ICAAP document is also submitted to Bank Negara Malaysia as a regulatory requirement.
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Financial instruments

(a)

73

Classification of financial instruments

The canying amounts of financial assets available-for-sale and held-to-maturity are as
disclosed in the statements of financial position of the Group.

Financial assets and financial liabilities held-for-trading of the Group consists of the following;

31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'ooo RM'ocoo RM'coo RM’ooo
Financial assets
Securities held-for-trading 55,319 170,08¢ 337,659 337,659
Derivative assets 306,579 16,505 26,734 26,734
91,898 186,594 364,393 364,393
Financial liabilities
Derivative liabilities (45,883) (22,106) {28,233) (28,233)
Loans and receivables of the Group consist of the following;
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM’oo0
Financial assets
Cash and short terin funds 1,167,089 650,603 621,020 621,020
Deposits and placements with banks and
other financial institutions - - 150,079 150,079
Loans, advances and financing 464,850 371,406 431,191 424,882
Clients’ and brokers’ balances 225,613 179,126 168,130 168,102
Other financial assets 140,528 50,061 20,828 20,795
1,998,080 1,260,196 1,400,248 1,398,878
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8.38 Financial instruments (eontinued)
(a) Classification of financial instruments (eontinued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost of the Group consists of the following:
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'oo0 RM'oco0 RM'oco RM’000
Financial lHabilities
Deposits from customers (678,840) {(737,424) {809,381) (809,381)
Deposits and placements
of banks and other
financial institutions (1,985,862) {1,620,456) (1,558,205) (1,558,205)
Clients’ and brokers’
balances (223,964) {(199,724) {186,725) (186.725)
Other financial liabilities (287,307) {206,208) (143,803) (143,893}
(3,175,973) (2,763,812) {2,698,204)  (2,698,204)
(b) Maximum exposure to credit risk

The financial assets of the Group is subject to credit risk except for actively traded quoted
securities held-for-trading, which are subject to price risk and cash in hand,

For financial assets recognised in the statements of financial position which are subject to
credit risk, the maximum exposure to credit risk equals their carrying amounts, For credit
related commitments or contingencies not recognised in the statements of financial positions,
the maximum exposure to credit risk is the full amount of the irrevocable committed facilities
or the maximum amount the Group would have to pay if the obligations arising from financial
instruments issued being called upon.

The table below presents the maxiinum exposure to credit risk of the Group as at the end of
the reporting period (without taking into account of any collateral held or other credit
enhancements) in respect of items uot recoguised in the statements of financial position.

31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011

RM'ooo0 RM'o00 RM'oo0 RM'ooo

Commitments 123,904 95,995 51,161 51,161
Contingencies - 5,000 12,500 12,500
123,904 100,995 63,661 63,661
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8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.38 Financial instruments (continued)
(c) Collateral and other credit enhancements obtained

The main types of collateral and other credit enhancements obtained by the Group in respect
of loans and receivables are as follows:

Classes of loans and receivables Types of collateral

Share margin financing (a) Securities quoted on Bursa Securities
((5))] Cash deposits

Term loans (a) Securities quoted on Bursa Securities
(b) Unqguoted securities
(c) Properties and other assets
(d) Debentures and guarantees

Clieuts’ and brokers’ balances (a) Securities quoted on Bursa Securities
b) Cash deposits

Trade receivables and other receivables are generally unsecured.

Pledges of collateral are negotiated with the counterparties for the purpose of reduciug credit
risk. The Group take into consideration the marketability and counterparty of the collateral as
well as the adequacy of debt coverage in assessing the acceptability of collateral, The collateral
obtained by the Group is valued pericdically depending on the types of collateral. Quoted
securities are valued based on quoted and observable market prices. Properties are valued
based on valuation by independent professional valuers or recent transacted prices of
properties in the adjacent locations.

75

338



Company No.: 23218-W APPENDIX VI

ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON HWANG IB (Cont’d)

pwec

The Board of Directors

AFFIN Holdings Berhad
PwC/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/o129C
28 May 2014

8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.38 Financial instruments (continued)
(d) Credit quality of financial assets

Exposures of the Group to credit risk as at the end of the reporting period (without taking into
account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements and allowances for impairment
losses) are as follows:

Neither past Past due

due nor but not
impaired impaired Impaired
RM'oo0 RM'ooo0 RM'o00

31.7.2013
Short term funds and deposit placements with financial
institutions (exclude cash in hand) 1,167,046 - -
Securities held-for-trading (exclude quoted securities) 19,860 - -
Securities AFS 1,206,461 - -
Securities held-to-maturity 370,268 - -
Loans, advances and financing 470,326 - -
Clients” and brokers’ balances 224,041 1,419 692
Derivative assets 36,579 - -
Other financial assets 140,413 52 573
3,635,024 1,471 1,265
31.7.2012
Short term funds and deposit placements with financial
institutions (exclude cash in hand) 650,501 - -
Securities held-for-trading (exclude quoted securities) 132,855 - -
Securities AFS 1,397,569 - -
Securities held-to-maturity 399,921 - -
Loans, advances and financing 375,017 - 3,550
Clients’ and brokers’ balances 176,864 2,053 762
Derivative assets 16,505 - -
Other financial assets 58,561 438 425
3,208,753 2,491 4,737
1.8.2011
Short term funds and deposit placements with financial
institutions (exclude cash in hand) 771,055 - -
Securities held-for-trading (exclude quoted securities) 298,495 - -
Securities AFS 1,031,721 - -
Securities held-to-maturity 388,335 - -
Loaus, advances and financing 436,428 - 3,550
Clients’ and brokers’ balances 166,434 1,236 1,172
Derivative assets 26,734 - -
Other financial assets 27,849 1,211 1,078
3,147,051 2,447 5,800
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8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.38 Financial instruments (continued)
(d) Credit quality of financial assets (eontinued)

Neither past Past due

due nor but not
impaired  impaired Impaired
RM'oo0 RM'o0o0 RM'oo0

31.7.2011

Short term funds and deposit placements with financial

institutions (exctude cash in hand) 771,055 - -
Securities held-for-trading (exclude quoted securities) 298,495 - -
Securities AFS 1,031,721 - -
Securities held-to-maturity 388,335 - -
Loans, advauces and financing 436,428 - 3,550
Clients’ and brokers’ balances 166,434 1,236 1,172
Derivative assets 26,734 - -
Other financial assets 27,816 1,211 1,078

3,147,051 2,447 5,800

The financial effect of collateral (quantification of the extent to which collateral and other
credit enhancements mitigate credit risk) held for loans, advances and financing of the Group
is 72% (31.7.2012: 77%; 1.8.2011: 78%). The financial effect of collateral held for other financial
assets is not significant.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

(e)

78

Credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Short term funds and deposit placements with financial institutions (exclude cash in hand)

Analysis of short term funds and deposit placements with financial institutions of the Group

(exclude cash in hand) by counterparty is as follows;

31.7.2013 31.7.2012 18,2011 31.7.2011
RM'o00 RM'ooo RM'oo00 RM'ooo

Bank balances and deposit placements with:
Bank Negara Malaysia 219 90 400,816 400,816
Licensed banks in Malaysia 746,431 480,548 201,124 201,124
Licensed investment banks in Malaysia 403,125 161,119 71,027 71,027
Foreign fiuancial institutions 15,129 6,620 6,520 6,520
Others 2,142 2,184 1,568 1,568
1,167,046 650,561 771,055 771,055

Securities portfolio

Analysis of securities portfolic of the Group by external credit rating (without taking into

account of allowances for impairment losses) is as follows:

External credit rating *

AAAto A+to BBB+to
AA- A- BBB-
RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo
Group
31.7.2013
Securities held-for-trading
Unquoted deht securities 19,890 - -
Securities AFS
Unquoted debt securities 458,551 25,183 102,455

Securities held-to-maturity

Unquoted debt securities 131,391 31,860 207,017

Unrated
- sovereign
RM'oo0

473,193

Unrated
- others Total
RM'ooo RM'ooo

- 19,890

147,079 1,206,461

- 370,268

609,832 57,043 309,472

473,193 147,079 1,566,619

341



Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX VI
ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT ON HWANG IB (Cont'd)
The Board of Direetors
AFFIN Holdings Berhad
PwC/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/o129C
28 May 2014
8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.38 Financial instruments (continued)
(e) Credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
(eontinued)
External credit rating *
AAAto A+to BBEB+to Unrated Unrated
AA- A- BBB- -sovereign - others Total
RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'oo00 RM'oo0 RM'ooo RM'ooo
31.7.2012
Securities held-for-trading
Unquoted debt securities 56,774 - 5,083 70,998 - 132,855
Securities AFS
Unquoted debt securities
Securities HTM 536,900 68,908 69,164 611,559 110,942 1,397,569
Ungquoted debt securities 132,406 72,236 195,279 - - 399,921
726,176 141,144 269,526 682,557 110,942 1,930,345
1.8.2011
Securities held-for-trading
Unquoted debt securities 161,526 85,100 - 51,869 - 298,495
Securijties AFS
Unquoted debt securities 498,257 102,313 46,910 311,661 72,580 1,031,721
Securities held-to-maturity
Unquoted debt securities 133,374 71,458 183,503 - - 388,335
793,157 258,871 230,413 363,530 72,580 1,718,551
31.7.2011
Securities held-for-trading
Unquoted debt securities 161,526 85,100 - 51,869 - 298,495
Securities AFS
Unquoted debt securities 498,257 102,313 46,910 311,661 72,580 1,031,721
Securities held-to-maturity
Unquoted debt securities 133,374 71,458 183,503 - - 388,335
793:157 258,871 230,413 363,530 72,580 1,718,551

¥ The credit ratings cited represent ratings by the Malaysian Rating Corporation Berhad with
equivalent ratings by other rating agencies being classified similarly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments {continued)

{(e) Credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

(continued)

Loans, advances and financing

The credit quality of the loans, advances and financing of the Group that are neither past due
nor impairment (without taking into account of allowances for impairment losses) is analysed

as follows:

(1)  Share margiu financing

31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 3L.7.2011
RM'ooo0 RM'o00 RM'oo0 RM'oo0o
Equity margin:
-150% or more 168,036 201,562 253,624 253,624
-130% to less than 150% - - 7 7
168,036 201,562 253,031 253,631
(i) Term loaus
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'o00 RM'o00 RM'oco0 RM'coo
Loans which were:
- neither past dne nor impaired in the
preceding 6 months 302,290 174,355 182,797 182,797
- past due or impaired in the preceding
6 months - - - -
302,290 174,355 182,797 182,797

Clients’ aud hrokers’ balances

As at the end of the reporting period, approximately 99% (31.7.2012: 98%; 1.8.2011: 98%) of
the amounts due from clients’ and brokers’ balances arise from regular way purchase contracts
whereby delivery of assets purchased is subject to time frame established generally by

regulations or convention in the market place.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Finanecial instruments (continued)

(e)

81

Credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

(continued)

Derivative assets

Analysis of derivative assets held by the Group by counterparty is as follows:

31.7.2013 31.7.2012 18.2011 31.7.2011
RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'o000 RM'o00
In Malaysia

Licensed banks 8,324 12,757 25,708 25,708
Licensed investment banks 1,444 - - -
Other financial institutions 22.004 2,065 192 192
Business enterprises 230 749 820 Bz20
Individuals 1 7 1 1
32,003 15,578 26,721 26,721

Outside Malaysia
Foreign financial institutions 3,676 927 13 13
36,579 16,505 26,734 20,734

Other financial assets

Analysis of other financial assets of the Group that are neither past due nor impaired by classes

of assets is as follows:

31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1,8.2011 31.7.2011

RM'ooo0 RM'o00 RM'oo0 RM'ooo

Trade receivables 126,373 43,613 6,163 6,163

Collateral/Margin deposits for 6,587 5,830 12,709 12,709
derivative transactions

Others 7:453 9,118 8,977 8,944

140,413 58,501 27,849 27.816

Trade recetvables of the Group mainly arise from corporate finance advisory and research

activities.

Collateral/Margin deposits for derivative transactions are placed by the Group in the ordinary
course of its business. Other financial assets of the Group as at the end of the reporting period

mainly comprise deposits placed by the Group with service providers.
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NQTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)
(3] Aging analysis of financial assets that are past due but not impaired
The aging analysis of loans and receivables that are past due but not impaired as at the end of

the reporting period (without taking into account of any collateral held or other credit
enhancements and allowances for impairment losses) are as follows:

Past due period
Less than 1 monthto 2monthsto
1 month <2months < 3 months Total
RM'oo0 RM'oo0 RM'o00 RM'oo00
Group
31.7.2013
Clients’ and brokers’ balances 1,419 - - 1,419
Other financial assets
Trade receivables 52 - - 52
1,471 - - 1,471
31.7.2012
Clients’ and brokers’ balances 2,053 - - 2,053
Other financial assets
Trade receivables 267 65 106 438
2,320 65 106 2,491
1.8.2011
Clients’ and brokers’ balances 1,236 - - 1,236
Other financial assets
Trade receivables 769 384 58 1,211
2,005 384 58 2,447
31.7.2011
Clients’ and brokers’ balances 1,236 - - 1,236
Other financial assets
Trade receivables 769 384 58 1,211
2,005 384 58 2,447

Loans and receivables, which are past due for less than 3 months, are not usually considered
impaired unless the loans and receivables exhibit indications of credit weaknesses. Past due
loans and receivables are closely monitored by management to secure debt repayment.
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PwC/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/o129C
28 May 2014

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

(g) Analysis of individually impaired financial assets

Loans, advances and financing
Corporate loans
Clients’ and brokers’ balances
Other financial assets
Trade receivables

Gross impaired accounts

(h) Movements in impairment allowances by classes of financial assets

Collective immpairment allowance
MFRS

2013

At beginning of the financial year

Net allowance (written back)/made
At end of the financial year

MERS

2012

At beginning of the financial year
- as previously reported

- effects of transition to MFRS

- as restated

Net allowance written back

At end of the financial year

FRS

2011

At beginning of the financial year

- as previonsly reported

- effects of transition to MFRS

- as restated

Net allowance (written back)/ made
At end of the financial year

* Included in other assets (note 8.g).

83

31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.B.2011 31.7.2011
RM'ooo RM'o00 RM'coo RM'oc0
- 3,550 3,550 3,550
692 762 1,172 1,172
573 425 1,078 1,078
1,265 4,737 5,800 5,800
Loans, advances and
financing
Share Clients’ and Trade
margin  Corporate brokers’ receiva-
financing loans balances bles *
RM'ooo0 RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'oo0
2,419 2,092 - -
(570) 1,535 - -
1,849 3,627 - -
3,804 2,742 28 31
{760) (549 (28) {31)
3,044 2,193 - -
(625) (101) - -
2,419 2,092 - -
3,889 1,918 19 16
- - 9 15
3,889 1,918 28 31
(85) 824 - -
3,804 2,742 28 31
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APPENDIX VI

ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON HWANG IB (Cont'd)

pwec

8.38

The Board of Directors

AFFIN Holdings Berhad
PwC/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/0129C
28 May 2014

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (econtinued)

(h) Movements in impairment allowances by classes of financial assets (continued)

Loans, advances and

financing
Share Clients’ and Trade
margin Corporate brokers’ receiva-
financing loans  balances bles *
RM'oo0 RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo
Individual itnpairment allowance
2013
At beginning of the financial year - 3,550 553 363
Allowance made - - 67 147
Amount written back - - (81) -
Amount written off - (3,550) - -
At end of the financial year - - 539 510
2012
At beginning of the financial year - 3,550 712 310
Allowance made - - 145 363
Amount written back - - (286) {12)
Amouitt written off - (3,550) (18) {298)
At end of the financial year ~ - 553 363
2011
At beginning of the financial year - 8,550 576 488
Allowance made - - 237 32
Amount written back - (5,000) (101} (210)
Amount written off - - - -
At end of the financial year - 3,550 712 310

* Included in other assets (note 8.9).
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APPENDIX VI

ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON HWANG IB (Cont'd)

pwec

8.38

The Board of Directors
AFFIN Holdings Berhad

PwC/SHKY/TCW /NSZ/py/o129C

28 May 2014

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

(k)

a7

Exposure to foreign exchange risk

The table below sets out the RM equivalent amounts of financial assets, financial liabilities and
derivative financial instruments of the Group, which are denominated in foreign currencies as
at the end of the reporting period. Non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities are
stated at carrying amounts. Derivatives financial instruments are stated at net notional
amounts of derivative contracts.

31.7.2013

Financial assets

Cash and short term funds
Securities HFT

Securities AFS

Securities held-to-maturity
Clients’ and brekers’ balances
Other financial assets

Financial liabilities

Deposits frem customers

Deposits and placements of
banks and other financial
institutions

Clients’ and brokers’ balances

Other financial liabilities

Net open position

Derivative financial
instruments

Net open position and
derivative financial
instruments

US Singapore Australian Hong Kong Other
Dollar Dollar Dollar Dollar currencies Total
RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo
7.453 8,369 7,827 519 1,430 25,598
15 3 2 - - 20
72,202 258,975 - - - 331,177
207,017 - - - - 207,017
694 374 345 7,117 198 8,728
12,214 914 2,224 269 6 15,627
299,595 268,635 10,398 7,905 1,634 588,167
(372) (zo7)  (1,129) - (638) (2,346)
{(330,255) (3,833) - - - (334,088)
(6,316) (528) (342) (607) - (7,793)
(344) {790) _ (6,320) - (191)  (7,645)
(337,287)  (5,358) (7,791) (607) (829) {351,872)
{37,692) 263,277 2,607 7,298 805 236,295
76,858 (258,906) - - - (182,048)
39,166 4,371 2,607 7,298 805 54,247
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The Board of Directors
AFFIN Holdings Berhad
PwC/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/0129C
28 May 2014
8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.38 Finanecial instruments (continued)
I Exposure to foreign exchange risk {continued)
US Singapore Australian Hong Kong Other
Dollar Dollar Dollar Dollar currencies Total
RM'ocoo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo
31.7.2012
Financial assets
Cash and short term funds 1,688 5,747 1,357 718 1,044 10,554
Securities HFT 6 13 4 - - 23
Securities AFS 55,542 200,894 - - - 256,436
Securities held-to-maturity 224,009 - - - - 224,999
Clients’ and brokers’ balances 186 1,084 25 6,354 297 7,946
Other finaiicial assets 12,030 - 5,997 147 5 18,179
204,451 207,738 7:383 7,219 1,346 518,137
Financial liabilities
Deposits from enstomers (674) - - {403} (1,077)
Deposits and placenients of
banks and ctlier financial
institutions (155,191) - - - - (i55,191)
Clients’ and brokers’ balances (8,148) (2,604) (2) (143) (86) (11,073)
Other financial liabilities (i88) (12) (6,444) - - (6,644)
(164,201) (2,706) {6,446) (143) (489) {173,985)
Net open position 130,250 205,032 937 7,076 857 344,152
Derivative financial
instruinents (102,803) (200,439) 4 - {4) (303,242)
Net open position and
derivative finaneial
instruments 27,447 4,593 941 7,076 853 40,910
98
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AFFIN Holdings Berhad
PwC/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/0129C
28 May 2014

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

(k) Exposure to foreign exchange risk (continued)

US Singapore Australian Hong Kong

Other

Dollar Dollar Dollar Dollar currencies Total
RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo
1.8.2011
Financial assets
Cash and short term funds 3,971 3,046 1,406 408 1,042 9,873
Securities HFT 36 - 4 - - 40
Securities AFS 53,201 160,719 - - - 213,920
Securities held-to-maturity 211,88 - - - - 211,088
Clients’ and brokers’ balances 1,049 3,767 83 3,752 210 8,861
Other financial assets 13,720 - - 2,884 - 16,604
283,905 167,532 1,493 7,044 1,252 461,286
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers (2,425) - (103) - (123) (2,651}
Deposits and placements of
banks and other financial
institutions (89,008) - - - (222) (89,320)
Clients’ and brokers’ balances (5,458) (3,690) (122) (2,773) (28) (12,061)
Other financial liabilities (4,404) - (701) - - (5,105)
(101,385) (3.690) (916} (2,773) (373) (109,137)
Net open position 182,580 163,842 " 577 4,271 879 352,149
Derivative financial
instruments (163,327} (159,908) 176 (240) 217  (323,082)
Net open position and
derivative financial
instruments 19,253 3,934 753 4,031 1,096 20,067
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28 May 2014

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments {continued)

k) Exposure to foreign exchange risk (continued)

31.7.2011
Financial assets

Cash and short terin funds
Securities HFT

Securities AFS

Securities held-to-maturity
Clients’ and brokers’ balances
Other financial assets

Financial liabilities

Deposits from customers

Deposits and placements of
banks and other financial
institutions

Clients’ and brokers’ balances

QOther financial liabilities

Net open position

Derivative financial
instruments

Net open position and
derivative financial
instrnments

100

US Singapore Australian Hong Kong

Other

Dollar Dollar Dollar Dollar currencies Total

RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo
0,489 6,476 1,596 408 1,042 16,011
36 - 4 - - 40
53,201 160,719 - - - 213,920
211,988 - - - - 211,088
1,049 3,767 83 3.752 210 8,861
13,720 - - 2,884 - 16,604
286,483 170,962 1,683 7,044 1,252 467,424
(2,425) - (103) - {123) (2,651)
(89,098) - - - (222)  (89,320)
(5,458) (3.690) (112) (2,773) (28)  (12,061)
(6,922) {3,431) (891) (3,212) - (14,456)
(103,903) {7,121) {1,106) {5,985) {373) (118,488)
182,580 163,841 577 1,059 879 348,936
(163,327) _ (159,908) 176 (240) 217 (323,082)
19,253 3,933 753 819 1,096 25,854
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

a Market risk sensitivity analysis

Interest rate risk

The table below shows the sensitivity of the financial assets and liabilities of the Group as at
the end of the reporting period to reasonable possible changes in interest rates, on the basis
that all other variables remain constant.

Group
Impact on:

- profit before taxation
- other comprehensive incoime

Group
Impact on:

- profit before taxation
- other comprehensive income

Foreign exchange risk

{Decrease)

+ 100 basis points
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'oo0 RM'oo0 RM'ooo RM'oo0
(384) {3,961) (2,701) (2,701)
{23,688) (28,119) (17,108) (17,108)

Increase

- 100 basis points
31.7.2013 31./7.2012 1.8.2011 31,7.2011
RM'oo0 RM'o00 RM'000 RM'oo0
384 3,901 2,701 2,701
23,688 28,119 17,108 17,108

The table below shows the analysis of the impacts arising fromn reasaonable possible changes in
the foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure as at the end of the
reporting period, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

Group
US Dollar

Singapore Dollar
Anstralian Dollar
Hong Kong Dollar

101

Changes in
foreign
exchange

rates

+/-5%
+/-5%
+/-5%
+/-5%

Increase/{Decreasc)
in profit before taxation
31.7.2013 31.7.2012 1.8.2011 31.7.2011
RM'oo00 RM’'oo0 RM'oo00 RM'000
+/- 1,694 +/- 1,105 +/- 1,223 +/- 1,223
+/- 113 +/- 138 +/- 2095 +/- 295
+/- 130 +/- 47 +/- 41 +/- 41
+f- 31 _+/- 62 _ +/- 77 _*/- 77
+/- 1,068 +/- 1,352 +/- 1,636 +/- 1,636
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments {continued)
4] Market risk sensitivity analysis {continued)
Price risk

The table below shows the analysis of the impacts arising from reasonable possible changes in
the prices of the equity instruinents (including unit trust funds) which are held by Group as at

the end of the reporting period.

Changes in
equity
prices

31.7.2013

Quoted shares, warrants and REITs +/-5%
Quoted unit trust funds +/-1%
31.7.2012

Quoted shares, warrants and REITs +/-5%
Quoted unit trust funds +/-1%
1.8.2011

Quoted shares, warrants and REITs +/-5%
Quoted unit trust funds +/-1%
31.7.2011

Quoted shares, warrants and REITs +/-5%
Quoted unit trust fuuds +/-1%

102

365

Increase/(Decrease) in

Other

Profit compre-
before hensive
taxation income
RM'ooo RM'ooo
+/- 1,187  +/- 3,407
117 +/- 1,387

+/- 1,304 _ +/- 4,794
+/- 1,251 +/- 740
122 +/- 1,673

+/- 1,373 _+/- 2,413
+/- 1,257  +f- 254
140 +/- 1,518

+/- 1,397 +/- 1,772
+/- 1,257  +/- 254
140 +/- 1,518

+/- 1,397 4/~ 1772
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28 May 2014

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

{(n) Liquidity risk disclosure based on remaining contractual maturity

103

The tables below analyses the undiscounted cash flows obligations of the financial liabilities of
the Group based on the remaining contractual maturity.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

31.7.20153

Items recognised in
the statements of
finaneial position
Deposits from customers

Deposits and
placements of banks
and other
financial institutions

Clients” and brokers’
balances

Other financial liahilities

Items not recognised
in the statements of
of financial position

Commitments

Contingencies

Total

No
Up to >1-3 >3 -12 specific
1month months months 5 years maturity Total
RM'ooo RM'Oooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ocoo
(307,860) (152,656) (223,646) - (684,162)
(701,876) (615,859) (684,400) - {(2,002,135)
(223,964) - - - (223,964)
(235.403)  (3,346) {9,224) (39,334}  (287,307)
(1,469,103) (771,861) (917,270) (39.334) (3,197,568)
(123,504) - - - (123,904)
{123,904) - - - _ (123,904)

(1,556,911) (771,861) (917,270)

(39.334) (3,285,376)
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28 May 2014

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Finanecial instruments (continued)

{(n} Liquidity risk disclosure based on remaining contractual maturity (continued)

104

Non-derivative financial liabilities (continued)

31.7.2012
Items recognised in
the statements of
financial position
Deposits from customers
Deposits and
placements of banks
and other
financial institutions
Clients’ and brokers’
balances
Otber financial liabilities

Items not recognised
in the statements of
of financial position

Commitments

Contingencies

Total

No
Up to >1-3 >3-12 >1-5 specific
imonth months months years 5 years maturity Total
RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ocoo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo
{659,043) (49,989) (29,977) - (739,009)
(795,236) (377,171} (460,393) - (1,632,800)
(199,724) - - - (199,724)
(163,026) (1,752) (6,061) (35,369} (206,208)
(1,817,029) (428,912) (496,431) (35,369} (2,777,741)
(95,995) - - - (95,995)
(5,000) - - - (5,000)
(100,995) - - - (100,995)
(1,918,024) {428,912) (496,431) (35,369) {2,878,736)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments {(eontinued)

{(n) Liquidity risk disclosure based on remaining contractual maturity (continued)

105

Non-derivative finaneial liabilities (continued)

1.8.2011
Items recognised in
the statements of
financial position
Deposits from customers
Deposits and
placements of banks
and other
financial institutions
Clients’ aud brokers’
balauces
Other finaucial liabilities

Items not recognised
in the statements of
of financial position

Commitments

Contingencies

Total

No

Up to >1-3 >3 -12 specific
1month months months 5 years maturity Total
RM'ooo RM'0o00 RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'0o00o RM'000 RM'oo0
(749,839) (30,522)  {30,344) - (810,705)

(1,171,597) (319,065)

(71,185) - (1,561,847}
(186,725) - - - (186,725)
{113,353) (800) (3.549) (26,101)  (143,893)
(2,221,514) (350,387} {105,078) {(26,091) (2,703,170)
(31,161) - (20,000) - (51,161}
(12,500) - - - (12,500)
(43,661) - (20,000) - (63,661}
(2,177,853} (350,387) (125,078) {26,191} (2,639,509)
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8.38

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

(n) Liquidity risk disclosure based on remaining contractual maturity (continued)

106

Non-derivative financial liabilities (continued)

31.7.2011
Items recognised in
the statements of
financial position
Deposits from customers
Deposits and
placements of banks
and other
finaucial institutious
Clients’ and brokers’
balances
Other financial liabilities

Items not recognised
in the statements of
of financial position

Commitments

Contingencies

Total

No
Up to >1-3 >3-12 specific
1month months months 5 years maturity Total
RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo EM'ooo
{749,839) (30,522) (30,344) - (810,705)
(1,171,597} (319,065)
{71,185) - (1,561,847)
(186,725) - - - (186,725)
(113,353) {800) {3,549) {26,191}  (143,893)
{2,221,514) (350,387) {105,078) {26,101) (2,703,170)
(31,161) - (20,000) - (51,161)
{12,500) - - - {12,500)
{43,661) - {20,000) - (63,661)
(2,177,853) (350,387) (125,078) {26,191) (2,639,509)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

(n)

107

Liquidity risk disclosure based on remaining contractual maturity

(continued)

31.7.2013

Net settled

Gross settled
Inflow
Outflow

Total

31.7.2012

Net settled

Gross settled
Inflow
Outflow

Total

1.8.2011

Net settled

Gross settled
Inflow
Outflow

Total

31.7.2011

Net settled

Gross settled
Inflow
Outflow

Total

Derivative liabilities

No

Up to >1-3 >3-12 >1-5 Over specific
1month months months years 5 years maturity Total
RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo
(88) (483) - - - - (571)
103,177 395,668 275,322 402,210 - - 1,176,377
(104,625 (407,885) (283,471) (414.820) - - (1,210,801)
(1,448) (12,217)  (8,149) (12,610) - - (34,424)
(1,536} (12,700) (8,149) (12,610) - - (34,995)
{240) {1,585) (4,072) (678) - - (6,575)
179,247 25,126 349,104 119,862 - - 673,339
(181,238) (25,600) (353,929) (127,394) - - (688,161)
(1,991) (474) {4.825) {7.532) - - (14,822)
{2,231)  (2,059) {8,897) (8,210) - - {21,397)
(=231) {1,586) (3,193) (3,684) - - (8,694)
134,732 251,992 41,283 184,731 - - 612,738
(135,581 {257,196}  (42,045) (199,069) - - (633,891)
(849)  (5,204) (762) (14,338) - - (21,153)
(1,080) (6,790) (3,955) (18,022} - - (29,847}
(231) (1,586) (3.193) (3,684) - - (8,6094)
134,732 251,992 41,283 184,731 - - 612,738
(135,581) (257,3196)  (42,045)  (199,069) - - (633,891)
(849)  (5,204) (762) (14,338) - - {21,153)
(1,080)  (6,790) (3,955) {(i8,022) - - (29,847)
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The Board of Directors
AFFIN Holdings Berhad
PwC/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/o129C

28 May 2014

8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8.38 Financial instruments (continued)

(o) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged or a financial liability settled, between knowledgeable and willing parties in au
arm’s length transaction.

The methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial instruments are
as follows:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

108

Cash and short term funds

The carrying amount of cash and shoit term funds is a reasonable estimate of fair
value.

Deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions

For deposits and placements with banks and financial institutions with maturities of
less than one year, the carrying amount is a reascnable estimate of fair value. For
deposits and placements with maturities of one year and above, the estimated fair
value is based on discounted cash flows using prevailing money market interest rates
at which similar deposits and placements would be made with financial institutions of
siinilar credit risk and remaining period to maturity.

Securities portfolio

The estimated fair values of securities are generally based on quoted and chservable
market prices. In the absence of such quoted prices, the fair values are based on the
expected cash flows of the securities discounted by indicative market vields for similar
instruments as at the eud of the reporting period.

Loans, advances and financing

For floating rate loans and fixed rate loans with remaining period to maturity of less
than one year, the carrying amounts are generally reasonable estimates of their fair
values.

For fixed rate loans with remaining period to maturity of one year and above, fair
values are estimated by discounting the estimated future cash flows using the

prevailing market rates of loans with similar credit risks and maturities.

The estimated fair value of fixed rated share margin financing approximates the
carrying amount as the amount is deemed repayable on demand.

The fair values of impaired loans are represented by their cavrying amounts, net of
impairment allowances, being the expected recoverable amounts of the loans.

371



Company No.: 23218-W APPENDIX VI

ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT ON HWANG IB (Cont’d)

pwc
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The Board of Directors
AFFIN Holdings Berhad
PwC/SHKY/TCW /NSZ/py/0129C

28 May 2014

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Finaneial instruments (continued)

(o)

109

Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

The methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial instruments are
as follows (contiuued):

V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Clients’ and brokers’ balances

The carrying amnount of clients’ and brokers’ balauces is a reasonable estimate of fair
value due to their short term tenure of less than one year.

Derivative financial instrumeuts

The fair values of derivative financial instruineuts are obtained froin quoted market
rates in active market, including recent inarket transactions and valuation techniques,
such as discounted cash flow models, as appropriate.

Deposits from customers

For deposits from customers with maturities of less than one year, the carrying
amounts are a reasonable estimate of their fair values, For deposits with maturities of
one year or more, fair values are estimated based on discounted cash flows using
prevailing market interest rates for deposits with simnilar remaining period to
maturity.

Deposits and placements of banks and other financial institutions

The estimated fair values of deposits and placements of banks aud other financial
institutions with maturities of less than one year approximate the carrying values. For
deposits and placements with maturities of one year or more, the fair values are
estimated based on discounted cash flows using prevailing money market interest
rates for deposits and placements with similar remaining period to maturity.

Other finaneial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts of other financial assets and liabilities less any estimated
impairment allowances included in other assets and liabilities are assumed to

approximate their fair values as these items are not materially sensitive to the shift in
market interest rates.
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The Board of Directors

AFFIN Holdings Berhad
PwC/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/0129C
28 May 2014

8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.38 Financial instruments (continued)
{0) Fair value of financial instruments {continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group classify financial instruments measured at fair value based ou the following fair
value hierarchy, which reflects the significance of the inputs used in fair value measurement:

Level 1 - Quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted price included within Level 1 that are observable
for the assets or liabilities, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices)

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets and liabilities that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs)

The table below presents the financial assets and liabilities of the Group, which are measured
at fair value, classified by level of the fair value hierarchy:.

Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RM'ooo RM'ooo0 RM'oo0 RM'ooo
31.7.2013
Financial assets
Securities held-for-trading
Quoted securities 25,429 - - 35,429
Ungquoted debt securities - 19,890 - 19,890
Securities AFS
Quoted securities 206,830 - - 206,830
Unquoted debt securities - 1,206,011 - 1,206,011
Derivative assets - 36,579 - 36,579
242,259 1,262,480 - 1,504,739
Financial liabilities
Derivative liabilities - {45.883) - (45,883)
31.7.2012
Financial assets
Securities held-for-trading
Quoted securities 37,234 - - 37,234
Uuquoted debt securities - 132,855 - 132,855
Securities AFS
Quoted securities 182,048 - - 182,048
Ungquoted debt securities - 1,397,509 - 1,397,569
Derivative assets - 16,505 - 16,505
219,282 1,546,929 - 1,766,211
Financial liabilities
Derivative liabilities - (22,106) - (22,106)

110
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AFFIN Holdings Berhad
PwC/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/0129C
28 May 2014
8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.38 TFinancial instruments (continued)
(o) Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
Financial insiruments measured at fair value (continued)
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RM'oo0 RM'ooo RM'ooo EM'ooo
1.8.2011
Financial assets
Securities held-for-trading
Quoted securities 39,164 - - 39,164
Unquoted debt securities - 298,495 - 298,495
Securities AFS
Quoted securities 156,895 - - 156,895
Unquoted debt securities - 1,031,721 - 1,031,721
Derivative assets - 26,734 - 26,734
196,059 1,356,950 - 1,553,009
Financial liabilities
Derivative liabilities - (28,233) - (28,233)
31.7.2011
Financial assets
Securities held-for-trading
Quoted securities 39,164 - - 39,164
Unquoted debt securities - 208,495 - 298,495
Securities AFS
Quoted securities 156,895 - - 156,895
Unquoted debt securities - 1,031,721 - 1,031,721
Derivative assets - 26,734 - 26,734
196,059 1,356,950 - 1,553,009
Financial liabilities
Derivative liabilities - (28,2313) - (28,233)

There was no transfer between Level 1 and 2 during the current and previous financial years.

As at the end of the reporting period, the fair values of financial instruments of the Group,
which are not measured at fair valne, approximate their carrying amounts, except as

disclosed below:

374



Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX VI
ACCOQUNTANTS’ REPORT ON HWANG IB (Cont’'d)
The Board of Directors
AFFIN Holdings Berhad
Pw(C/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/o129C
28 May 2014
8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.38 Financial instruments (continued)
(o) Fair value of financial instruments (eontinued)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
31.7.2013 31.7.2012
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
RM'oo0 RM'ooo RM'ooo RM'ooo
Financial assets
Securities held-to-maturity (note 8.5) 370,268 399,827 399,921 438,180
1.8.2011 31.7.2011
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
RM'o00 RM'ooo RM'o00 RM'o00
Financial assets
Securities held-to-maturity (note 8.5) 388,335 428,580 388,335 428,589

8.39 Transition to MFRS

{a)  The Group has applied the following relevant mandatory exception and optional exemption to

retrosp
August

@

(1)

112

ective application of MFRSs in the opening MFRS statements of financial position as at 1
2011 (transition date), as provided in MFRS 1:

Mandatory exception
Estimates

In the previous financial years, the financial statements of the Group was prepared in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standards in Malaysia (“FRS”). The MFRS
estiimates as at the transition date are consistent with the estimates as at the same date
made in conformity with FRS.

Optional exemption

Business combinations

MFRS 1 provides the option to apply MFRS 3, Business Comnbinations prospectively for
business combinations that occurred from the transition date or from a designated date
prior to the transition date. This provides relief from full retrospective application that
would require restatement of all business combinations prior to the transition date or a
designated date prior to the transition date. The Group elected to apply MFRS 3
prospectively to business combinations that occurred after 1 August 2011. In addition,
the Group has also applied MFRS 127, Separate Financial Statements from the same
date.
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The Board of Directors

AFFIN Holdings Berhad
PwC/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/0129C
28 May 2014

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Transition to MFRS {continued)

(b)

(c)

113

MFRS 139, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Prior to the transition to MFRS, the collective impairment allowance of the Group was
maintained at 1.5% of the total outstanding loans/financing, net of individual impairment
allowance, as set out as a transitional provision in the BNM Guidelines on Classification and
Impairment Provisions for Loans/Financing,.

Upon transition to MFRS, the BNM transitional provision has been removed and banking
institutions are required to comply with the requirements of MFRS 139 and the revised BNM
Guidelines on Classification and Impairment Provisions for Loans/Financing in determining
collective impairinent allowances. In accordance with MFRS 139, the Group groups its
loans/financing by similar credit risk characteristics and collective impairment allowance is
made hased on estimated loan loss rates, which are computed based on historical loan loss
experience and periodically adjusted based on current observable data. Loans/Financing that
have been individually assessed for impairment and found not to be individually impaired are
to be grouped for collective assessment of impairment.

The effects of the change in accounting policy have been accounted for retrospectively.

Reconciliation of equity

Effects of:
As

previously Transition As
reported to MFRS Restated
Dr./(Cr.) Dr./(Cr.) Dr./(Cr.)
RM’oo00 RM’ooo0 RM’o00

3t.7.2012
Equity (933,774) (878) (934,652)
Loans, advances and financing 370,278 1,128 371,406
Clients” and brokers’ balances (Dr.) 179,097 29 179,126
Other assets 67,541 13 67,554
Tax recoverahle 5,351 (292) 5,059
622,267 878 623,145

1.8.2011

Equity (898,117} (1,028) (899,145)
Loaus, advances and financing 429,882 1,309 431,101
Clients’ and brokers’ balances (Dr.} 168,102 28 168,130
Other assets 38,250 33 38,283
Deferred tax assets 7,095 (342) 6,753
643,329 1,028 644,357
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28 May 2014
8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.39 Transition to MFRS (continued)
(d) Reconciliation of total comprehensive income
Effects of:
As
previously Transition As
reported to MFRS Restated
Dr./{Cr.) Dr./(Cr.) Dr./{Cr.)
RM’o00 RM’000 RM’oo00
31L.7.2012
Total comprehensive income (66,526) 148 (66,378)
Allowance/(Write back of allowance)
for losses on:
- Loans, advances and financing (909 181 (726)
- Clients’ balances and receivable (499) 17 (482)
Taxation 19,901 (50) 19,851
18,495 148 18,643
(e} Effects on statements of cash flows

There are no material adjustments made to comparative statements of cash flows of the Group
for the financial year ended 31 July 2012 and 31 July 2011.

8.40 Adoption of MIA FRSIC 18 in the FRS financial statements for the financial year ended
31 July 2011

(a)

114

FRSIC Consensus 18, Monies Held in Trust by Participating Organisations of Bursa Securities

FRSIC Consensus 18 was issued by MIA on 18 September 2012 as a best practice guidance in
respect of accounting for monies held in trust by participating organisations of Bursa
Securities. The consensus is that recognition of trust monies as part of a participating
organisation’s assets with corresponding liabilities is inappropriate based on the MIEFRS
framework as the participating organisation does not have any control over the trust monies to
obtain the future economic benefits embodied in the trust monies and does not have any
contractual or statutory obligation to its clients on the money deposited in the trust account
that would result in an outflow of resources from the participating organisation. FRSIC
Consensus 18 is solely applicable to clients' trust monies held by participating organisations of
Bursa Securities.

Following FRSIC Consensus 18, clients' monies held in trust by HwangDBS Investment Bank
Berhad, which is a participating organisation of Bursa Securities, are no longer recognised as
assets and similarly, no corresponding liabilities are accounted for in the statements of
financial position of the Group. Previously, clients' monies held in trust by the Group were
accounted as assets and the corresponding liabilities were recognised in the statements of
financial position of the Group.

The effects of the change in accounting policy have been accounted for retrospectively.

377



Company No.: 23218-W

APPENDIX VI

ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT ON HWANG IB (Cont'd}

pwc
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AFFIN Holdings Berhad
PwC/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/o129C
28 May 2014

8 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8.40 Adoption of MIA FRSIC 18 in the FRS finaneial statements for the financial year ended
31 July 2011 (continued)

3Y, Reconciliation of statement of financial position
_Effects of:
As FRSIC
previously Consensus As
reported 18 Restated
Dr./{Cr.) Dr./(Cr.) Dr./(Cr.)
RM’oo00 RM’oo0 RM’oo0
31.7.2011
Cash and short term funds 823,384 (202,364) 621,020
Deposits and placements with banks
and otber financial institutions 152,320 (2,241) 150,079
Other liabilities (348,498) 204,605 (143,893)
627,206 - 627,206
(¢) Effects on statements of comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity

There is no impact to the statements of comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Group for the financial yvear ended 31 July 2011.

8.41  Significant event

On 15 April 2013, the immediate and ultimate holding company, Hwang-DBS (Malaysia) Berhad
(“HDBSM™) obtained permission from Bank Negara Malaysia via its letter dated 12 April 2013 for
HDBSM to commence preliminary negotiations with AMMB Holdings Berhad and Affin Holdings
Berhad for the potential disposal of its equity interest in the Bank. BNM’s approval to commence
negotiations is valid for a period of six months, HDBSM has also commenced preliminary negotiations
with AMMB Holdings Berhad and Affin Holdings Berhad for the potential disposal of its equity
interests i1 other financial services businesses of the Group.
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The Board of Directors

AFFIN Holdings Berhad
PwC/SHKY/TCW/NSZ/py/0o129C
28 May 2014

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Subsequent events

(a)

(b)

(c)

On 4 September 2013, the holding company, Hwang-DBS (Malaysia) Berhad (“HDBSM”)
entered iuto an exclusivity agreement with Affin Holdings Berhad (“AHB") in relation to the
proposed disposals of its equity interests in amongst others, the following entities:

()  100% direct equity interest in HwangDBS Investment Bank Berhad (“Hwang IB” or “the
Bank™);

(i) 100% indirect equity interest held by the Bank in a subsidiary, HDM Nominees (Asing)
Sdn. Bhd.; and

(iii) 100% indirect equity interest held by the Bank in a subsidiary, HDM Nominees
(Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.

Applications will be submitted to the relevant authorities for approval in relation to the
proposed disposals. The proposed disposals are expected to be completed in the first half of
year 2014.

On 18 October 2013, Hwang IB, a wholly owned subsidiary of HDBSM entered into a Sale and
Purchase Agreement ("SPA") with Putrajaya Ventures Sdn Bhd for the disposal of an
investment property free from encumbrances and subject to the terms and conditions, as
stipulated in the SPA, for a total cash consideration of RM82,500,000.

On 7 April 2014, the acquisition by Affin Holdings Berhad of the Hwang IB Shares {(after the
completion of the Pre-Closing Reorganisation) held by HDBSM and the acquisition of 17%
Hwang Investment Management Berhad's ("Hwang IM") shares held by the Minority
Shareholder were completed.

Acquisition of the 17% Hwang IM shares held by the minority Shareholder has increased
Hwang IB Group interest in Hwang IM to 70%.

Yours faithfully,

Cro—

PRICEWATERHQUSECOOPERS
{No. AF: 1146)
Chartered Accountants

pa o

SO0 HOO KHOON YEAN
(No. 2682/10/15 ()
Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur
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Registered Office:

7" Floor, Chulan Tower,
3 Jalan Conlay,
50450 Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia.
Date: 5 June 2014

To: The Entitled Shareholders of AFFIN Holdings Berhad
Dear Sir/Madam,

On behaif of the Board of Directors of AFFIN Holdings Berhad ("AFFIN" or “the Company") ("Board"), |
wish to report, after due enquiry, that during the period between 31 December 2013 (being the date to
which the tast audited financial statements of AFFIN and its subsidiaries ("AFFIN Group™) have been
made up) and the date of this letter (being a date not earlier than 14 days before the date of issuance of
this Abridged Prospectus):

(a) the business of the AFFIN Group has, in the opinion of the Board, been satisfactorily maintained;

{b) in the opinion of the Board, no circumstances have arisen since the last audited financial
statements of the AFFIN Group which have adversely affected the trading or the value of the
assets of the AFFIN Group;

(c) the current assets of the AFFIN Group appear in the books at values which are believed to be
realisable in the ordinary course of business;

(d) save as disclosed in this Abridged Prospectus, there are no material contingent liabilities which
have arisen by reason of any guarantees or indemnities given by the AFFIN Group;

{e) since the last audited financial statements of the AFFIN Group, there is no default or any known
event that could give rise to a default situation, on payments of either interest and/or principal
sums for any borrowing. This applies for all the corporations under AFFIN Group; and

N there have not been, since the last audited financial statements of the AFFIN Group, any material
change in the published reserves or any unusual factors affecting the profits of the AFFIN Group.

Yours faithfully,
For and on behalf of the Board of
AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD

TAN SRI DATO’ SERI LODIN BIN WOK KAMARUDDIN
Non-independent Non- Executive Deputy Chairman

AFFIN HOLDINGS BERHAD (25224

(ANl Kumputan Lembaga Tabung Angkatan Tenlera)
7th Floer, Chulan Tower, 3 Jalan Conlay, 50450 Kuala Lumpur.
Tel: 03-21429569  Fax; 03-21431057
wwww affin.com.my
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1. SHARE CAPITAL

(a)

(b)

{c)

(d)

Save for the Rights Shares, no securities will be allotted or issued on the basis of this
Abridged Prospectus later than twelve (12) months after the date of issue of this
Abridged Prospectus.

As at the date of this Abridged Prospectus, there are no founder, management or
deferred shares in our Company. There is only one class of shares in our Company,
namely ordinary shares of RM1.00 each, all of which rank pari passu with one
another.

Save for the Rights Issue, no securities of our Company have been issued, or
proposedfagreed to be issued either as fully or partly paid-up in cash or otherwise
than in cash within the two {2) years immediately preceding the date of this Abridged
Prospectus.

Save for the Rights Issue, no person has been or is entitled to be granted an option to
subscribe for any securities of our Company as at the date of this Abridged
Prospectus.

2. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The extract of the provisions in our Company’s Articles of Association in relation to the
remuneration of our Directors are as foliows (capitalised terms mentioned are as defined in
our Company’s Articles of Association):

(a}

(b)

Article 97

The fees of the Directors shall from time to time be determined by an ordinary
resolution of the Company in general meeting but the remuneration of the executive
directors shall from time to time be determined by the Board. The fees payable to
Directors shall not be increased except pursuant to a resolution passed at general
meeting when notice of the proposed increase has been given in the notice convening
the meeting. The fees payable to non-executive Directors shall be a fixed sum and
not by a commission on or percentage of profits or turnover and be divisibie among
the Directors as they may agree, or failing agreement, equally, except that any
Director holding office for part only of a year shall be entitled to a proportionate part of
a full year’s remuneration. The remuneration payable to executive Directors shall not
include a commission on or percentage of turnover. Any fee paid to an alternate
Directors shall be agreed between him and his appointor and shall be deducted from
his appointor's remuneration.

Article 98

The Directors shall be entitled to be reimbursed for all travelling or such reasonable
expenses as may be incurred in attending and returning from meetings of the Board
or of committees of the Board or general meetings or otherwise howsoever in
connection with the business of the Company.
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(c)

Article 99

The Directors may grant special remuneration to any Director who {on request by the
Directors) is willing to perform or render any special duties or services outside his
ordinary duties as a Director or to go or reside away from his usual place of business
or residence for any of the purposes of the Company or in giving special attention to
the business of the Company as a member of a committee of Directors. Such special
remuneration may be paid to such Director in addition to or in substitution for his
ordinary remuneration as a Director and may be paid by way of a fixed sum or
otherwise as may be arranged Provided Always that such special remuneration shall
not be by a commission on or percentage of profits or turnover.

3. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed helow neither we nor our subsidiaries have entered into any material
contracts (not being contracts in the ordinary course of business) during the two (2) years
immediately preceding the date of this Abridged Prospectus:

(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

The Exclusivity Agreement dated 4 September 2013 entered into between our
Company and Hwang-DBS in relation to the Acquisition to regulate, inter alia, the
parties’ efforts in pursuit of their respective applications to BNM for approval on the
terms and conditions therein. This agreement has been completed;

On 18 Qctober 2013, Hwang IB entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
Putrajaya Ventures Sdn Bhd to dispose-off 1.3 acres of freehold land held under
Geran Mukim 62, Lot 155 Seksyen 89A, Bandar Kuala Lumpur, Daerah Kuala
Lumpur, Negeri Wilayah Persekutuan Kuala Lumpur, together with a commercial
building erected thereon bearing address no. 227, Jalan Ampang, 50450 Kuala
Lumpur, Malaysia for a total cash consideration of RM82.50 million. The disposal has
been completed on 15 January 2014;

The SPA which was completed on 7 April 2014;

The facility agreements all dated 28 March 2014 between AFFIN and each of (a)
RHB Bank Berhad, RHB Iinvestment Bank Berhad and OCBC Bank (Malaysia)
Berhad, (b} RHB Bank Berhad and OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad and (¢) RHB
Islamic Bank Berhad (collectively, the “Lenders”) for an aggregate bridge loan facility
of up to RM1,400 million to fund the Acquisition (“Bridge Loans"} with a tenure of
one (1) year from the date the Bridge Loans are drawn down at an interest cost
calculated based on the Lenders’ cost of funds plus 0.75% per annum, subject to the
terms and conditicns contained therein; and

The Management and Underwriting Agreement dated 29 May 2014,
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4,

MATERIAL LITIGATION

As at date of this Abridged Prospectus, our Company and our subsidiary companies are not
engaged in any other material litigation, claims or arbitration either as plaintiff or defendant or
otherwise and the Directors of our Company are not aware of any proceedings pending or
threatened against our Company and/or our subsidiary companies, or of any facts likely to
give rise to any proceedings which might materially or adversely affect the financial position or
business of our Company and/or our subsidiary companies.

CONSENTS

(@)

(b)

Qur Principal Adviser and Co-ordinator, Company Secretary, Share Registrar,
Special Share Registrar, Principal Bankers, Solicitors for the Rights Issue, Solicitors
for Credit Suisse, the Joint Underwriters and Bloomberg (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd have
given their written consents to the inclusion in this Abridged Prospectus of their
names and all references thereto in the form, manner and context in which they
appear before the issuance of this Abridged Prospectus and their consents have not
subsequently been withdrawn; and

Cur Auditors and Reporting Accountants has given its consent to the inclusion in this
Abridged Prospectus of its name, Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial
Position and the Reporting Accountants’ letter thereon as set out in Appendix Il of
this Abridged Prospectus, the Auditors’ Report for our audited consolidated financial
statements for the FYE 31 December 2013 as set out in Appendix IV of this Abridged
Prospectus and all references thereto in the form, manner and context in which they
appear before the issuance of this Abridged Prospectius and their consent has not
subsequently been withdrawn.

GENERAL

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The nature of our Company's business is disclosed in Section 1 of Appendix Il of this
Abridged Prospectus. The details of our subsidiary and associated companies as at
the LPD are disclosed in Section 5 of Appendix Il of this Abridged Prospectus.

The estimated expenses of the Rights Issue will be borne by our Company as
disclosed under Section 7.2 of this Abridged Prospectus.

Save as disclosed in Sections 2.4, 5, 8, 7 and 8 of this Abridged Prospectus, our
Board is not aware of any material information including specific trade factors or risks
which is unlikely to be known or anticipated by the general public and which could
materially affect the profits of our Group.

Save as disclosed in the Abridged Prospectus and to the best knowledge of our
Board, the financial condition and operations of our Company and our subsidiaries
are not likely to be affected by any of the following:

(1) known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will result
in or that is reasonably likely to result in our Company/Group’s liquidity
increasing or decreasing in any material way;

(ii} material commitments for capital expenditure;

iii} unusual or infrequent events or transactions or any significant economic

changes that materially affect the amount of reported income from the
operations of our Group; and
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{iv) known trends or uncertainties that have had or that our Group reasonably
expects will have a material favourable or unfavourable impact on revenues
or operating income of our Group.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Documents have been seen and approved by our Directors and they collectively and
individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information given and confirm that,
after having made all reasonable enguiries, and to the best of their knowledge and belief,
there are no false or misleading statements or other facts, the omission of which would make
any statement herein false or misleading.

AFFIN Investment, being the Principal Adviser for the Rights I1ssue acknowledges that, based
on the available information, and to the best of its knowledge and belief, this Abridged
Prospectus constitutes full and true disclosure of all material facts concerning the Rights
Issue.

DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents will be made available for inspection at our Registered
Office at 7" Floor, Chulan Tower, No 3 Jalan Conlay, 50480 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia during
normal business heurs on any weekday (except public holidays) for a peried of not less than
twelve (12) months from the date of this Abridged Prospectus:

(a) Memorandum and Articles of Association of our Company;,

{b) the certified true extract of the ordinary resolution passed at the EGM of our
Company in relation to the Rights Issue as set out in Appendix | of this Abridged
Prospectus;

{c) the Pro Forma Consclidated Statements of Financial Position of our Company as at

31 December 2013 together with the Reporting Accountants’ letter thereon as set out
in Appendix 11l of this Abridged Prospectus;

d) the audited financial statements of our Group for the past two (2) FYE 31 December
2012 and 31 December 2013 and unaudited financial statements of our Group for the
3-month FPE 31 March 2014 as set out in Appendices IV and V of this Abridged
Prospectus;

(e} Accountants’ Report as referred to in Appendix V1 of this Abridged Prospectus.

(f) Directors’ Report as set out in Appendix VIl of this Abridged Prospectus;
{9) material contracts as disclosed in Section 3 of Appendix VIII of this Abridged
Prospectus;

{h) the irrevocable written undertakings by LTAT, BHB and BEA dated 17 March 2014,
10 March 2014 and 11 March 2014 as referred to in Section 2.5 of this Abridged
Prospectus; and

0] letters of consent referred to in Section 5 of Appendix VI of this Abridged
Prospectus.
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